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Rezidor Hotel Group AB (previously Rezidor SAS Hospitality
Group AB) is a public limited liability company in compliance
with Swedish law. Corporate identity number: 556674-0964.
The Group’s registered office (Hemvärnsgatan 15, Box 6061,
171 06 Solna) is in Stockholm, Sweden, with the corporate
office being based in Brussels.
Reporting currency is Euro. Unless otherwise stated, figures
in parentheses relate to the 2005 fiscal year. Data on markets
and competitive positions represent Rezidor’s own assessments unless a specific source is indicated. These assessments
are based on the most recent and reliable information from
published sources in the travel, tourism and hotel sectors.
The formal financial reports are presented on pages
28–61.

Financial information
The Annual Report, interim reports and Hotline, a magazine
for all Group employees, and other financial materials can be
ordered from:
The Rezidor Hotel Group
Corporate Communication & Investor Relations
Avenue du Bourget 44
B-1130 Brussels
Belgium
Tel: + 32 2 702 9200
Fax: + 32 2 702 9300
Email: investorrelations@rezidor.com
Rezidor also has extensive corporate and financial information
available at www.rezidor.com

Contacts
Knut Kleiven
Deputy President and Chief Financial Officer
Per Blixt
Head of Corporate Communication and Investor Relations
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Pia Heidenmark-Cook
Vice President Responsible Business (Sustainability Report)

2006: Summary of the Year
Revenue increased by 20.5% to MEUR 707.3 (587.0)
due to improved market conditions, a successful
growth strategy and an active management of the
hotel portfolio. As a result of long term geographical
diversification, the Rest of Western Europe overtook
the Nordic region in terms of revenue. Growth was
particularly high in Russia and the other CIS countries
strengthening Rezidor’s leading market position.
	EBITDA, before IPO related costs improved by 39.6%
to MEUR 61.0 (43.7). The improvement was driven by
increased demand, strong operational performance
with good cost control, resulting in an increase of
1.2% point to 8.6% in EBITDA margin before IPO
related costs.

RevPAR (including leased and managed hotels) went up by
7.5% to EUR 72 (67) and occupancy rate was 69% (67).
	Profit after tax amounted to MEUR 29.0 (23.2). Earnings
per share was EUR 0.19 (0.15) and equity per share EUR
1.18 (1.00).
	On the 28th of November Rezidor was successfully
listed on the Stockholm Stock Exchange.
	The Board is proposing a dividend of EUR 0.06 per
share, corresponding to 31.1% of profit after tax.

Financial Highlights
TEUR
Operating revenue

2006

2005

20041)

20031)

20021)

707,319

587,046

498,728

389,964

389,715

EBIT

34,705

30,503

5,795

–24,650

11,068

Financial items, net

–2,248

487

–1,619

–3,078

–1,806

Net income after tax

28,969

23,219

3,855

–32,593

3,876

Equity2)

176,380

149,587

68,184

66,526

99,867

Balance sheet total

402,623

354,251

323,785

291,611

279,309

Dividends paid
Total investments

03)

0

4,1734)

32,617

34,605

54,900

33.8

3,4384)

13,7994)

59,280

30,113
27.6

Key indicators, %
EBITDAR Margin

31.2

28.6

21.2

8.65)

7.4

3.6

–3.0

6.2

EBITDA, Growth

39.65)

141.6

255.9

–148.3

–17.0

Return on capital employed

18.1

12.2

0.6

–14.6

8.4

EBITDA Margin

For the financial years 2002–2004 the parent company was Rezidor SAS Hospitality A/S.
	Including minority interest.
3)
Board of Directors have proposed a dividend of EUR 0.06 per share, corresponding to 31.1% of profit after tax.
4)
Group Contribution paid to SAS in 2002–2004.
5)
Before IPO related costs.
1)
2)
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CEO Statement
Geared for continued
profitable growth

We have expanded beyond our original home market in the Nordic
region to become the second largest hotel brand in Europe with
Radisson SAS, as well as a dominant player in the fast growing CIS
countries. Due to our ongoing geographical diversification, for the
first time, the rest of Western Europe overtook the Nordic region
in terms of revenue in 2006.
The growth in number of new rooms, along with the high level
of new agreements in 2006, has provided us with a solid base for
improving our critical mass. This in turn supports our expansion
and positioning strategies while providing greater economies of
scale. Our main focus is on Eastern Europe, CIS and the Middle
East, where demand is expected to continue to exceed the supply, compared with the more mature markets in Western Europe.
At the same time, we are pursuing further growth in the Nordic
region and in the Rest of Western Europe, especially for the Park
Inn brand.

Dear Shareholder,
Firstly, I would like to say thank you. A sincere thanks to all our new
shareholders for the confidence and support you have shown since
Rezidor was listed on the Stockholm Stock Exchange in November
2006. The success we have enjoyed throughout the past year is
proof of our efforts to live up to your expectations.
I would also like to thank all of our employees. Because this
success would not have been possible without their exceptional
ongoing commitment.
While preparing for our stock market listing, we presented our
short and long-term objectives. The main message was that our
strengths and strategies work together effectively, making us
well leveraged for continued profitable growth.
The three main objectives presented last November were: faster
growth, higher profits and risk reduction. A long-term, more robust
profit level will better protect us from the volatility of the business
cycle. To reach these objectives, we aspire to continuously optimise
the interplay between, geographical diversification, brands and
types of contracts.
So, have we met these objectives?

Brand diversification
During 2006, Radisson SAS ranked as Europe’s second leading
brand in the first class segment. We’re closer than ever to challenging the market leader thanks to our aggressive business development, resulting in strong profit growth. Radisson SAS branded
hotels are operated in many newly built properties with good future profit potential. We believe that we have a good balance between mature and new hotels.
From the strong brand base of Radisson SAS in the first class
segment we have expanded aggressively into the mid market
with the Park Inn brand. Good progress was made in 2006: approximately 2,000 new Park Inn rooms opened for business, and
4,208 rooms were contracted. After just four years, Park Inn has
grown from zero to an impressive 10,174 rooms in operation.
Park Inn currently accounts for 22% of all our rooms. This gives
us improved risk diversification, strengthened by the fact that
middle segment brands usually are more resilient during market
downturns.
Our development brands, Regent, Hotel Missoni and Country Inn,
give us increased options for risk diversification, while positioning us
for further growth in all segments from Luxury to Economy.

Geographical diversification
Rezidor currently has hotels in operation and under development
in 47 countries. And, as all hotel operators are painfully aware, establishing the first hotel in a new market is a risky undertaking. We
have minimised that particular risk hurdle. We are established with
successful brands and a solid infrastructure in many important
markets.

Lower risk contract mix
Growth at any cost is not the name of our game. Growth must be
combined with the active management and refinement of our contract portfolio, along with effective cost control to ensure a continued profit growth.
We are continuing to refine our portfolio to improve our contract mix, as well as our cost and price structure to give us better

We look forward to meeting the
challenges of the year ahead with
great energy and focus.
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How did we do in 2006?
I’m happy to say we did well. Two positive structural forces have
helped support our strategies; firstly, global growth in travel and
tourism and secondly, increased growth in branded hotels in
Europe. We also enjoyed a generally good economic climate and
strong market demands, where the hotel industry reported improved RevPAR throughout Europe and the Middle East in 2006.
Those external factors, along with our new direction in portfolio management, and tougher contract disciplines, all contributed to our healthy 20.5% increase in operating revenue to MEUR
707.3. Payments made to our brand owner Carlson under the
Master Franchise Agreements for the use of their brand names
and other services were reduced from mid 2005, impacting
positively our bottom-line. Our EBITDA margin increased to
8.6%. Total number of rooms in operation and under development was 57,611, an increase of 35% (15,090 rooms) in just
three years. Our past success makes us confident that we will
reach our target of adding 20,000 rooms in operation during the
period 2007–2009; we have already contracted 12,000 rooms
to open in that period.
With a net profit after tax of MEUR 29.0 and EUR 0.19 per
share, the Board has proposed a dividend of EUR 0.06 per share,
in line with our policy to distribute approximately a third of net
profits as dividends.
Outlook 2007
The market remains strong and RevPAR is projected to grow further. EBITDA margin is expected to improve. We reiterate our target to open 20,000 new rooms during 2007–2009.
Kurt Ritter

profit conversion and more dynamic risk control. We plan to
increase the share of management and franchise agreements
with low risk and without financial commitment. In 2006 we succeeded in negotiating almost 80% of our newly contracted rooms
without financial commitment.
Our target is that, of the rooms being added in the next three
year period, 50% of the rooms should be under management
agreements and 30% under franchise agreements. These changes
in our contract mix promise to contribute to an ongoing improvement of our margins in the future.

Kurt Ritter,
President and CEO
Stockholm, March 2007
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Corporate Governance
Report 2006

Responsibility for the management and control of Rezidor Hotel
Group AB is shared among the Board of Directors, its elected committees and the CEO in accordance with the Swedish Companies Act,
other legislation, rules and regulations governing listed companies,
including the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance, the Articles
of Association and the Board’s own internal control instruments.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Nordic List of
Stockholmsbörsen (the ”Exchange”) since November 28th 2006
(the ”Listing”). The Company declared upon the Listing that it will
follow the Swedish Corporate Governance Code (the ”Code”) as
prescribed by the Exchange. Since the Listing, the Company has
successively adapted the routines, rules and procedures of the
Company to the system set forth by the Code. The Code also prescribes that the Annual Report should be supplemented by this
Corporate Governance Report, which in a general way describes
how the Company applied the Code during the fiscal year 2006.
We hereby submit the Corporate Governance Report for year
2006. The report has not been reviewed by our auditors.
Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting is Rezidor Hotel Group AB’s highest
decision-making body. It shall be held in Stockholm. Rezidor Hotel
Group AB’s first Annual General Meeting as a listed company will
be held in Stockholm on May 4th, 2007.
Nomination Committee
The mission
The obligation to follow the Code did not arise until the Company
became listed. The shareholders did not at the Annual General
Meeting in 2006 appoint a Nomination Committee. Nevertheless
in efforts to comply with the Code to the extent possible an informal
Nomination Committee procedure was set up. In connection with
the Listing of our shares, the Chairman of our Board of Directors,
Mr. Urban Jansson, consequently initiated a process for appointing
an informal Nomination Committee. However for the above reasons
it was not possible to issue a press release with the names of the
members of the Nomination Committee six month prior to the date
of the Annual General Meeting as the Code prescribes.
The responsibility of the Nomination Committee is to nominate
the persons to be appointed to our Board of Directors at the Annual
General Meeting of shareholders. The Nomination Committee makes
recommendations for the Board of Directors and recommendations
regarding the allocation of remuneration among the Chairman and
other members of our Board of Directors and regarding the alloca-
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tion of remuneration in respect of committee work, if any. Such recommendations are presented at the Annual General Meeting. The
Nomination Committee also makes recommendations regarding the
appointment of auditors and remuneration of the auditors.
The 2007 Annual General Meeting shall decide upon the criteria
to be used in appointing members of the Nomination Committee
for the following year.
Members
The intention as set out in our Listing prospectus was that the members of the informal Nomination Committee should represent the
three largest shareholders. As a result the informal Nomination
Committee has consisted of Mrs. Marilyn Carlson Nelson who has
taken steps to set up a Nomination Committee. Mrs. Marilyn Carlson
Nelson, who represents the owners Carlson Hotels Worldwide Inc
and Carlson Summit Inc (together “Carlson”), owns 35%, Mr. Benny
Zakrisson, who represents SAS AB (publ) owns 6.74% and Mr. Brian
Meyer, who represents Fir Tree Partners, USA owns 5.02% (as disclosed by Fir Tree, Inc. in a press release dated January 8th, 2007, New
York). The informal Nomination Committee has thus included two
members of the Board. The Nominations Committee has informed
the Company that this was necessary due to time constraints.
The Board of Directors
Under the Swedish Companies Act, the Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the organisation and the management of a
company. The articles of association provide that the Board of
Directors shall be elected by shareholders and consist of not less
than three and not more than fifteen members. Further, under the
Swedish Companies Act, the CEO and at least half of the members
of the Board of Directors of a company must be residents of a
country within the EEA, unless the Swedish Companies Registration
Office grants an exemption.
Mission and responsibilities
Each year, the Board of Directors establishes a formal work plan
clarifying the Board’s responsibilities and regulating the internal
division of duties between the Board and its committees, including
the role of the Chairman, the Board’s decision-making procedures,
its meeting schedule, procedures governing the convening, agenda
and minutes of meetings, as well as Board work on accounting,
auditing matters and financial reporting.
The work plan also governs how the Board shall receive information
and documentation as the basis for its work and in order to be able to
make well-founded decisions. The Board has also issued separate
CEO’s instructions and instructions for the financial reporting to the
Board and has adopted other special steering documents, including a
Finance Policy, a Communications Policy and a Code of Conduct.
The responsibilities of the Board include monitoring the work of
the CEO through ongoing reviews over the year. The Board is further responsible for ensuring that Rezidor Hotel Group AB’s organisation, management and guidelines for the administration of the
Company’s interests are structured appropriately and that there is
satisfactory internal control. The responsibilities of the Board also
include setting strategies and targets, establishing special control
instruments, deciding on larger acquisitions through business combinations and divestments of operations, deciding on other large
investments, deciding on deposits and loans in accordance with the
Finance Policy and issuing financial reports, as well as evaluating the
management of operations and planning managerial succession.
Aside from the activities of the Audit and Compensation
Committees, there has been no allocation of work among the
directors.

Activities of the Board 2006
According to current rules of procedures adopted by the Board, the
Board must convene at least four times a year in addition to the statutory board meeting and otherwise as necessary. In 2006 the Board
held 17 meetings. The main topics of discussion were as follows:
Keeping informed about the financial position of the Company
and the group;
Adopting a business plan;
Adopting policies;
	Evaluating internal control;
Monitoring the IPO process and reviewing and approving of the
prospectus for the Listing of the Company;
	Discussing and approving of certain hotel projects meeting defined criteria; and
	Evaluating a new Food & Beverage strategy.
The Board liaises with the auditors regarding plans for the audit
procedure and when audit reports are to be considered. Major
business areas are given an opportunity at least once a year to give
an indepth presentation of their operations at a Board meeting.
The Chairman of the Board
At an extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders held on
September 14th, 2006 Mr. Urban Jansson was elected Chairman.
The Board elected Mrs. Marilyn Carlson Nelson as vice Chairman
on November 9th, 2006.
It is the responsibility of the Chairman to monitor operations, in
consultation with the CEO, and ensure that other Board members
receive the information necessary to maintain a high level of quality
in discussions and decisions. The Chairman is responsible for evaluating the Board’s activity, and this evaluation is then shared with
the Nomination Committee. The Chairman also participates in
evaluation and development questions regarding the Group’s
Senior Executives.
Members of the Board of Directors
Pursuant to our articles of association, our Board of Directors shall
be elected at the Annual General Meeting and serve for a term
expiring at the next Annual General Meeting. The members of the
Board of Directors may be removed from office at any time by a
General Meeting of the shareholders, and vacancies on the Board
may only be filled by a resolution of shareholders.
At present, the Board of Directors is composed of nine directors,
including the Chairman and vice Chairman. The following table
presents the names of the current members, their current position,
the year of their election and their attendance at board meetings
during 2006. More information about the individual directors are
set forth on pages 08–09 of the Annual Report.

Attendance at
board
meetings1)

Attendance percentage4)

Member

Position

Year of
election

Urban Jansson

Chairman

2006

10

100%

Marilyn Carlson Nelson

v. Chairman

2006

8

100%

Monica Caneman

Director

2006

11

100%

Harald Einsmann

Director

2006

5

71%

Ulla Litzén

Director

2006

11

100%

Trudy Rautio

Director

2005

15

100%

Gunnar Reitan2)

Director

2005

16

94%

Jay S. Witzel3)

Director

2005

15

100%

Benny Zakrisson2)

Director

2005

16

94%

	The Board held 17 meetings during 2006 of which 7 were meetings in person, 5 were
telephone conference calls and 5 were per capsulam meetings (i.e. written resolutions in
lieu of a meeting).
2)
Mr. Reitan and Mr. Zakrisson both joined the Board of Directors of Rezidor Hotel Group AB
(publ) in 2005. Previously, they were members of the Board of Directors of each of our
previous parent companies, SAS International Hotels AS and Rezidor SAS Hospitality A/S.
3)
Mr. Witzel joined the Board of Directors of Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ) in 2005.
Previously, he was a member of the Board of Directors of our previous parent company
Rezidor SAS Hospitality A/S.
4)
Attendance percentage based on date of appointment.
1)

Independence of board members
None of the members of the Board of Directors are employed by
the Rezidor Hotel Group or any other company within the group.
Of the members of our Board of Directors Mr. Urban Jansson, Mrs.
Monica Caneman, Mrs. Ulla Litzén, Dr. Harald Einsmann, Mr. Gunnar
Reitan and Mr. Benny Zakrisson are independent directors in relation to the Company and the Management. Due to extensive business relations between Carlson and Rezidor, Mrs. Marilyn Carlson
Nelson, Jay Witzel and Trudy Rautio are not independent directors
to the Company and the Management. Mrs. Marilyn Carlson
Nelson, Mr. Jay Witzel, Mrs. Trudy Rautio and Dr. Harald Einsmann
are to be considered dependent of our shareholders, as they represent our owner Carlson which holds 35% of the shares of Rezidor
Hotel Group AB (publ).
Mr. Gunnar Reitan and Mr. Benny Zakrisson have each served on
the Boards of Directors of our predecessor companies for a total
of more than 12 years. However, Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ)
only became the parent company of our group in 2005, when
Carlson acquired a minority shareholding in Rezidor Hotel Group
AB, and, until then, they served on the Boards of Directors of companies that were wholly-owned by SAS. The role of our Board of
Directors as compared to the Boards of Directors of our predecessor entities also changed significantly in 2005, when Carlson became a minority shareholder, and changed further in connection
with the Listing, therefore, we do not believe that the prior board
memberships of Mr. Gunnar Reitan and Mr. Benny Zakrisson in our
predecessor companies will impact their independence.
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Labour unions representatives
Currently there are no employee representatives nominated as
board members.
Audit Committee
The Board of Directors elects the Chairman and members of the
Audit Committee. The members possess competence and experience
in the areas of accounting, auditing and/or risk management. No decision-making power has been bestowed on the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee shall convene at least once a year and
otherwise when the Chairman of the Board of Directors considers
it suitable. On August 16th, 2006 the Board decided that the Audit
Committee should comprise of Mrs. Trudy Rautio, Mr. Benny
Zakrisson and Mrs. Monica Caneman. Mrs. Monica Caneman was
elected as Chairman. On October 19th, 2006 the Board decided
that Mr. Urban Jansson should also be a member of the Audit
Committee. During 2006 the Audit Committee held 2 meetings.

Member

Attendance at
Committee meetings1)

Monica Caneman (Chairman)

2

Benny Zakrisson

2

Trudy Rautio

2

Urban Jansson

2

	The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during 2006.

1)

The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring the quality of the
financial and operational reporting. The Audit Committee also
evaluates the procedures for internal control and management of
financial and operational risks and meets with the auditors with
regular intervals in order to inform itself of the objectives and
scope for the external audit, evaluates the external auditor’s work
and performance, including the extent of the auditors possible
non-audit related work for Rezidor, and assists the Nomination
Committee in preparing proposals for election of auditors and the
remuneration of the auditing work. There is no renumeration for
the members of the Audit Committee.
Compensation Committee
The Compensation Committee shall consist of at least three members of the Board of Directors who may not be employees. The
members shall be independent in relation to the Company and the
Management. Of the current members, Mr. Jay Witzel is not independent but the Board of Directors has considered his extensive
knowledge of market practice in the hotel industry to be a valuable
contribution to the Compensation Committee’s work. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be a member and the
Chairman of the Compensation Committee. No decision-making
power has been bestowed on the Compensation Committee.
The Compensation Committee shall convene at least twice a
year, or as often as the Board of Directors, the Chairman or any
member so requires. Prior to August 16th, 2006 the Compensation
Committee consisted of Mr. Gunnar Reitan as Chairman, Mr. Benny
Zakrisson and Mr. Jay Witzel. On August 16th, 2006 the Board decided that the Compensation Committee should comprise of Mr.
Jay Witzel, Mr. Gunnar Reitan and Mrs. Ulla Litzén. Mr. Gunnar
Reitan was elected as Chairman. On October 19th, 2006 the Board
decided that Mr. Urban Jansson should be a member of the
Compensation Committee. The Board decided on December 18th,
2006 that Mr. Urban Jansson would replace Mr.Gunnar Reitan as
the Chairman of the Compensation Committee. During 2006, the
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Compensation Committee held 2 formal meetings and in addition
members of the Compensation Committee have had informal contacts on compensation issues during the course of the year.
Attendance at Committee meetings1)

Member
Gunnar Reitan (Chairman until 18th December 2006)

2

Ulla Litzén

2

Jay Witzel

2

Urban Jansson (Chairman as of 18th December 2006)

2

	The Compensation Committee held 2 meetings during 2006.

1)

The Compensation Committee is responsible for preparing matters
concerning compensation and other employment benefits for the
Management and key officers of the group, for final resolution by our
Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee also participates
in the preparation of proposals for the adoption of any share- or option-based incentive programmes within the Rezidor group. There is
no renumeration for the members of the Compensation Committee.
Remuneration of the Board of Directors
The amount of remuneration granted to the Board of Directors,
including the Chairman, is determined by a resolution at the Annual
General Meeting.
Compensation for the Board’s work of 2006 was taken by a
resolution at the extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders on
August 16th, 2006. The annual fee to the Chairman should be TSEK
350 and the annual fee to other members should be TSEK 125. In
addition, each member of the Board is paid TSEK 30 for each meeting attended. The members of the Board are not entitled to any
benefits upon ceasing to serve as a member of the Board.

Member
Urban Jansson
(Chairman)

Annual fees,
SEK accrued
as of Dec. 31,
2006

Compensation1)
for board meetings attended in
2006, SEK

Total, SEK

116,666

150,000

266,666

Marilyn Carlson Nelson
(Vice Chairman)

41,666

150,000

191,666

Monica Caneman

46,875

180,000

226,875

Harald Einsmann

41,666

90,000

131,666

Ulla Litzén

46,875

180,000

226,875

Trudy Rautio

46,875

180,000

226,875

Gunnar Reitan

56,250

180,000

236,250

Jay S. Witzel

46,875

180,000

226,875

Benny Zakrisson

46,875

180,000

226,875

Total
1)

490,623

1,470,000 1,960,623

As of 16th August 2006.

The Executive Committee
In consultation with the Chairman of the Board, the CEO prepares
necessary information and basic documentation on the basis of
which the Board can make well-founded decisions. He presents
matters and motivates proposed decisions, as well as reporting to
the Board on the development of the Company. The CEO is responsible for leading the work conducted by the Executive
Committee and renders decisions in consultation with the other
members of the Executive Committee, which consists of a total of
ten persons (including the CEO). More information about the CEO
is set forth on page 10 of the Annual Report.

The following table sets forth the names of the members of our
Executive Committee, the year of employment, appointment to
the Executive Committee, as applicable, and their current positions. A full presentation of the Executive Committee is found on
page 10–11.

Member

Year of Appointment
to the Executive
Committee
(Year of Employment)

Kurt Ritter

1989 (1976)

President and Chief Executive
Officer

Knut Kleiven

1994 (1986)

Deputy President and Chief
Financial Officer

Thorsten Kirschke

2006 (1995)

Senior Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Gordon McKinnon

2002 (2002)

Executive Vice President,
Brands

Martin Rinck

2003 (2003)

Executive Vice President and
Chief Development Officer

Jacques Dubois

2006 (1996)

Senior Vice President,
Park Inn Hotels

Olivier Jacquin

2006 (2003)

Senior Vice President,
Sales, Marketing, CRM and
Distribution

Position

Per Blixt

2006 (2006)

Head of Corporate Communication and Investor Relations

Beathe-Jeanette
Lunde

2006 (1986)

Senior Vice President, People
Development and Radisson
SAS Franchise Operations

Marianne Ruhngård

2006 (2000)

Senior Vice President and
General Counsel, Secretary
of the Board

Remuneration of the Executive Committee
The remuneration granted to the Chief Executive Officer and the
other members of the Executive Committee consists of a fixed
salary, a variable bonus based on financial performance objectives,
pension and other benefits. Details on the compensation to the
CEO and the other members of the Executive Committee can be
found in Note 10 of the Annual Report, but a summary is presented
in the table below.
Member
TEUR
Kurt Ritter (CEO)
The Executive Committee
(excl. CEO) (9 persons)
Total

Fixed
salary

Bonus

Pension and
other benefits

Total

593

982

297

1,872

3,072

1,823

657

5,552

3,666

2,805

954

7,425

The remuneration numbers exclude social security costs.

Share-related Incentive Programme
The Board of Directors will to the Annual General Meeting 2007
propose a share-related incentive programme. The incentive programme will be targeted to key members of the Management and
aim to further increase commitment and loyalty and to align the
interests of the shareholders and key personnel in order to increase
the value of the Company. The Board of Directors’ proposal will take
into consideration market practice among international peers in the
hotel industry as well as practice for Swedish listed companies.
There has been no share-related incentive programme for the financial year 2006, other than as disclosed in the prospectus prepared for
the Listing and which was terminated in connection with the Listing.

Financial reporting
The Board monitors the quality of financial reporting through instructions to the CEO and reporting instructions via the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee processes all financial statements published by the Company. The Board as a whole prepares
the Company’s quarterly reports and year-end report. The Board
as a whole is responsible for the Company’s financial statements
being prepared in accordance with legislation, accounting standards and other requirements for listed companies.
The CEO has the task, with the Chief Financial Officer, to review
and assure the quality of all financial reporting including financial
statements, interim reports and the annual financial statements,
press releases with financial content and presentation material issued to the media, owners and financial institutions.
With respect to the communication with the auditors, the auditors are present at the Board Meeting where the Company’s yearend Financial Report are approved. In addition, the Board has met
with the Company’s auditors to review their audit of the Company
for the financial year 2006. The Board has also met with the
Company’s auditors without the CEO or other members of the
Company’s Executive Committee being present.
Auditors
Auditors in Swedish limited companies are elected by the Annual
General Meeting and tasked with scrutinizing the Company’s financial reporting and management of the Company by the Board and
the CEO. Pursuant to the Swedish Companies Act, the term for auditors in Swedish limited companies is four years. Since the appointment at the Annual General Meeting 2005, and up until the Annual
General Meeting 2009, the Group’s statutory auditor is Deloitte AB
with Mr. Peter Gustafsson as the responsible partner. Deloitte is
part of Deloitte Touche Tomatsu, with global operations in auditing
and other consulting services. Mr. Gustafsson (born 1956) is a
member of FAR-SRS, the Swedish professional institute for authorised public accountants and approved public accountants. Mr. Peter
Gustafsson has been an authorised public accountant since 1986.
Prior to 2005, Deloitte Statsautoriseret Revisionsaktieselskab A/S
was the Group’s statutory auditor with Mr. Ove Nielsen as responsible partner. Besides Rezidor Hotel Group, Peter Gustafsson has
audit engagements with SAAB Automobile, Teleca Technology,
Ekman, Nexus, SAS AB, Akademiska Hus, Ports of Stockholm, Port
of Gothenburg and Förvaltnings AB Framtiden. Peter Gustafsson
was previously an auditor at Elanders, Connex Transport and Song
Networks, among others.
The auditors follow an audit plan that incorporates the comments and concerns of the Board, and report their observations to
the Board during the course of the audit and in conjunction with
the establishment of the 2006 Annual Report in 2007. The auditor
attended all meetings of the Audit Committee during the year. On
one occasion the Board met with the Company’s auditor without
the CEO or anyone else from the Company Management present.
Deloitte submits an audit report regarding Rezidor Hotel Group AB,
the Group and an overwhelming majority of subsidiaries. During
the year of 2006 the auditors have had consulting assignments
outside the audit, mainly concerning issues related to the IPO, to
interpretation of IFRS and ad hoc tax advice.
Compensation
The auditor’s receives a fee for their work in accordance with a
decision of the Annual General Meeting. For information about the
auditor’s fee in 2006, see note 32, page 55.
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Corporate Governance
Board of Directors

Harald Einsmann

Board member (since 2006)
Nationality:

German

Born:

1934

Education:

Doctor of Philosophy degree in Economics, Business
Administration and Law

Shareholding:1)

0

Dr. Harald Einsmann is a member of our Board of Directors. Mr. Einsmann is currently a member of the Boards of Directors of Tesco PLC, Checkpoint Systems,
Inc. and Carlson Companies. During the past five years, Dr. Einsmann has served
as a member of the Boards of Directors of Stora Enso Corporation, EMI Group plc
and British American Tobacco plc.

Ulla Litzén

Board member (since 2006)

Urban Jansson

Chairman of the Board (since 2006)

Nationality:

Swedish

Born:

1956

Education:

Master of Science degree in Business Administration
from the Stockholm School of Economics and a
Masters in Business Administration degree from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
10,000 shares

Nationality:

Swedish

Born:

1945

Education:

Higher Bank degree (Skandinaviska Banken)

Shareholding:1)

Shareholding:1)

20,000 shares

Independent Board Member

Independent Board Member
Urban Jansson is the Chairman of our Board of Directors. Mr. Jansson is the
Chairman of the Boards of Directors of Siemens AB, AB Elspiraler (Tylö), Jetpak
Group AB, and the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ahlstrom Corporation. He is also a member of the Boards of Directors of SEB AB (publ), Addtech
AB, Beckers AB, Clas Ohlsson AB (publ), HMS Network Holdings AB, Ferd A/S and
CapMan Plc. Mr. Jansson has been a member of the Listing Committee of the
Stockholm Stock Exchange since 1999.

Ulla Litzén is a member of our Board of Directors. She is also a member of the
Boards of Directors of Alfa Laval AB (publ), Atlas Copco AB (publ), Boliden AB
(publ), Karo Bio (publ) and AB SKF (publ). Ms Litzén has worked as CEO and
member of the Management of Investor AB 1996–2001 and as President of W
Capital Management AB 2001–2006.

Trudy Rautio

Board member (since 2005)

Marilyn Carlson Nelson

Vice Chairman of the Board (since 2006)
Nationality:

American

Born:

1939

Education:

Bachelor of Arts degree from Smith College

Shareholding:1)

0

Marilyn Carlson Nelson is the Vice Chairman of our Board of Directors. Mrs.
Nelson is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Carlson, a global hotel, cruise,
restaurant and marketing company. She serves on the Exxon Mobil Corporation
and the Mayo Foundation Boards of Directors. In addition, she is Vice Chairman of
the U.S. Travel and Tourism advisory board and serves on the Singapore Tourism
Board. Mrs. Nelson is a Past National Chairman of the Travel Industry Association
of America, and she was a delegate to the White House Conference on Tourism.

Nationality:

American

Born:

1952

Education:

Masters in Business Administration degree from
University of St. Thomas

Shareholding:1)

0

Trudy Rautio is a member of our Board of Directors. Ms. Rautio is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Carlson, and is an officer of
various subsidiaries within Carlson. Prior to her appointment as the Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in 2005, Ms. Rautio held various other
positions in Carlson from 1997 to 2005. She is currently a member of the Boards
of Directors of Securian (Minnesota Life Insurance Company), HIRED and Carlson
Wagonlit Travel.

Gunnar Reitan

Board member (since 2005)

Monica Caneman

Board member (since 2006)

Nationality:

Norwegian

Born:

1954

Education:

Business Administration degree from Trondheim
Økonomiske Högskole
0

Nationality:

Swedish

Born:

1954

Education:

Master of Science degree in Business Administration

Shareholding:1)

Shareholding:1)

10,000 shares

Independent Board Member

Independent Board Member
Monica Caneman is a member of our Board of Directors. Ms. Caneman is the
Chairman of the Boards of Directors of LinkMed AB and Point Scandinavia AB and
a member of the Boards of Directors of Citymail AB, Investment AB, Öresund AB
(publ), Lindorff Group AB, Nya Livförsäkrings AB, SEB TryggLiv, Orexo AB (publ),
Poolia AB (publ), Xponcard Group AB (publ), EDB Business Partner ASA, Schibstedt ASA and SJ AB. Ms. Caneman has worked at Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken
for the past 25 years, where she has held various senior management positions,
including the position of Executive Vice President.
1)

As of December 31, 2006.

0

Gunnar Reitan is a member of our Board of Directors. Mr. Reitan is Executive
Vice President & Deputy CEO of SAS AB (publ). He is currently a member of
the Boards of Directors of Vital Forsikring ASA, Leif Høegh & Co. Ltd, Northern
Logistic Property ASA (Chairman), Air Baltic Corp.(Chairman), Estonian Air,
Spanair S.A., Club de Vacaciones, S.A., Newco S.A. and British Midland PLC. He
is also the Chairman of the Boards of Directors of SAS Cargo Group, Blue1 and
Widerøe.

The Board of Directors and the CEO

Jay S. Witzel

Benny Zakrisson

Board member (since 2005)
Nationality:

Swedish

Born:

1959

Education:

LL.M. from University of Stockholm

Shareholding:1)

10,000 shares

Independent Board Member

Jay S. Witzel

Board member (since 2005)
Nationality:

American

Born:

1947

Education:

Degrees in Economics and Business Administration

Shareholding:1)

0

Jay S. Witzel is a member of our Board of Directors. Mr. Witzel is the President
and Chief Executive Officer of Carlson Hotels Worldwide Inc. and is an officer
and/or director of various subsidiaries in the Carlson group. He is also a member
of the board directors of the American Hotel & Lodging Association (“AH&LA”)
and the AH&LA Educational Institute.

Benny Zakrisson is a member of our Board of Directors. Mr. Zakrisson is Senior
Vice President, Corporate Advisory of SAS AB (publ). Mr. Zakrisson is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of SAS Trading AB. Mr. Zakrisson is also a member
of the Boards of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Linjeflyg AB, Swedair
AB and Scandinavian Commuter AB. He is also a member of the Boards of Directors of SAS Sverige AB, SAS Danmark A/S, SAS Norge AS, airBaltic Corp A/S, AS
Estonian Air, Nordair A/S, Spirit Air Cargo Handling, Danmark A/S, Tekågel Invest
92 AS, SAS Technical Services AB, SAS Consortium (Denmark-Norway-Sweden),
SAS Investments Denmark A/S, RASN A/S, Spirit Air Cargo Handling Group AB
and J.B. Finfina Investments AB. Mr. Zakrisson is also a deputy member of the
Boards of Directors of Skärsjövålens Fjällanläggning AB, Giat AB, Sonfjället Invest
AB, Hokus i Stockholm AB and Klotet AB.
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Corporate Governance
Executive Committee and
Area Vice Presidents

Thorsten Kirschke

Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer (since 2006)
Nationality:

German

Born:

1964

Education:

MBA degree in Hospitality Industry from Cornell Essec
University in France.

Shareholding:1)

5,000 shares

Mr. Kirschke joined us in 1995 in Corporate Food & Beverage and has since then
held various managerial positions in operations and food and beverage functions.
Since 2002, Mr. Kirschke has served in the position of Area Vice President of
Germany, Austria, Switzerland, South East Europe, Switzerland and Italy.

Gordon McKinnon

Executive Vice President of Brands (since 2006)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Kurt Ritter

President and Chief Executive Officer (since 1989)

Nationality:

Scottish

Born:

1960

Shareholding:1)

0

Mr. McKinnon joined us in 2002 as Vice President of Brands & Concept Development.
He was one of the founding team members of Malmaison Hotels, Bars and Brasseries,
and served as the CEO (Board member position) of the Malmaison Brand Company.
Prior to joining Malmaison in 1999, Mr. McKinnon has held several leadership positions in marketing and communications companies in the United Kingdom.

Nationality:

Swiss

Born:

1947

Education:

Ecole Hôtelière de Lausanne in Switzerland and INSEAD
Advanced Management Programme at Fontainebleau
in France.

Martin Rinck

20,000 shares

Nationality:

German

Born:

1964

Education:

Masters degree in Business Administration from Brunel
University in London.

Board Engagements:

Mr. Rinck is a member of the Board of Directors
of Nordrus Hotel Holdings A/S and Afrinord Hotel
Investments A/S.

Shareholding:1)

10,000 shares

Shareholding:1), 2)

Mr. Ritter joined us in 1976 as the General Manager of SAS Hotel, Luleå in Sweden, and has since then held various Executive Management positions in business
development and operations. Prior to joining us, Mr. Ritter started his executive
career at Bellevue Palace Hotel in Bern, Switzerland and has also held several
executive positions at Ramada International Hotels in Belgium, France, Germany
and Sweden. Mr. Ritter was awarded an Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration in Hospitality by Johnson & Wales University, Prudence, USA in 1997 and
he was named Corporate Hotelier of the World in 2002. In 2005, he received the
Lifetime Achievement Award at the International Hotels Investment Conference.

Knut Kleiven

Executive Vice President and Chief Development Officer (since 2005)

Mr. Rinck joined us in 2003 as Senior Vice President of Business Development,
prior to which, Mr. Rinck was the Chief Executive Officer of Mövenpick Gastronomy International. Mr. Rinck has previously held various executive leadership
positions with InterContinental Hotels Group as well as Mandarin Oriental Hotels.

Deputy President and Chief Financial Officer (since 1994)

Jacques Dubois

Nationality:

Norwegian

Born:

1954

Senior Vice President of Park Inn Hotels (since 2006)

Education:

Degree in Philosophy, Psychology and Law from
University of Oslo, Norway.

Nationality:

Canadian/American

Born:

1956

Mr. Kleiven is a member of the Boards of Directors
of Feri Otelcilik ve Turizm A.S., Casino Denmark A/S,
Casino Copenhagen K/S, SAS Royal Hotel, Beijing Co.,
Ltd., Hotel Investment Turkey A/S, Maçka Otelcilik
Anonim Sirketi, Doriscus Enterprises Limited and
Afrinord Hotel Investments A/S (Alternate Director).
During the past five years, Mr. Kleiven has also been
a member of the Board of Directors of Copenhagen
International Hotels K/S.

Shareholding1):

0

Board Engagements:

Shareholding:1)

10,000 shares

Mr. Kleiven joined us in 1986 as the Group Accounting Manager and soon became
the group’s Operational and Corporate Controller. In 1994, Mr. Kleiven was appointed as our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining
Rezidor, Mr. Kleiven held the position of Internal Auditor for the SAS group.

Mr. Dubois joined us in 1996 as Regional Director of Operations, and has since then
held several senior positions in our operations, sales and revenue management.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Dubois was a district director of the Carlson Companies
under the Radisson brand.

Olivier Jacquin

Senior Vice President of Sales, Marketing, CRM and Distribution (since 2006)
Nationality:

French

Born:

1966

Education:

Sales and Marketing degree from Institut Supérieur
Européen de Gestion in Paris, and a graduate of
l’Ecole de Gestion Commerce de Toulouse.

Shareholding:1)

0

Mr. Jacquin joined us in 2003 as Senior Vice President of Sales, prior to which, he was
the Global Sales Director of Europcar International, Director of Sales for Concorde
Hotels Group and Director of Sales & Marketing for Concorde La Fayette hotel in Paris.

As of December 31st, 2006.
	Including close relatives.

1)
2)
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Excecutive Committee

Marianne Ruhngård

Senior Vice President and General Counsel (since 2000) and Secretary to
the Board (since 2006)
Nationality:

Swedish

Born:

1960

Education:

LL.M. from University of Uppsala. Diplomas in
English, Russian and Natural Sciences from University
of Uppsala, in European Community Law from
University of Lund and a post-graduate diploma in EC
Competition Law from King’s College in London.

Shareholding:1)

0

Area Vice Presidents

Per Blixt

Head of Corporate Communication and Investor Relations (since 2006)
Nationality:

Swedish

Born:

1959

Education:

Studies in Communication and Law, University of Lund,
Sweden.

Board Engagements:

Mr. Blixt is currently Chairman of the Board of Directors
of Aspekta AB and a member of the Board of Directors
of Prognosesenteret AS.

Shareholding:1)

2,600 shares

Prior to joining us, Mr. Blixt was the Senior Vice President of Corporate Communication and Investor Relations of Observer AB (publ).

Beathe-Jeanette Lunde

Ms. Ruhngård joined us in 2000 and has since held the position as Vice President
and General Counsel. Prior to joining us, Ms. Ruhngård was employed from August
1992 to March 2000 by PLM AB (publ.) in Sweden where she held the position of
Associate General Counsel. Prior to August 1992 Marianne Ruhngård practised as
a court clerk at the Uppsala County Administrative Court and as a Junior Judge at
the Administrative Court of Appeal in Stockholm.

AREA VICE PRESIDENTS
We have structured our operational responsibility according to 5 regions, where
the AVPs have Regional Directors reporting to them.
Year of
employment

Year of
appointment

Thorsten
Kirschke

1995

2002

Senior Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer,
Area Vice President Germany, Switzerland, Austria,
Italy and Benelux

Christian
Gartmann

1967

2003

Area Vice President UK,
Ireland, Iceland, France,
Poland and Tunisia

Martin
Creydt

2003

2003

Area Vice President
Scandinavia

Michel
Stalport

1993

2006

Area Vice President Russia,
other CIS-countries, Baltics,
Turkey and Azerbaijan

Jean-Marc
Busato

2002

2002

Area Vice President,
the Middle East

Name

Senior Vice President of People Development and Radisson SAS Franchise
Operations (since 2006)
Nationality:

Norwegian

Born:

1962

Education:

Hospitality Diploma from the University in Stavanger,
Norway and a post-graduate diploma in Business
Administration at Heriott Watt University in Edinburgh.

Shareholding:1)

0

Mrs. Lunde joined us in 1986 and has since then served in several senior positions
in operations, corporate human resources and franchise operations. Prior to
joining us, Mrs. Lunde was employed by Conoco Norway Inc. and the Norwegian
Industry Association for Oil Companies.

Position
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Internal Control

The purpose of this report is to give shareholders and other stakeholders a better view and understanding of how internal control
over financial reporting at Rezidor Hotel Group AB is organised.
Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves
the Board and in particular the Audit Committee appointed by the
Board, company management and personnel and is designed to
provide assurance of reliability in external reporting.
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Swedish
Code of Corporate Governance and guidelines compiled by FAR
and the Confederation of Swedish Enterprise and is therefore limited to internal control over financial reporting. In accordance with
the statement from the Council for Swedish Corporate Governance,
this internal control report is restricted to a description of how the
internal control is organised and makes no statement on how well
it functioned during the fiscal year 2006.
Rezidor Hotel Group AB applies the COSO framework as a base
for the internal control structure.
The Board evaluates annually the need for and organisation of an
internal audit process. The current structure of the process for
2006 and 2007 has been approved by the Board. The process is
managed from the Rezidor corporate office in Brussels with internal audit training and support by the external auditors. Accounting
and control policies and procedures are also prepared, updated and
distributed from the Rezidor corporate office.
This report supplements the Annual Report. It has not been reviewed by the company’s auditors.
The Internal control over financial reporting is described
below in five areas that jointly form the basis of a sound control
structure.
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Control Environment
The control environment forms the basis of internal control. The
control environment includes the culture that the company communicates and operates from in a number of areas. The company
values include reliability and openness. It is important that all actions, internal as well as external, reflect these basic values. The
company’s Code of Conduct has been distributed to all employees
and describes the required attitudes in various situations.
The company’s Board of Directors has appointed an Audit
Committee with the objective to ensure the quality of the company’s financial and operational reporting.
In addition the Audit Committee evaluates the procedures for
internal control and the management of financial and operational risks.
The Board has also issued specific instructions for the CEO.
The company has created a framework that describes the compulsory internal control policies applicable to all brands, all legal
entities and all managed hotels within the Group. This document is
the core of the Group’s financial management system, and it outlines the procedures for the planning, delegation and follow-up of
internal control. The document is also a tool for information and
education.
One of the principal requirements of internal control is the necessity of written documentation to evidence compliance with the
compulsory policies.
Another principal purpose is to establish responsibilities and authority within the hotels and across all levels of the Group. This is
achieved through job descriptions for the hotel General Managers
and Financial Controllers and regional and corporate reviews and
analyses of the individual hotels’ performance on a monthly basis.
The policy document and other guidelines is accessible on the
intranet and continuously updated to comply with accounting and
audit regulations.
The company is also committed to competence and ensures that
employees, including those in finance and accounting functions,
receive the appropriate training. Other control measures in effect
are specific accounting procedures, human resources manual, quality performance checks, mystery shoppers (quality performance
review) and hotel reviews performed regularly by regional operational and financial management.
Risk Assessment
Company management performs an annual risk assessment regarding financial reporting. The external auditors provide feedback
and may suggest additional considerations for the risk assessment.
The risk assessment has identified a number of critical processes
such as revenue, purchasing, payroll, financial reporting, IT, related

party transactions, cash handling procedures, stock and inventory
controls, receivables controls, bank relations and processes, legal
requirements regarding operational licensing and insurance. Within
these processes, the internal audits cover, as applicable, segregation of duties, authorisation for payment, contract handling, cost
control, registration of revenues and follow-up routines. The annual plan for internal control is developed based on the risk
assessment.
The risk assessment can be adjusted during the year to ensure
that changes are managed in the process.
The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors analyse and
approve the previous years result from the internal audit and the
internal audit plan for the following year.
Control activities
Controls have been implemented throughout the organisation to
ensure that risks are managed as intended by the Board, including
financial reporting risk, IT risks and fraud risks.
Managers and financial department employees in the hotels
perform controls as part of their daily business in order to comply
with central as well as local policies and guidelines.
Regular internal audits are performed to ensure that controls
operate as intended. These audits are scheduled and performed
based on the company’s formal risk assessment.
Action plans are implemented and followed up to improve control activities that are lacking or found to be ineffective.
The company has established specific anti-fraud programmes
and controls, and these procedures are well known throughout
the company.
The specific internal audits of hotels and administrative units are
primarily aimed at internal control within operation and administration with focus on processes that impact financial reporting and
risk of irregularities, improper favouritism of another party at the
company’s expense, and the risk of losses.
The teams for the internal audits consist of independent persons
from the Group supported by the external auditors. All participants
in these internal audit teams receive training by the Group’s external auditors.
Information and communication
Employees’ individual responsibilities for maintaining internal control have been clearly communicated in the Group. Every manager
is responsible for ensuring that employees have received and understood relevant information to perform their tasks.
Accounting principles and procedures for operational and financial reporting are known by those responsible for applying them,
and updates are communicated regularly.

General Managers, Regional Directors and Area Vice Presidents
report operations and financial information on a monthly basis to
the Executive Committee.
Management receives the operations and financial information
they require in a timely manner, and the company has procedures
for adapting to changing information needs as the competitive
and/or regulatory environment evolves.
The information systems are continuously evaluated, and the
company has established strategic plans related to future upgrades
and information system needs.
The results from the internal audits are communicated throughout the organisation in order to benchmark and improve internal
control procedures.
The yearly audit plans and results of the audits are submitted
periodically to the Executive Committee of the Group and to the
Audit Committee.
Rezidor Hotel Group AB’s goal is that internal control policies are
known and followed in the Group. Policies and guidelines regarding
the financial process are communicated to all parties in the Group
affected through direct distribution via electronic mail and via the
Group’s intranet, where all policies and guidelines are available.
Regulations related to a public company’s external information
to investors and stakeholders are known by those responsible for
applying them.
To ensure that the submission of external information is correct
and complete, there is an information policy regarding disclosures
to the stock exchange as well as an investor relations policy that
have been laid down by the Board of Directors of the Group. These
policies state what, in what manner and how information is being
dealt with.
Monitoring
Regular internal meetings are used on different levels in the organisation for management and employees.
The Executive Committee and the Board monitor the company’s
operations and financial reporting on a monthly basis.
All recommendations and/or action plans from external auditors,
internal audits and other internal control activities are reviewed by
the Audit Committee and the Board, and the company as well as
the individual hotels and units respond to such recommendations
and/or action plans in a timely manner.
The resources and authority of those responsible for performing
internal control reviews are adequate considering the size and
complexity of the organisation.
Those responsible for performing internal control reviews adhere to the professional standards established by the Institute of
Internal Auditors.
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The Rezidor share

Rezidor Hotel Group AB was listed on the Stockholm Stock
Exchange’s Nordic list on November 28th, 2006. At the time of
the listing, SAS Group sold almost its entire shareholding in the
company and thereby decreased its holding from 75% to 6.7%.
Carlson Companies, that previously had an ownership of 25%,
purchased an additional 10% from SAS Group in connection with
the listing. Thereby the Carlson Companies, through Carlson
Hotel Worldwide Inc. and Carlson Summit Inc., became the largest shareholder in Rezidor Hotel Group AB with 35% of the share
capital.
The initial share price was determined through a book-building
process among institutional investors to SEK 52 per share.
Rezidor Hotel Group AB is quoted on the Mid-Cap segment and
belongs to the industry Hotel, Restaurant & Leisure, sector
Consumer Discretionary.
share development
The Rezidor share rose 13% during the period, (approximately
within a month) the share was traded in 2006, to SEK 58.75 on
the closing date for the fiscal year. In comparison, the Stockholm
Stock Exchange as a whole (OMX Stockholm) rose by 9% and
the index for Hotel, Restaurant & Leisure (SX253010) rose
by 7%, during the period from November 28th to December
31th, 2006.

Share capital
No new shares were issued in connection to the listing. Thereby no
new capital was brought into Rezidor Hotel Group AB. At the end
of 2006 the share capital amounted to EUR 126,584 distributed
among 150,002,040 shares with a par value of around EUR
0.00084. According to the articles of association all shares shall be
of the same share class and be stated in EUR. Each share entitles
the holder to one vote and all shares carry equal rights to the participation in the assets and profit of Rezidor.
Share related incentive programme
The Board of Directors will to the Annual General Meeting 2007
propose a share-related incentive programme. The incentive programme will be targeted to key members of the Management and
aim to further increase commitment and loyalty and to align the
interests of the shareholders and key personnel in order to increase
the value of the Company. The Board of Directors’ proposal will take
into consideration market practice among international peers in the
hotel industry as well as practice for Swedish listed companies.
There has been no share-related incentive programme for the
financial year 2006, other than as disclosed in the prospectus prepared for the Listing and which was terminated in connection with
the Listing.

Turnover
During December 2006, a total of 36.7 million shares were traded.
This corresponded to a turnover of 24% of the total number of
Rezidor shares in a single month. This is a high turnover rate compared to Stockholm Stock Exchange on average where 145% of the
market value was traded in the full year of 2006.

2006
8,850

No. of shares traded, million

Dividend policy
The Board’s dividend policy is that approximately one third of the
annual after-tax income should be distributed to the shareholders.
The size of future dividends will be determined according to
Rezidor’s long term growth as well as financial position in general.
The Board’s suggestion regarding dividend for 2006 amounted to
EUR 0.06 per share corresponding to 31.1% of profit after tax.

77.5

No. of shares at year-end, million

150

Cash flow from the year’s operations per share, EUR

0.27

Proposed dividend per share, EUR

0.06

Dividend percent of earnings after tax, %

31.1

Equity per share, EUR

1.18

Market price at year-end, SEK
Highest market price during the year, SEK
Lowest market price during the year, SEK
Earnings per share1), EUR

1)
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Key data per share
Market capitalisation per Dec 29th, MSEK

Before allocation to minority interest.
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Number of shareholders

Number of shares

% of share capital

% of all shareholders

1,978

482,780

0.3

51.2

501–1,000

982

750,669

0.5

25.3

1,001–10,000

677

2,154,478

1.4

17.4

10,001–50,000

93

2,493,144

1.7

2.4

50,001–100,000

36

2,658,949

1.8

0.9

107

141,462,140

94.3

2.8

3,874

150,002,040

100.0

100.0

1-500

100,001–
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Rezidor is focusing on hotel management and has divested its hotel
properties. Currently, all hotels in Rezidor’s portfolio are either operated by Rezidor itself under a lease or a management agreement,
or by a separate operator using one of the Rezidor brands under a
franchise agreement. Of the 225 hotels in operation as of
December 31, 2006, 63 were leased, 91 were under management
agreements and 71 under franchise agreements.
Important Developments During 2006

The Board of Directors and the President and CEO of Rezidor Hotel
Group AB, corporate registration number 556674-0964 hereby
submit the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
for the financial year 2006.
Operations
Rezidor is one of the fastest growing hotel companies in the world.
The hotels in the portfolio are principally operated under two key
brands, Radisson SAS and Park Inn, and in addition under three development brands, Regent, Hotel Missoni and Country Inn.
As of December 31st, 2006, Rezidor had 225 hotels in operation
and 54 hotels under development, mainly located in the EMEA
(Europe, the Middle East and Africa) area. This corresponds to
57,611 rooms of which 12,148 were under development. The aim
is to grow by adding 20,000 new hotel rooms into operation during
the three-year period from 2007 through 2009.
Rezidor develops and licenses the Radisson, Park Inn, Regent and
Country Inn brands in the EMEA area under Master Franchise
Agreements with Carlson, a leading U.S. travel and hospitality company. Rezidor benefits from Carlson’s global brand infrastructure, reservation system and other business initiatives. The licenses from Carlson
are in effect until 2052, including Rezidor’s extension options.
Rezidor operates a carefully diversified portfolio of brands
covering most of the hotel market segments: luxury, lifestyle,
first-class full service, and mid-market full service. Of the key
brands, Radisson SAS is a first-class, full service brand, whereas
Park Inn is a mid-market, full service brand. Of the development
brands, Regent is a traditional luxury brand, Hotel Missoni is a
lifestyle brand developed in partnership with the Italian fashion
house Missoni and Country Inn is to be developed into a limited
service brand.

Hotel inventory as of Dec 31, 2006
Number of hotels

Global Market Development*)
2006 was a good year for the hotel industry. The strong economic
environment had a positive impact on both business travel and
tourism in most parts of the world.
The European market, where the majority of Rezidor hotels are
located, has witnessed improved performance in 2006. RevPAR
grew by 8.5%, driven largely by average house rate. Many key cities
in Europe and Russia marked high RevPAR growth, including Berlin
(19.1%), Warsaw (18.0%), London (17.3%), Moscow (16.9%), Paris
(12.6%), Amsterdam (11.7%), Vienna (10.6%), Brussels (9.5%),
Stockholm (8.8%) and Copenhagen (6.8%).
International arrivals to the Middle East have shown continued growth as many countries in the region continue to promote
themselves as business and leisure destinations. Driven by higher room rates, the hotels in the Middle East posted a RevPAR
growth of 12.7% – making it one of the fastest growing regions
in the world.
Financial Development
Revenues
Revenues for the full year increased by 20.5%, or MEUR 120.3, and
amounted to MEUR 707.3 (587.0). Of this increase, like-for-like
leased hotels contributed MEUR 47.6. The growth in revenue is
explained by increased demand, which resulted in higher occupancy rates and increased prices. The revenue growth is also explained by the increase in available rooms, which is a result of
Rezidor’s long-term growth strategy, in combination with continued and active management of the hotel portfolio.
RevPAR (for leased and managed hotels) for Radisson SAS and
Park Inn went up by 9.9% and 6.8% respectively, giving a weighted
average RevPAR growth of 7.5%, or EUR 72 (67) with an occupancy rate of 69% (67).
In the Nordic Region, revenue grew by 7.4% to MEUR 313.8
(292.3), mainly due to the existing leased properties in Norway and
Sweden. Fees from managed and franchised hotels went up by
2.5% and 7.6% respectively due to improved performance.

*) Source: HotelBenchmark™ by Deloitte, growth rates are Euro based.

Rezidor
total

Radisson SAS

Park Inn

Country Inn

Regent

Missoni/
Lifestyle

Unbranded

279

189

77

4

4

3

2

225

155

62

4

2

–

2

Number of rooms

57,611

41,657

13,889

349

1,024

423

269

Number of rooms trading

269

Number of hotels in operation

45,463

34,267

10,174

349

404

–

Countries

47

47

17

4

3

2

2

Occupancy, %1)

69

71

64

–2)

–2)

–2)

–2)

RevPAR, EUR 1)

72

78

47

–2)

–2)

–2)

–2)

Including hotels in operation and under development, except indicated otherwise.
	Including leased and managed hotels in operation.
	Due to few hotels under these brands these figures have not been disclosed.

1)
2)
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Due to Rezidor’s ongoing geographic diversification, for the first
time, the Rest of Western Europe overtook the Nordic Region in
terms of revenue in 2006. In the Rest of Western Europe revenue
grew by 32.6% to 366.7 (276.5), an increase of MEUR 90.2. Likefor-like hotels contributed more than half of the incremental revenue. Most of the hotels leased by Rezidor in this segment are
located in the UK, Benelux, France and Germany, markets that in
general enjoyed a healthy RevPAR growth in 2006.
In Eastern Europe, revenue grew by 38.4% to MEUR 17.3 (12.5).
Rezidor has an ambitious expansion plan in Russia and the other CIS
countries with a portfolio of 21 hotels with over 6,000 rooms in
operation and under development by the end of 2006. Over 90%
of the incremental revenue came from managed hotels, which included the addition of 6 new properties (approx. 1,900 rooms)
during 2005–2006.
In the Middle East, Africa and Other region revenue was reported at MEUR 9.4 (5.8), an increase of MEUR 3.6 or 62.1%. During
2005–2006, five hotels (approx. 1,100 rooms) were added to the
portfolio contributing positively to the regional result.
EBITDA
The group EBITDA improved by 39.6%, before IPO related costs,
to MEUR 61.0 (43.7), with EBITDA margin increasing to 8.6%
(7.4). Nearly half of this growth is attributable to leased hotels
that are all situated in the Nordic region and the Rest of Western
Europe. Managed hotels contributed approximately one third of
the EBITDA growth. Those properties benefited from improved
market conditions and operational performance resulting in better margins. Additionally, the reduced fee structure with Carlson
for the use of their brand names contributed positively to the
EBITDA growth.

In the Nordic Region, EBITDA before central costs, grew by MEUR
7.9 or 18.8% to MEUR 49.9. Of the incremental EBITDA, leased
hotels contributed nearly two-thirds of the total. Managed and
franchised hotels also noted an increase in EBITDA due to improved
market performance.
In the Rest of Western Europe, EBITDA, before central costs,
grew by 104.8% to MEUR 21.5. Leased and managed hotels contributed 58% and 32% of the increase respectively.
In Eastern Europe, EBITDA before central costs decreased by
5.3% to MEUR 10.8. However, if we adjust the 2005 figures to
eliminate the share of income and the effect of capital gain from
sale of shares in Radisson SAS hotel in St. Petersburg (totaling
MEUR 3.2), the increase in 2006 EBITDA would have been
MEUR 2.6 or 31.7%.
In the Middle East, Africa and Other, EBITDA before central costs
increased by MEUR 6.7 or 131.4% to MEUR 11.8. The growth in
EBITDA is due to higher RevPAR at existing properties, addition of
new hotels and a one-off compensation for early termination of
one management agreement.
Central costs, which mainly pertain to the corporate office and the
regional functions, amounted to MEUR 33.0 (25.3), an increase of
30.4%. The 2006 amount includes a one-off cost of MEUR 2.8 related to the settlement of an old incentive plan. The remaining increase
is primarily attributable to the growth in the size of our business.
Gain on sale of shares and tangible fixed assets was MEUR 0.0
(6.7). The gain in 2005 was basically related to the sale of Radisson
SAS Hotel London Stansted Airport.
Net Financial Income/Expense was MEUR –2.2 (0.5). Financial
Income went down to MEUR 2.1 (7.7). The figure for 2005 included
an amount of MEUR 6.0 due to revaluation of our shares in two hotel
companies located in Eastern Europe. Financial Expense in 2006 was

Financial Highlights
2006

2005

20041)

20031)

20021)

707,319

587,046

498,728

389,964

389,715

EBIT

34,705

30,503

5,795

–24,650

11,068

Financial items, net

–2,248

487

–1,619

–3,078

–1,806

TEUR
Operating revenue

28,969

23,219

3,855

–32,593

3,876

Equity2)

176,380

149,587

68,184

66,526

99,867

Balance sheet total

402,623

354,251

323,785

291,611

279,309

Net income after tax

Dividends paid
Total investments

03)

0

4,1734)

32,617

34,605

54,900

33.8

3,4384)

13,7994)

59,280

30,113
27.6

Key indicators
31.2

28.6

21.2

EBITDA Margin, %

8.65)

7.4

3.6

–3.0

6.2

EBITDA, Growth, %

39.65)

141.6

255.9

–148.3

–17.0

Return on capital employed, %

18.1

12.2

0.6

–14.6

8.4

EBITDAR Margin, %

For the financial years 2002–2004 the parent company was Rezidor SAS Hospitality A/S.
	Including minority interest.
Board of Directors have proposed a dividend of EUR 0.06 per share, corresponding to 31.1% of profit after tax.
4)
Group Contribution paid to SAS in 2002–2004.
5)
Before IPO related costs.
1)
2)
3)
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MEUR 4.4 (7.2). Financial Expense for 2005 included interest cost
of MEUR 2.8 related to the financing of Radisson SAS Hotel London
Stansted Airport. Adjusting for these exceptional items, Net Financial
Income/Expense in 2006 improved to MEUR –2.2 (–3.1).
Profit after tax amounted to MEUR 29.0 (23.2). Earnings per
share amounted to EUR 0.191) (0.151)) and equity per share to
EUR 1.18 (1.00). The weighted average number of shares outstanding in 2006 were 149 979 887.
Balance Sheet end of 2006
Tangible assets at the end of 2006 were MEUR 87.6 compared to
78.9 the previous year. The increase was primarily due to FF&E
(Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment) replacements, maintenance
and renovations in several leased hotels. Financial non-current assets increased from MEUR 52.9 at the end of 2005 to MEUR 54.0
at the end of 2006, primarily due to share of income building up as
retained earnings in associated companies resulting in higher share
of equity in such companies.
Due to potential future profits for Rezidor in the German market, deferred tax assets have been capitalised, and are related to
certain tax losses carried forward and previously not recorded as
tax assets.
Excluding cash and cash equivalents, net working capital was
stable at MEUR –33.6 at the end of 2006, compared to MEUR –
34.0 the previous year. Other short-term interest bearing receivables decreased to MEUR 2.9 (19.0) while cash and cash equivalents
went up to MEUR 51.0 (23.4). These movements were mainly due
to transfer of cash (MEUR 16.2) from SAS cash pool to Rezidor’s
bank accounts prior to the listing on the Stockholm Stock Exchange,
and increased business activity.
Other short-term non-interest bearing receivables went up to
MEUR 42.9 (35.6). Most of this increase is related to pre-payment
of rents on account of leased hotels added during 2005–2006.
Compared to year end 2005, total equity at the end of 2006
went up by MEUR 26.8, to MEUR 176.4 (149.6). Minority interest
went down from MEUR 60.7 from 2005 to MEUR 0.2 at the
end of 2006. The change is due to elimination of Carlson’s and
SAS’ interest in Rezidor Hotel Holdings AB (former Rezidor SAS
Hospitality Holdings AB).
Cash Flow for the period 2006
Cash flow provided by operating activities increased to MEUR 39.6
(27.6), in line with the enlarged size of Rezidor’s business. Cash flow
from investing activities went down to MEUR –16.9 (32.3). The net
positive amount in 2005 was due to the sale of Rezidor’s shares in
the hotel company that owned Radisson SAS Hotel London
Stansted Airport. Cash flow from financing activities increased to
MEUR 4.9 (–60.8). The negative amount in 2005 was largely on
account of repayment of loans for Radisson SAS Hotel London

1)

Stansted Airport. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
stood at MEUR 51.0 (23.4).
Parent Company
Prior to the listing of Rezidor Hotel Group AB on the Stockholm
Stock Exchange, the business activities of Rezidor Services
Sweden AB were taken over by the parent company effective
October 1st, 2006. These activities included rooms reservation,
accounting and other administrative services in Sweden.
Please refer to page 30 titled Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for subsequent changes in the Group structure
and minority interests.
Other Important Developments
On November 28th Rezidor was listed on the OMX Nordic Mid-cap
list of the Stockholm Stock Exchange.
During 2006 Rezidor contracted 32 new hotel projects, or approximately 8,600 rooms, bringing the portfolio to 279 hotels, in
operation and under development, encompassing over 57,611
guestrooms in 47 countries. Rezidor discontinued operation of ten
hotels with approximately 2,000 rooms which were mainly under
franchise agreements.
A number of strategic management appointments were made during the year in order to support the preparation for the IPO and to
prepare Rezidor for a stock market listing, as well as supporting
Rezidor’s strategies for growth of its portfolio of brands and hotels.
Rezidor received a number of prestigious awards in 2006. For
the complete lists, see page 50 in the Corporate Presentation.
Post Balance Sheet Events
The Board of Directors is proposing a share buy-back programme,
to be decided by the Annual General Meeting on May 4th, 2007.
The Board of Directors will to the Annual General Meeting 2007
propose a share-related incentive programme. The Board of
Directors proposes to the General Meeting which will be held on
May 4th, 2007 to increase the share capital of the company,
through a bonus issue, with EUR 9,873,416 resulting in a share
capital of EUR 10,000,000.
Dividend
The Board of Directors have proposed a dividend of EUR 0.06 per
share, corresponding to 31.1% of profit after tax, pending the approval of the Annual General Meeting which will be held in
Stockholm on 4th May 2007. For details of amount at disposal and
Statement of the Board of Directors, see page 62.
Accounting Standards
In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International

	The calculation of Earnings per share is based on average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
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Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial
Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB that are
relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on January 1st 2006 and which were endorsed by the
European Commission prior to the release of this report.

protect brand values through strategic control and operational
policies; and

with the business concerned and take responsibility for operational risk management and risk control. General Managers are
supported by a risk management task force. Reporting of claims
and follow up on loss adjustments is the responsibility of the
General Managers.
The core of the risk management process is a thorough budget
process and an extensive audit programme, covering all aspects
and relevant risk factors in running hotels in many different legal,
economic, political, social and religious environments. Audits are
performed at various intervals during the business year and are
based on criteria reflecting local market obligations and the standards of Rezidor brands. Areas covered are, for example, the legal
status of contracts, agreements, licences, the physical standards
of buildings and premises, the technical status concerning water,
energy and other supplies, compliance to local laws, rules and
norms of relevant aspects as well as Rezidor’s procedures and
quality programmes. Audits are also complemented by research
about customer, partner and employee opinions, to obtain third
party evaluation. Rezidor’s Responsible Business programme also
works on an internal audit basis (see page 64). Audits are compiled
into risk reports to the Executive Committee, which act accordingly to develop, correct and control the business agenda of
General Managers. Risk reports are regularly discussed by the
Board of Directors. The Audit Committee appointed by the Board
of Directors has issued instructions for the internal control process
in the Group. The Group CFO reports to the Audit Committee and
obtains their approval of previous years’ audit result and the internal audit plan for the following year.
Our risk management task force focuses on the safety and security of guests, employees and properties in the following areas:

review and assess Rezidor’s insurance programmes on an ongoing basis.

reviewing and refining loss prevention standards, applications,
training, practice and auditing;

Risk Management
Rezidor Hotel Group AB is exposed to operational and financial risks
in the day-to-day running of the business. Operational risks occur
mainly in running the local businesses, whereas financial risks arise
because Rezidor has external financing needs and operates in a
number of foreign currencies. To allow local businesses to fully
focus on their operations, financial risk management is centralised
as far as possible to group management, governed by Rezidor’s
finance policy.
The objectives of Rezidor’s risk management may be summarised as follows:
ensure that the risks and benefits of new investments and contingent liabilities are in line with Rezidor’s finance policy;
reduce business cycle risks through brand diversity, geographic
diversification and by ensuring there is an appropriate mix of
leased, managed and franchised hotels;
carefully evaluate investments in high-risk regions, to match this
with premium returns on investments;

Operational risks
As operational risks arise in the local business operations, they are
managed through a decentralised approach. Every General
Manager has to evaluate and understand the risks associated
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reviewing insurance programme requirements;
defining and developing crisis management and business continuity processes;
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assisting in conducting and reviewing hotel audits and proactively using them as a tool to minimise risk and loss throughout
the company;
keeping our Executive Committee informed on a regular basis
and advising it on recommended policy changes in the above
four areas; and
keeping Area Vice Presidents and Regional Directors informed
on a quarterly basis and advising them on policy changes as they
come into effect.
Financial risks
Disclosures about Market Risk
According to our finance policy, we systematically monitor and
evaluate our financial risks, such as foreign exchange, interest rate,
credit, liquidity and refinancing risks. Measures aimed at managing
and handling these financial risks are implemented within the parameters and guidelines set forth in our finance policy. Our financial
risks are handled centrally by our finance team. Operative routines
and delegation authorisation with regard to financial risk management are documented in our finance manual.
All business units and hotels compile and report a monthly liquidity forecast and weekly cash flow overview which are consolidated
at group level. The aim is to create an ongoing basis for our currency exposure and liquidity planning and, by doing so, to provide
the prerequisites necessary for managing financial risks and complying with the finance policy.
We may use futures, options, currency swaps, interest rate
swaps or forward rate agreements to mitigate potential exposure
to currency and interest rate risks.
The main principle of our finance policy is to limit interest rate
and foreign exchange risks for all business units and hotels. This
means that borrowing shall be primarily done in local currencies in
order to hedge assets and equity in our subsidiaries. Hedging is effected in the reporting currencies of the respective subsidiaries on

the basis of a liquidity forecast. The net currency flow is then
hedged externally at the group level.
Interest rate risk
Our main financing risk is related to our ability to control and meet
our off-balance sheet commitments under leases with fixed rent
payments and management agreements with performance guarantees. Such fixed lease and guaranteed amounts have historically
been agreed on a fixed rate basis with indexation as a percentage
of change in the relevant consumer price index, and are, therefore,
not exposed to variations in the market interest rates. In addition,
these commitments are normally limited to an agreed maximum
financial exposure, which is usually capped at 2–3 times the annual
guaranteed result under a contract. All of our liabilities to financial
institutions are floating rate loans. In accordance with our finance
policy, most of our future on-balance sheet liabilities will also be on
a floating rate basis.
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
Foreign exchange risks consist of translation exposure and transaction exposure. Foreign exchange fluctuations have not had a
significant impact on our results of operations or financial condition
between the financial periods in the past and we do not expect this
to change in the near future.
Transaction Exposure
We generate revenue and incur costs in a number of currencies,
and are therefore exposed to currency exchange rate fluctuations.
Our most important foreign currencies are the Swedish krona, the
Norwegian krone, the Danish krone, the U.S. dollar and pound sterling. Our hotels with a large international customer base generally
adjust their room rates charged in the local currency to take into
account volatile fluctuations in the euro, our reporting currency, or
the U.S. dollar. As a result, our revenue and EBITDA derived from
our leased hotels and the fees collected from our managed and
franchised hotels are compensated through our policy to adjust
prices based on fluctuations, except for food and beverage where

Sensitivity Analysis – Room rate and occupancy levels
A deterioration in the general market conditions normally has a
negative impact on the RevPAR of our hotels. As RevPAR is a function of average room rate and occupancy, a decline in RevPAR
results either from a decrease in room rate or occupancy, or a combination of both. If RevPAR decreases as result of a decrease in
room rate, there are fewer opportunities to save operational costs
as the hotel will still have to serve the same level of occupancy. On
the other hand, should RevPAR decline as a result of lower occupancy, we are able to adjust our cost structure more effectively
through variable cost savings.

A decrease in RevPAR has a bigger impact on our leased hotels as we
receive rooms and other revenue and also are responsible for the
costs for those hotels. In comparison, a decrease in RevPAR has a
more limited impact on income from managed hotels as our fee revenue is defined as a percentage of hotel revenue and operating profit.
The impact of a decrease in RevPAR on our franchised hotels is even
more limited as we only charge a percentage of room revenue as our
royalty fee, which is not linked to the result of those hotels.
With our current business model we estimate that a EUR 1.0 RevPAR
variation would result in a MEUR 4.0–5.0 change in our EBITDA.
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we do not adjust prices. In addition, we limit our currency exposure as far as possible by matching in- and outflows of a certain
currency.
Translation Exposure
We present our financial statements in euro. Since certain of our
subsidiaries present their financial statements in currencies other
than euro, our Consolidated Financial Statements and
Shareholders’ Equity are exposed to exchange rate fluctuations.
If hedging is not used, this foreign currency exchange rate risk
could have a negative impact on our Consolidated Income
Statement and Balance Sheet. Although we have several subsidiaries in a number of countries with their balance sheets in different currencies, we are not materially exposed to translation risk
as we do not own any real estate, with the exception of certain
minority interests in associates. Also, we seek to hedge our balance sheet exposure by having assets and liabilities denominated
in the same currency.
Insurance
Rezidor has three umbrella insurance policies, under which we have
insured ourselves against certain risks and also offer certain insurances under the umbrella insurance to owners of hotel properties,
owners of hotel operating companies and franchisees. Rezidor offers property damage insurance for all brands in our portfolio and
mainly for the owners of leased or managed hotel properties, and
we also insure ourselves against any property damage for the
property we are responsible for under the agreements. Rezidor
also has business interruption insurance for ourselves and the
property owners and we require a mandatory general and product
liability as well as crime insurances under all three contract types
and for all the Rezidor brands. In addition, we have directors and
officers insurance as well as travel and personal insurance for our
own personnel.
Litigation
Rezidor is not engaged in any legal or arbitration proceedings,
which, in Rezidor’s judgement, may have or have had a material
affect on the company’s financial position or profitability during
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2006. The members of our Board of Directors have no knowledge
of any proceedings pending or threatened against Rezidor or any
of our subsidiaries or any facts likely to give rise to any litigation,
claims or proceedings which might materially affect the financial
position or the business of our group.
Below is a description of pending legal proceedings: In May
2006, Stonehaven Trust Limited (“Stonehaven”) submitted a claim
against our subsidiary Rezidor Hotels ApS Danmark (previously SAS
Hotels A/S Danmark before the Brussels Commercial Court.
Stonehaven is claiming MEUR 35.4 as compensation for the alleged
wrongful termination of negotiations in 2001 of a management
agreement to be entered into upon finalization of the acquisition as
well as after the completion of the full renovation of a hotel in
Bruges, Belgium. The claim is in respect of wasted time, costs and
the profit that Stonehaven would have obtained from the management agreement had it been entered into. The case is currently
pending before the Commercial Court of Brussels. We believe,
based on legal advice and opinions provided by our external legal
counsel, that the claim is without merit. Accordingly, we have not
included any provision in our accounts to cover this claim, neither
for the costs of defense.
In November 2005, the Radisson SAS hotel in Amman, Jordan
was a target of a terrorist bomb attack. As a result, a number of
people were killed or injured and the Radisson SAS hotel property
was damaged. The hotel in Amman is operated by a franchisee
under a franchise agreement. The hotel owner has received notice
of 14 separate claims for compensation in relation to the bomb explosion and the total amount claimed is currently MEUR 43.3. These
notices do not constitute an initiation of legal proceedings but indicate an intention by the claimants to bring a claim if settlement is
not offered by the hotel owner. To date, no formal claims against us
have been made and we believe that as we did not operate the
hotel, we are not liable for any breach of Jordanian legislation.
In August 2003, Carestel NV and Carestel Motorway Services
NV (together, “Carestel”) initiated legal proceedings against our
subsidiaries, The Rezidor Hotel Group NV/SA (previously Rezidor
SAS Hospitality NV), Rezidor Hotels ApS Danmark (previously SAS
Hotels A/S Danmark) and GH Holding NV, claiming damages for
breach of our obligation under Belgian law to negotiate with
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Carestel in good faith. The claim relates to certain aborted acquisition negotiations held in 2002 and 2003 regarding the proposed
acquisition of certain subsidiaries of Carestel that owned a Belgian
hotel portfolio. The amount claimed by Carestel is approximately
MEUR 9.7, representing legal costs, lost management time, loss of
reputation, misuse of confidential information and the difference
between the price obtained by Carestel from the sale of the relevant subsidiaries to a third party and the price proposed to be paid
by Rezidor SAS Hospitality NV. We have submitted pleadings to the
Brussels Commercial Court in defense of the claim. The case is
currently pending before the Commercial Court of Brussels. We
believe, based on legal advice and opinions provided by our external legal counsel, that the claim is without merit and, in any event,
that the amount of the damages claimed is overstated. Accordingly,
we have not included any provision in our accounts to cover this
claim or for the cost of defense.
In 2002, nine persons who suffered from a bacterial infection
that lead to legionnaires disease filed claims against our subsidiary
SAS Atlantic Hotel A/S in respect of the Radisson SAS Hotel Atlantic
AS (now merged with Rezidor Hotels Norway AS) in Stavanger,
Norway. The total amount claimed is MNOK 12. The court process
is currently on hold pending expert determination of the amount
of each claim. We have notified our insurer about the claim who has
acknowledged full coverage of the claims. Accordingly, we have not
included any provision in our accounts to cover this claim.
Employees
On average, there were 5,447 employees in Rezidor’s companies
during 2006, of which 2,848 were women. This compares to 4,922
in 2005, thus the number of employees increased by 10.7%.
Personnel costs were MEUR 246.7 (207.3), an increase of 19.0%
as compared to 2005. This increase was primarily attributable to
an increase in the number of leased hotels and, therefore, employees on Rezidor’s payroll. As a percentage of total revenue from
leased hotels, personnel costs decreased from 39.4% in 2005 to
39.1% in 2006. In addition to salary and other benefits in kind,
Rezidor provides pension plans for employees. These pension plans
are provided on a country-by-country basis.
Rezidor hotels report sick leave and occupational injuries pursuant to national legislation. In 2006, the average sick leave in Sweden
was 7.6%, calculated as sick leave as a percentage of the employees’ total working hours.
In order to assess employee satisfaction and encourage feedback, Rezidor commissions an independent organisation to conduct an employee survey called Climate Analysis. In 2006, the
results from our managed, leased and franchised hotels went up to
85.5 (out of 100) from 84.5 in 2005. The number of responses
from employees increased from nearly 13,500 in 2005 to 16,500
in 2006. The Business School @ Rezidor celebrated its 10th anniversary, and hosted 503 delegates in 2006. Additionally, the group

continued its focus on fostering the mentor-mentee programme,
which is intended to develop and promote hotel staff to General
Manager positions.
Rezidor Hotel Group AB
Statistics about sick leave according to the Swedish
Annual Accounts Act, total 2006
Total sick-leave as a proportion of regular working hours
Proportion of total sick-leave relating to continous absence
for 60 days or more

%
7.6
47.9

Sick-leave as a proportion of each group’s regular working hours
Sick-leave breakdown into men and women:
Sick leave women

8.6

Sick leave men

5.8

Sick-leave breakdown by age group:
Sick leave employees aged 29 or younger
Sick leave employees aged 30–49
Sick leave employees aged 50 or older

3.8
8.2
13.1

Data for Rezidor’s legal entities in Sweden.

Responsible Business
Rezidor’s Responsible Business programme was introduced in
2001 and builds on the environmental programme established in
the mid 1990s. It is a well established part of the company’s operations. Rezidor recognises the importance of corporate responsibility as a part of daily operations.
Every hotel has a programme coordinator to guide and advise
employees on how to achieve the programme objectives and all
new employees are introduced to the programme. New hotels that
join the portfolio have been offered Responsible Business training
since 2002. The hotels in Rezidor’s portfolio are becoming increasingly resource efficient. For example, approximately 70% of the
hotels have installed low energy light bulbs, room key cards used
to switch on the power in the room, low energy mini-bars and
thermostats to control air conditioning.
Hotel operations are not covered by any environmental permits,
however our hotels are provided with an overview of applicable
environmental and health & safety legislation through an internet
based legal database. Legislative demands mainly concern waste
recycling , energy efficiency in buildings, legionella prevention and
control of water effluents. With regard to energy and water Rezidor
was not involved in any environmentally related legal disputes or
complaints and has no known major environmental-related debts.
Rezidor is one of the founding members of International Hotel
and Restaurant Association’s Global Council on Safety Security and
Crisis Management and chairs the Executive Committee of the
International Business Leader’s Tourism Partnership.
In the Sustainability Report there is more complete descriptions
of Rezidor’s Responsible Business programme.
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Market Overview1)

Travel and Tourism Industry
The travel and tourism industry, when regarded in its entirety, is the
largest global revenue-generating industry in the world. According
to the World Travel & Tourism Council, the contribution of the
travel and tourism industry to global gross domestic product (as
percentage of total) was 10.3% in 2006, including both leisure and
business travelers, across the globe.
Since 2000, Europe’s dominant market share of total world
tourist arrivals has been slightly reduced due to the emerging nature of several developing markets, such as the Asia & Pacific region. Between 1990 and 2005, the compound annual growth in
tourist arrivals globally was 4%. Between 2000 and 2005, Europe
experienced limited growth, with a compound annual growth rate
(“CAGR”) of 2%. However, growth in the region was ahead of the
Americas (1% during the same period). Central and Eastern Europe
experienced the highest CAGR in Europe between 2000 and 2005
at 5%. The Middle East, Asia Pacific region experienced high CAGRs
during the same period, at 9% and 7%, respectively, although from
a small base.
Hotel Industry
The hotel industry is subject to cyclicality. Following a prolonged
downturn over the three years immediately following September
11, 2001, a global economic slowdown and regional oversupply,
the trading performance of the global markets has improved as

1)
2)

Source: HVS International.
For definition of region, please go to Financial Definitions and Terminology on page 77.
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demonstrated by recent hotel performance data in a variety of
markets.
Although the trend on the global and regional levels is one of
growth, at city levels the trend may vary because growth in supply
does not always follow growth in demand. Some markets may
suddenly encounter a significant growth in supply, which leads to
a decline in occupancy levels, and, as a result, a decline also in
RevPAR levels.
The tables on page 25 sets forth the movement of RevPAR
growth (in U.S. dollars and Euro) since 2000. The post-September
11, 2001 decline is evident, as well as the subsequent recovery.
Since 2003, all regions have been experiencing growth.
Increasing Importance of Brands
Hotel operations may be branded with a nationally or internationally recognised brand, or may operate as independent units. A hotel
brand provides a level of recognition through consistent service
and product standards that provide guests with a level of familiarity, particularly in markets unknown to the traveler.
Branded hotels are generally operated under franchise agreements, management agreements or lease agreements. When a
hotel is operated by a third party, the hotel management company
controls the hotel’s day-to-day operations. In return, the hotel
management company will receive fees for providing their services
and expertise.
The highest proportion of branded hotels as compared to independent hotels is found in North America, where approximately
80% of hotel stock is estimated to be branded with a nationally or
internationally recognised brand.
By comparison, branded hotels in Europe account for only 30 to
35% of the total number of hotels. However, the trend is changing
with many owners seeking affiliation through a lease agreement,
management agreement or franchise agreement. A majority of the
new hotel supply in Europe is now branded.
The Nordic Region2)
Domestic demand in the Nordic Region generates approximately
70% of total hotel nights. Another characteristic of the Nordic
market is the high proportion of branded hotels.
The major brands in the Nordic Region are Scandic, Radisson
SAS, Quality and Rica, which account for almost half of the branded
room stock. Rezidor benefits from a strong position in the full service hotel segment. The Scandic brand, which has a considerable
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market share in the Nordic Region, was acquired by the Hilton
Group in 2001, and was announced to be divested to private equity
firm EQT in February 2007. International operators in the Nordic
Region currently include Accor (Mercure and Novotel), Starwood
(Le Meridien and Sheraton), Marriott and InterContinental (Holiday
Inn and Holiday Inn Garden Court).
National hotel chains include First Hotels (52 hotels in Sweden,
Norway and Denmark), Rica Hotels (90 hotels in Norway and
Sweden) and the Norwegian Thon Hotels (with a current portfolio
of 51 hotels).
In 2005, the Nordic Region demonstrated significant ADR
(Average Daily Rate) growth in both first-class and mid-market
hotels. Together with an upswing in occupancy, the Nordic market
recorded a RevPAR growth of about 14% for first-class hotels and
8% for mid-market hotels. During 2006, RevPAR levels for firstclass and mid-market hotels in the region have improved by a further 10% and 8% respectively. The current RevPAR growth is
expected to be sustainable in 2007 and 2008.
Rest of Western Europe
Western Europe is the largest tourism market in the world as well
as the most diversified.
The hotel market in Western Europe is typically a mature market
with a considerable number of international and domestic hotel
operators competing for market share.
Capital cities in Western Europe have seen strong increases in
demand in the past three years; growth in supply, however, is constrained due to a lack of available sites and relatively high prices.
Best performers in terms of room yields have traditionally been
Paris, London, Amsterdam, Milan and Geneva.
The year 2006 was characterised by healthy RevPAR growth of
approximately 13% across Western Europe, with particularly strong
performances in Berlin, London and Amsterdam.
Eastern Europe (including the CIS countries)
Eastern Europe is considered a fast emerging market that enjoys
positive growth in terms of both supply and demand.
The positive trend in the Eastern Europe, Russia and other CIS
countries tourism market is largely due to increasing political and
economic stability, aided by the enlargement of the European
Union. A major factor contributing to a strong rise in demand are
the “open skies” policies implemented after the accession to the
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European Union in 2004 in many Eastern Europe countries after
long periods of state-owned airlines and restricted air access.
Eastern European markets are generally lacking internationalstandard hotel rooms to meet the new strong demand levels.
However, key countries such as Poland and the Czech Republic
have managed to create a good basis of quality hotel stock for both
leisure and business travellers.
In Budapest and Prague, demand now meets supply, whilst St
Petersburg is still currently under-supplied, relying mainly on tourists as a source of demand. Moscow is vastly under-supplied in all
categories.
In 2005, RevPAR for first-class hotels in the region increased by
8% and decreased in 2006 to a growth rate of 4%. RevPAR performance of mid-market hotels improved by 8% and 6% over the
respective periods. First-class hotels in Russia and the other CIS
countries performed particularly strongly, with RevPAR growth of
31% in 2005 and another 18% in 2006.
The Middle East, Africa & Other
Average levels of occupancy and ADR in the Middle East have
largely been on the increase in most markets since 2004 due to
recovery in demand following a decline in the level of political instability in the region. With local economies surging and high accommodation demand, occupancy and RevPAR have risen
strongly in the last few years. The biggest increases in RevPAR
were experienced in Muscat, followed closely by Abu Dhabi,
Doha, Dubai and Riyadh, while the only recorded decreases occurred in Beirut, Hurghada, Kuwait City and Cairo’s “Pyramids”
region.
In 2005, RevPAR for first-class hotels grew by 19%, whereas the
RevPAR for mid-market hotels increased by 11%. In 2006 the
strong performance was impacted by political turmoil in the second half of the year. In the full year of 2006, RevPAR grew by 12%
in first-class hotels and by 10% in mid-market hotels.
The African hotel industry is one of the least developed in the
world, at least by international standards. The exceptions are located in the well-established hotel markets in the northwest and
southeast of the continent, notably in South Africa, Morocco,
Mauritius, Tanzania and, to certain extent, Zimbabwe.
The South African market performed strongly in 2006, with
RevPAR for both first-class and mid-market hotels growing
by 6.4%.
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Four Year Summary

2006

2005

20041)

20031)

Revenue

707.3

587.0

498.7

390.0

MEUR (except stated otherwise)

Income statement

EBITDA

61.0

43.7

18.1

–11.6

EBIT

34.7

30.5

5.8

–24.7

Financial income and expense, net

–2.2

0.5

–1.7

–3.1

Net profit/loss for the period

29.0

23.2

3.9

–32.6

Balance sheet total

402.6

354.3

323.8

291.6

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

176.2

88.9

68

66.3

39.6

27.6

1.1

–12.6

–16.9

32.3

–27.1

–34.7

4.9

–60.8

27.7

56.1

2)

Balance sheet

Cash flow
Cash flow from operations activities
Cash flow from investments activities
Cash flow from financing activities

Financial key figures
238.8

183.4

142.7

82.5

EBITDAR Margin, %

33.8

31.2

28.6

21.2

EBITDA

2)

61.0

43.7

18.1

–11.6

8.62)

7.4

3.6

–3.0

32.6

34.6

54.9

59.3

EBITDAR

EBITDA Margin, %
Total investments

Operational key figures
225

219

190

167

Occupancy4), %

69

67

65

62

RevPAR4), EUR

72

67

61

59

149,979,887

149,942,456

149,942,456

149,942,456

Earnings per share, EUR

0.19

0.15

0.03

–0.22

Proposed dividend per share, EUR

0.06

Number of hotels3)

Share related key figures5)
Weighted average no. of shares

	In 2003–2004 the parant company for the group was Rezidor SAS Hospitality A/S.
Before IPO related costs.
3)
	Includes leased, managed and franchised hotels in operations.
4)
	Including managed and leased hotels in operation
5)
Share related data has been calculated using 150,002,040 Shares for 2005 and 2006 when Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ) has been our parent company. For the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2004, the share related data has also been calculated using 150,002,040 shares outstanding, although the actual number of shares at those dates was
different reflecting the number of shares outstanding in our previous parent company, Rezidor SAS Hospitality A/S. For share-related data in 2003 and 2004, the same number of
weighted average number of shares as for 2005 have been used to obtain comparable figures.
1)
2)
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
	For the Year Ended December 31
TEUR (except for share related data)	Notes
2006
2005
Revenue
7, 8, 9		
Cost of goods sold			
Personnel cost
10		
Other operating expenses
11		
Operating profit before rental expense and share of income in associates 			
and before depreciation and amortisation and gain on sale of shares and of fixed assets (EBITDAR)

707,319
(54,806)
(246,714)
(167,022)
238,777

587,046
(47,130)
(207,295)
(149,251)
183,370

Rental expense
12		
Share of income in associates
19		
IPO related expenses			
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation and gain on sale
7
of shares and fixed assets (EBITDA)

(183,092)
5,296
(4,392)
56,589

(145,872)
6,213
–
43,711

17, 18		
13		
7

(21,884)
–
34,705

(19,884)
6,676
30,503

Financial income
14		
Financial expense
14		
Profit before tax			

2,111
(4,359)
32,457

7,732
(7,245)
30,990

Income tax
15		
Profit for the year			

(3,488)
28,969

(7,771)
23,219

Attributable to:
Equityholders of the parent			
Minority interest			
			

20,719
8,250
28,969

17,719
5,500
23,219

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Gain on sale of shares and tangible fixed assets
Operating profit

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period

16		

149,979,887

149,942,456

Earnings per share (EUR)1)
Basic and diluted before allocation to minority interest

16		

0.19

0.15

	In relation to the exchange of the preference shares, the minority interest earned as of September 30, 2006 (TEUR 8,250) have been subsequently acquired by the parent company and
therefore eliminated in equity. In order to present a representative view of the earnings per share, present earnings per share before allocation to minority interest are presented.

1)

Comments to the Consolidated Statements of Operations (above)
For the full year, Revenue grew by 20.5% to MEUR 707.3 (587.0). Of this increase,
like-for-like leased hotels (i.e., comparable hotels in operation during the same previous period) contributed MEUR 47.6.
Cost of goods sold mainly relates to the generation of food & beverage (F&B) and
conference & banqueting revenues in Rezidor’s leased hotels. As a percent of F&B
Revenue, cost of goods sold was stable at 25.6% (25.7). Personnel cost, which largely
relates to the total revenues from leased hotels, improved slightly to 39.1% (39.4).
Other operating expenses mainly include costs related to administration & general,
advertising & sales, utilities, repairs & maintenance and royalty fees to Carlson for use
of brand names. As a percent of total revenue, other operating expenses improved to
23.6% (25.4) due to better cost control and reduced fee to Carlson.
EBITDA before IPO related costs of MEUR 4.4 increased by 39.6% to MEUR 61.0
(43.7). EBITDA margin before IPO related costs went up to 8.6% (7.4). Nearly half of this
growth is attributable to our leased hotels that are all situated in the Nordics and the rest
of Western Europe. Managed hotels contributed approximately one-third of the EBITDA
growth. Those properties benefited from improved RevPAR and operational performance
resulting in higher margins. EBITDA includes positive impact of one-off compensations for
the settlement of an arbitration case in France and an early termination of a management
agreement in the Middle East, which amounted to MEUR 2.5 and MEUR 2.2 respectively.
EBITDA also takes into account a one-off cost related to the settlement of an old phantom share bonus plan, which amounted to MEUR 2.8, and is further described in Note 10.
Gain on sale of shares and tangible fixed assets was MEUR 0.0 (6.7). The gain in
2005 was basically related to the sale of Radisson SAS Hotel London Stansted Airport.
Net Financial Income/Expense was MEUR –2.2 (0.5). Financial Income for 2005 included an amount of MEUR 6.0 due to a non-recurring revaluation of our shares in two
hotels located in Eastern Europe. Financial Expense for 2005 included interest cost
of MEUR 2.8 related to the financing of Radisson SAS Hotel London Stansted Airport.
Income tax went down to MEUR 3.5 (7.8) due to revaluation of deferred tax assets,
thus giving an effective tax rate in 2006 of 10.7% (25.1).
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Comments to the Consolidated Balance Sheet Statements
(adjacent, page 29)
Tangible assets at the end of 2006 were MEUR 87.6 (78.9). The increase was primarily
due to FF&E replacement, maintenance and renovations in several leased hotels.
Financial non-current assets increased to MEUR 54.0 (52.9). The increase was primarily due to share of income building up as retained earnings in associated companies.
Due to expected future development for Rezidor in the German market, significant
deferred tax assets have been capitalised and are related to certain tax losses carried
forward and previously not recorded as tax assets.
Net working capital, excluding cash and cash equivalents, at the end of the year
was stable at MEUR –32.5 (–34.0). Other short-term interest bearing receivables
decreased to MEUR 2.9 (19.0) while cash and cash equivalents went up to MEUR 51.0
(23.4). These movements were mainly due to transfer of cash (MEUR 16.2) from SAS
cash pool to Rezidor’s bank accounts prior to the listing on the SSE, and increased business activity.
Other short-term non-interest bearing receivables went up to MEUR 42.9 (35.6).
Most of this increase is related to pre-payment of rents on account of leased hotels
added during 2005–2006.
Current interest bearing liabilities stood at MEUR 16.8 (21.9). The amount for
year-end 2006 was entirely on account of a former loan facility with SAS, which was
refinanced with an external financial institution post IPO.
Total equity at the end of 2006 went up by MEUR 26.8, to MEUR 176.4 (149.6),
mainly due to increase in retained earnings. Minority interest went down from MEUR
60.7 from 2005 to MEUR 0.2 at the end of 2006. The change is due to Rezidor
Hotel Group AB’s acquisition of the preference shares in Rezidor SAS Hospitality
Holdings AB.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Statements
	As of December 31
TEUR	Notes
2006
2005
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill
17
Other intangible assets
17
		
Tangible assets
Fixed installations in leased properties
18
Machinery and equipment
18
Investments in progress
18
		
Financial assets
Investments in associated companies and joint ventures
19
Other shares and participations
20
Pension funds, net
21
Other long-term interest-bearing receivables
22
Other long-term non-interest-bearing receivables
22
		
Deferred tax asset
15
		
Current assets
Inventory		
Accounts receivable
23
Other interest-bearing receivables
24
Other non-interest-bearing receivables
24
Other short term investments
25
		
Cash and cash equivalents		
		
Total assets		
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital
26		
Translation reserves			
Other paid in capital
26		
Retained earnings including net profit (loss) for the year			
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent			
Minority interest			
Total equity			
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
15		
Retirement benefit obligations
21		
Other long-term interest-bearing liabilities			
Other long-term non-interest-bearing liabilities			
			
Current liabilities
Accounts payable			
Current tax liabilities			
Liabilities to financial institutions
27		
Other current interest-bearing liabilities
28		
Other current non-interest-bearing liabilities
28		
			
Total liabilities			
Total equity and liabilities			
Contingent liabilities
Leasing commitments
Management contract commitments
Segment information

12,625
64,557
77,182

12,597
62,809
75,406

27,638
52,261
7,684
87,583

21,695
48,894
8,314
78,903

12,317
15,088
12,553
11,594
2,488
54,040
26,964
245,769

7,759
15,083
14,472
12,860
2,752
52,926
13,084
220,319

5,297
51,309
2,876
42,879
3,518
105,879
50,975
156,854
402,623

5,195
48,317
18,984
35,620
2,432
110,548
23,384
133,932
354,251

127
20,578
153,978
1,482
176,165
215
176,380

100
19,392
87,978
(18,598)
88,872
60,715
149,587

15,749
1,325
57
330
17,461

14,303
1,034
347
83
15,767

35,858
10,054
47,603
16,814
98,453
208,782
226,243
402,623

34,732
5,968
37,687
21,865
88,644
188,897
204,664
354,251

29
30
31
7

29
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Equity
attributable to
equityholders
of the parent

Minority
interest

Total
equity

Share
capital

Translation
reserves

Other paid
in capital

Retained
earnings

Net
income
for the
period

Equity as of December 31, 2004

80,000

19,312

4,978

(40,176)

3,855

67,969

215

68,184

Allocation of net income of previous period
Increase of share capital
Formation of Rezidor Hotel Group AB
Net profit for the period
Change in translation differences
Equity as of December 31, 2005

–
3,000
(82,900)
–
–
100

–
–
–
–
80
19 392

–
–
83,000
–
–
87,978

3,855
–
–
4
–
(36,317)

(3,855)
–
–
17,719
–
17,719

–
3,000
100
17,723
80
88,872

–
–
55,000
5 500
–
60,715

–
3,000
55,100
23,223
80
149,587

Change of treatment for the pensions
(see Note 21)
Adjusted equity as of January 1, 2006

–

–

–

(1,745)

–

(1 745)

–

(1,745)

100

19,392

87,978

(38,062)

17,719

87,127

60,715

147,842

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
1,186

–
–
–
–

17,719
(1,644)
–
–

(17,719)
–
20,719
–

–
(1,644)
20,719
1,186

–
–
8,250
–

–
(1,644)
28,969
1,186

27
127

–
20,578

66,000
153,978

2,750
(19,237)

–
20,719

68,777
176,165

(68,750)
215

27
176,380

TEUR

Allocation of net income of previous period
Other adjustments
Net profit for the period
Change in translation differences
New share issue and exchange of
preference shares
Equity as of December 31, 2006

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (see also note 26)	As of December 31
2006
2005
Number of ordinary shares at the end of the period
Share capital, EUR
Ratio value of the shares, EUR
Equity per share (before allocation to minority interest)

30

150,002,040
126,584
0.000844
1.18

149,975,456
100,000
0.000667
1.00
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	For the Year Ended December 31
TEUR	Notes
2006
2005
OPERATIONS
Profit Before Interest and Taxes 		

34,705

30,503

Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
17, 18
Gain (loss) on sale of shares and tangible fixed assets and disposals
17, 18
Pensions		
Share of income in associated companies
19
Other adjustments for non cash items		

21,884
–
463
(5,296)
(1,672)

19,884
(6,676)
(5,075)
(6,213)
18

Interest paid
14
Dividend from associated companies
19
Other financial items		
Tax received (paid)		
Cash flows from operations before change in working capital		

(3,314)
2,882
635
(9,236)
41,051

(5,504)
3,087
(1,741)
918
29,201

Change in:
Inventories		
Current receivables		
Current liabilities		
Change in working capital		
Cash flow provided by operating activities

(102)
(10,556)
9,161
(1,497)
39,554

(662)
(2,875)
1,965
(1,572)
27,629

INVESTMENTS
Purchase of shares and participations
19
Purchase of other intangible assets
17
Purchase related to investments in progress
18
Purchase of machinery and equipment
18
Purchase fixed installations in leased properties
18
Interest received
14
Other investments		
Total investments		

(2,139)
(3,246)
(8,943)
(17,721)
(2,707)
1,544
16,308
(16,904)

(2,629)
(2,504)
(13,806)
(15,723)
(2,572)
1,057
(14,410)
(50,587)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets and shares		
Cash flow from investing activities		

–
(16,904)

82,900
32,313

FINANCING
Credit lines and/or overdraft facilities		
New loan		
Loan repayment		
Other financial items net 		
Total external financing		

9,930
16,802
(21,445)
(373)
4,914

1,591
–
(65,945)
430
(63,924)

New issue of shares		
Cash flow from financing activities		

27
4,941

3,100
(60,824)

Cash flow for the year 		

27,591

(882)

Translation difference in cash and cash equivalents		

(130)

73

Cash and cash equivalents, January 1		
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31		

23,514
50,975

24,193
23,384

Comments to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flow provided by operating activities increased to MEUR 39.6 (27.6), in line
with the enlarged size of Rezidor’s business. Cash flow from investing activities
went down to MEUR –16.9 (32.3). The net positive amount in 2005 was due to the
sale of Rezidor’s shares in Radisson SAS Hotel London Stansted Airport. Cash flow

from financing activities increased to MEUR 4.9 (–60.8). The negative amount in
2005 was largely on account of repayment of loans for Radisson SAS Hotel London
Stansted Airport. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year stood at MEUR
51.0 (23.4).
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Parent Company, Statements of Operations
TEUR
Revenue
Personnel cost
Other operating expenses
IPO related expenses
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation

Notes

For the Year Ended December 31
2006
2005

1
2
3, 4

1,187
(770)
(1,528)
(3,562)
(4,673)

–
–
(5)
–
(5)

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Operating profit (loss)

7

(13)
(4,686)

–
(5)

Financial income
Financial expense
Profit (loss) before tax

5
5

289
(180)
(4,577)

–
–
(5)

Income tax
Profit (loss) for the period

6

1,278
(3,299)

1
(4)

0.06

–

Proposed dividend per share (in Euro)

Parent Company, Balance Sheet Statements
	As of December 31
TEUR	Notes
2006
2005
ASSETS
Fixed assets
Machinery and equipment
7
Shares in subsidiaries
8
Deferred tax asset
6
		

172
231,100
1,278
232,550

–
100
–
100

Total assets		

1
150
36,594
10
108
259
10,209
47,331
279,881

–
–
5
–
–
–
–
5
105

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital		
Share premium reserve		
Profit/Loss brought forward		
Net loss for the year		
Total equity of parent company shareholders		

127
230,973
–
(3,299)
227,801

100
–
4
(4)
100

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable		
Liabilities group companies
10
Interest-bearing liabilities to credit institutions
11
Accrued expenses and prepaid income
12
Other liabilities		
		
Total equity and liabilities		

930
30,869
16,800
3,419
62
52,080
279,881

–
4
–
1
–
5
105

Contingent liabilities		

none

none

Current assets
Inventories 		
Accounts receivable		
Receivables group companies
9
Income tax receivable		
Other receivables		
Prepaid expenses and accrued income		
Cash and cash equivalents		
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Parent Company, Statement of Changes in Equity
TEUR

Share
capital

Share	Profit/loss	Net loss for	Total
premium reserve
brought forward
the year
equity

Equity as of January 1, 2005
Increase of Share Capital
Net loss for the period
Group contribution
Tax effect from group contribution
Equity as of December 31, 2005

0
100
–
–
–
100

0
–
–
–
–
0

0
–
(4)
5
(1)
0

0
–
–
–
–
0

0
100
(4)
5
(1)
100

Increase of Share Capital
Net loss for the period
Equity as of December 31, 2006

27
–
127

230,973
–
230,973

–
–
0

–
(3,299)
(3,299)

231,000
(3,299)
227,801

For information regarding the Rezidor share, please see Note 26 (page 53) of the Group consolidated financial statements.

Parent Company, Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31
TEUR
OPERATIONS
Profit (loss) Before Interest and Taxes
Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain (loss) on sale of shares and tangible fixed assets and disposals
Interest paid
Cash flows from operations before change in working capital

Notes

7
5

Change in:
Current receivables
Current liabilities
Change in working capital
Cash flow used in/provided by operating activities

2006

2005

(4,686)

–

13
4
(180)
(4,849)

–
–
–
–

(620)
4,906
4,286
(563)

–
–
–
–

INVESTMENTS
Acquisition of operations
Purchase of machinery and equipment
Interest received
Change in interest bearing receivables
Other investments
Cash flow from investing activities

13
7
5
13
13

121
(26)
289
(16,800)
(19,766)
(36,182)

–
–
–
–
–
–

FINANCING
Change in interest bearing liabilities
Cash flow from financing activities

13

46,954
46,954

–
–

Cash flow for the year

10,209

–

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31

–
10,209

–
–
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NOTE 1	General information
Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ) (former Rezidor SAS Hospitality Group AB), called
Rezidor or the Company, is a limited company incorporated in Sweden. Its registered
office and principal place of business is in Sweden (Stockholm). Address: Hemvärnsgatan 15, P.O. Box 6061, 171 06 Solna, Sweden. The Executive Committee
is based in Brussels, Belgium. Rezidor is an international hospitality company which
currently has 279 hotels in operation or under development in 47 countries. Rezidor
now operates Radisson SAS Hotels & Resorts, Regent International Hotels Park Inn
and Country Inns & Suites along with the goldpoints plusSM loyalty programme for
frequent hotel guests. Further information of the activities of the Company are
described in Note 8. Wherever in these Financial Statements the Company refers
to figures presented as of December 31st, 2005, it means it is presented as in the
Offering Circular issued in connection with the IPO of the Company.
The Annual Report as of December 31st, 2006 was approved by the Board
of Directors of Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ) on March 23rd, 2007. The Annual
Report is subject to approval by the Annual General Meeting on May 4th, 2007.

NOTE 2	Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) and
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB
that are relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on
January 1st 2006 and which were endorsed by the European Commission prior to the
release of these financial statements. The amendments and pronouncement have not
had a material effect on the reported results of operations and financial condition.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards
and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective.
IFRS Standard

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments, Disclosures
Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
IFRS 8 – Operating Segments1)
IFRIC Interpretation

January 1, 2007
January 1, 2007
January 1, 2009

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

IFRIC 7 – Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
March 1, 2006
IFRIC 8 – Scope of IFRS 2
May 1, 2006
IFRIC 9 – Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
June 1, 2006
IFRIC 10 – Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment1)	November 1, 2006
March 1, 2007
IFRIC 11 – IFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions1)
January 1, 2008
IFRIC 12 – Service Concession Arrangements1)
1)

	Not endorsed by EU.

The Company anticipates that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements for
the Group, however additional disclosures might be required.

NOTE 3	Accounting policies
The Annual Report have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the E.U. and the Swedish Annual
Accounts Act. This Annual Report have also been prepared applying the Swedish
Accounting Standards Council RR 30.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments or as described below.
The principal accounting policies adopted are presented on the following pages.
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Reporting currency
EUR is the functional currency of the primary economic environment in which the
group operates and consequently the financial statements are presented with
EUR as the reporting currency. Any difference between the rates are recognised
directly in the statement of shareholders equity.
General provision on recognition and measurement
Assets are recognised in the balance sheet if it is likely that future economic benefits will flow to the Group as a result of past events and the value of the assets
can be measured reliably.
Liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet if the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is likely that future economic
benefits will flow out of the Group, and the value of the liabilities can be measured
reliably.
In the initial recognition, assets and liabilities are measured at cost. Measurement after the initial recognition is effected as described below for each item.
Events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date but before the
financial statements, are issued, that provides evidence of conditions that existed
at the balance sheet are used to adjust the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
Revenue is recognised in the income statement as and when earned, whereas
costs are recognised at the amounts attributable to the financial period under
review.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities (including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (directly or indirectly owned subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The financial statements used for consolidation have been prepared applying
the Group’s accounting policies.
The results from subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. That date is the date
when the group effectively obtains or looses control over the subsidiary.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those by other members of
the Group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
For intra-group restructurings such as the formation of the new parent company, any difference between the acquisition costs and the equity of the acquired
companies are adjusted against equity since such transactions are considered
common control transactions and should not have an impact on the consolidated
balance sheet.
Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests consist of
the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interest of the Group except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.
Business combinations
The acquisition of companies or businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified

as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair value less
costs to sell.
Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The interest
of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s
proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.
Investments in associates and interest in joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that
is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies. Significant influence is normally present in situations where the company has more than 20% of the voting
interests but less than 50%.
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, that is when
the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities
requires the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Currently, where
the shareholding and votes is 50% of total (shareholding and votes), the company
accounts for these related investments as investments in associated companies.
The results, assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for
under IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
This share of income represents our share in the net income (after tax) from
these associates and is directly accounted in the income statement. No further
income tax expense is charged to this share of income as this kind of income is
untaxed in the countries of the related shareholding entities.
Under the equity method, investments in associates and joint ventures are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of
the Groups interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are not
recognised.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity or an associated company is accounted for in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary
(see above).
Gains and losses from divestment of shares
Gains or losses from divestment of subsidiaries and associates are calculated as
the difference between the selling price and the carrying amount of the net assets at the time of divestment, including a proportionate share of related goodwill
and estimated divestment expenses. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement under “Gains (loss) from sale of shares and tangible fixed assets”.
Foreign currency
Assets and liabilities in foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions are at the initial recognition translated into the
reporting currency using average monthly rates, which essentially reflect the rate
of exchange at the date of transaction. Receivables, liabilities and other monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies that have not been settled at the balance
sheet date are translated using the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences that arise between the rate at the date of transaction and
the one in effect at the date of payment, or the rate at the balance sheet date,
are recognised in the income statement as financial income or expense.
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Translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
The functional currency of the majority of the reporting entities is considered to
be their local currency. On consolidation, the reporting entities’ income statements are translated using the monthly average rates and balance sheets are
translated using the rates at the balance sheet date. Any difference between the
rates are recognised directly in the statement of shareholders’ equity.
The main exchange rates affecting the financial statements are:
	Average rate
	Year-end rate
January 1–
One EUR equals
December 31	December 31
Country
Currency
2006
2005
2006
2005
Denmark	DKK
7.46
7.46
7.46
7.45
Sweden
SEK
9.05
9.43
9.28
9.28
Norway	NOK
8.27
8.02
8.03
8.01
UK
GBP	
0.67
0.69
0.68
0.68
Income Statement
Revenue
Revenue consists mainly of fees from the hotel activities, including management and franchise fees, and sales done in owned and leased hotels. Fee revenue
(which is normally a percentage of hotels revenue and/or profits) is recognised
in the income statement based on the underlying contract agreements, while
revenue from sales in the hotels are included in the income statement when the
services have been rendered.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
Dividend from investments is recognised when the shareholders rights to
receive payment have been established.
Customer Loyalty Programme
A Customer Loyalty Programme (named as goldpoints plusSM) is used by the
Company to provide customers with incentives to buy room nights. Each time a
customer buys room nights, the company grants the customer award credits (described as ‘points’). The customer can redeem the award credits for awards such
as free room nights or trade to awards in other loyalty programmes. Members
enjoy discounts on various services such as food and beverages.
Within this context, the company recognises the original revenue in full and,
concurrently, recognises a provision for the estimated future costs of supplying
the goods or services.
Cost of goods sold
Cost of goods sold relates mainly to cost of goods in restaurants (Food & Beverage) incurred to generate revenue.
Leasing
As a lessee, Rezidor has entered into lease contracts primarily related to fully
furnished hotel premises. Each lease contract is subject to a determination as to
whether the lease is a financial or an operating lease. The classification of leases as
operating or financial leases are determined based on the individual terms. Leasing
contracts where virtually all rights and obligations (which normally characterise
ownership) are transferred from the lessor to the lessee are defined as a financial
leasing contract. At the beginning of the leasing period, finance leasing contracts are
reported at fair value. Assets held under finance leasing contracts are recognised in
the balance sheet as a fixed asset and future commitment to the lessor as a liability.
Leasing contracts that are non-financial are classified as operational leasing
contracts. All of our leases are currently classified as operating leases. In all current
leasing arrangements regarding hotels, Rezidor only carry risks limited to operating
the hotel. The lease cost for operating lease contracts is recognised on a straightline basis except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which the economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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Assessment of the leased assets’ useful economic life corresponds to the principles
Rezidor applies to acquired assets. However, in certain exceptional cases, where
Rezidor accepts a hotel that requires a major renovation or has excess capacity or
other capacity limitation in the short-run (that is, until such time when the property
builds up to its full potential), Rezidor may agree to pay a lower minimum lease fee in
the beginning of the lease period, and account for it accordingly to better reflect the
time pattern in which the economic benefits from such leased hotels are derived.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of any lease
benefits, if any, are recognised as a reduction of the leasing cost on a straight line
basis over the lease term.
Based on the transitional provisions of IAS 17 (revised 1999), the classification
of leases entered into prior to 1999 have been retained.
Personnel cost
Personnel costs comprise salaries and wages as well as social security costs, pension contributions, etc. for staff employed by the legal entities of the company.
Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses include royalty fees to Carlson and marketing expenses
but also expenses related to operating the hotels such as energy costs, supplies,
other external fees, laundry and dry cleaning, contract services, administration
costs, communication, travel, transport, operating equipment, rental and licences,
maintenance contracts and insurance property taxes.
Rental expenses
Rental expense include the rental costs paid and to be paid to the lessors of the
hotels. It also includes all management commitments (i.e. guarantee payments
or shortfalls) also to be paid or paid to the hotel owners based on the related
management contracts. Rental costs related to premises leased for administration purposes are recorded at cost in the rental expenses in the line item ‘Fixed
rent’ (see Note 12).
Financial income and expenses
Financial income and expenses items include interest income and expenses,
realised and unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses on securities and
shares, liabilities, value adjustments of financial assets, addition or deduction of
amortisation relating to morgage debt.
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
in the respective tax jurisdictions on the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is recognised on difference between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Notes to the group accounts

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt within equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current liabilities and when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Groups intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax for the period are recognised as an expense or
income in profit or loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited
directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity, or
where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the
case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating
goodwill or determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost.
Balance sheet
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rate on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
Other intangible assets
Acquired intangible assets in the form of rights are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation. These rights are amortised on a straight line basis over the
term of the agreement. Other intangible assets primarily relates to the contractual rights relating to the Carlson agreement which is being amortised over the
length of the contract. The contract expires in 2052. All other intangible assets
relating to leased properties are amortised over the rental period.
Intangible assets are written down to the lower of recoverable amount and
carrying amount.
Property, plant and equipment
Fixed installations in leased properties as well as machinery and equipment (mainly related to investments in leased hotels) are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and write-downs. Land is not being depreciated.
Cost includes the acquisition price, costs directly related to the acquisition, and
expenses incurred of making ready the asset to be put into operation.
Interest and other finance costs relating to tangible assets during the manufacturing period are recognised in the income statement.
The basis of depreciation is cost less the estimated residual value at the end of
the assets useful life. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis with the following percentages based on an assessment of the assets’ estimated useful lives:
Fixed installations and technical improvements
Guest room Furniture, Fixture and Equipment (FF&E)
Other Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment and machinery

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%

In case the remaining term of a lease agreement for a hotel is shorter than the
estimated useful life of the asset, the depreciation period is limited to the remainder of the lease term.

Tangible assets are written down to the lower of recoverable amount if the
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of the net sale value and the value in use.
Profits and losses from the sale of tangible assets are calculated as the difference between the selling price less selling expenses and the carrying amount at
the time of sale.
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimated of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is immediately recognised in profit or loss.
Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost (using the FIFO principle) and net
realizable value. Cost of goods for resale, raw materials and consumables consist
of purchase price plus handling cost.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost or fair value
depending on their initial categorisation under IAS 39.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Groups’s balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at settlement date.
Other shares and participations
Other shares and participations are classified as available-for-sale investments and
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity, until the security is disposed off or is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
included in the profit or loss for the period. Impairment losses recognised in profit and
loss for equity investments are not subsequently reversed through profit and loss. Investments where the fair value cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost. For
2005, these investments were accounted for in accordance with the fair value option.
Receivables
Receivables are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised
cost, usually equalling nominal value, less provisions for bad debts.
Other short-term investments
Other short term investments comprise cash on restricted accounts and are
measured at nominal value.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

37

Notes to the group accounts

Accounts payable
Accounts payable are classified as other financial liabilities and recognised at
amortised cost, usually equaling nominal value.
Other interest- and non-interest-bearing liabilities
Other interest- and non-interest-bearing liabilities are classified as other financial
liabilities and recognised at amortised cost, usually equaling nominal value.
Provisions
Provisions for obligations related to lease contracts and management contracts
are made if a contract is considered onerous. Other provisions are recognised and
measured as the best estimate of the expenses required for settling the liabilities
at the balance sheet date. Provisions that are estimated to mature in more than
one year after the balance sheet date are measured at their present value.
Retirement benefit obligations
Several companies within the Group have established pension plans for its employees. These pension commitments are mainly secured through various pension
plans. These vary considerably due to different legislation and agreements on
occupational pension systems in the individual countries.
For pension plans where the employer has accepted responsibility for defined
contribution solutions, the obligation to employees ceases when contractual premiums have been paid. For other pensions plans where defined benefit pensions
have been agreed, the commitments do not cease until the contractual pensions
have been paid to the employee on retirement.
The Group calculates its pension obligations for the defined benefit pension
plans. Calculations of obligations are based on estimated future final salary. An
estimate of funded assets is made at the balance sheet date.
Pension costs for the year comprise the present value of pensions earned
during the year, plus interest on the obligation at the beginning of the year, less
return on funded assets. Amortization of deviations from estimates and plan
amendments is added to this total for certain pension plans. Cumulative actuarial
deviations from estimates of up to 10% of the greater of pension obligations and
pension assets are included in the so-called corridor and are not amortised. When
the cumulated actuarial deviations from estimates exceeds this 10% limit, the
excess amount is amortised over the average remaining employment period of
the participants in the plan currently 15 years.
Share-based payment transactions
During the first quarter of 2005, the SAS group concluded an agreement with the
U.S.-based Carlson Hotels Worldwide. Under this agreement Carlson Hotels acquired 25% in Rezidor in exchange for improved commercial terms in the parties’
Master Franchise Agreement (MFA). The value of the transaction was measured
at fair value of the equity instrument granted at the date of the exchange.
Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement is presented using the indirect method. It shows cash
flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities as well
as the cash and cash equivalents at the beginning and the end of the financial
period.
Cash flows from the acquisition and divestment of enterprises are shown
separately under “Cash flow from investing activities”. Cash flows from acquired
enterprises are recognised in the cash flow statement from the time of their
acquisition, and cash flows from divested enterprises are recognised up to the
time of sale.
“Cash flow from operating activities” is calculated as operating income before
tax adjusted for non-cash operating items, increase or decrease in the working
capital and change in tax position.
“Cash flow from investing activities” includes payments in connection with the
acquisition and divestment of enterprises and activities as well as the purchase
and sale of intangible and tangible assets.
“Cash flow from financing activities” includes changes in the size or composition of the Group’s issued capital and related costs as well as the raising of loans,
installments on interest-bearing debt, and payment of dividends.
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Cash flows denominated in foreign currencies, including cash flows in foreign
subsidiaries, are translated at average monthly rates, which essentially reflect the
rates at the date of payment. Cash at year end is translated at the rates at the
balance sheet date.
Accounting principles – Parent Company
The Parent Company has prepared its Annual Report in accordance with the
Swedish Annual Accounts Act, Recommendation 32 (Accounting for Legal
Entities) of the Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Council and applicable
statements from its Emerging Issues Committee. Pursuant to Recommendation 32, in preparing the Annual Accounts for the legal entity, the Parent
Company shall apply all International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and statements, as approved by the European Union, as far as this is possible
within the framework of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the Act on
Safeguarding of Pension Obligations (Tryggandelagen) taking into account the
relationship between reporting and taxation. The Parent Company has Euro as
presentation currency.
The Parent Company mainly applies the principles explained in the present
Note 3 as in the consolidated accounts.

NOTE 4	Financial risk management
According to our finance policy, we systematically monitor and evaluate our financial risks, such as foreign exchange, interest rate, credit, liquidity and refinancing
risks. Measures aimed at managing and handling these financial risks are implemented within the parameters and guidelines set forth in our finance policy. Our
financial risks are handled at corporate level. Operative routines and delegation
authorisation with regard to financial risk management are documented in the
finance manual.
All business units and hotels report cash flow overview in order to manage
financial risks and complying with the finance policy.
The Group may use futures, options, currency swaps, interest rate swaps or
forward rate agreements to mitigate potential exposure to currency and interest
rate risks.
The main principle of our finance policy is to limit interest rate and foreign
exchange risks of all business units and hotels. This means that borrowing will
be primarily done in local currencies in order to hedge assets and equity in our
subsidiaries. Hedging is effected in the reporting currencies of the respective
subsidiaries on the basis of a liquidity forecast. The net currency flow is then
hedged externally at group level.
Interest rate risk
The main financing risk is related to our ability to control and meet our off-balance sheet commitments under leases with fixed rent payments and management agreements with guarantees. Such fixed lease and guaranteed amounts
have historically been agreed on a fixed rate basis with indexation as a percent
of change in the relevant consumer price index, and are, therefore, not exposed
to variations in the market interest rates. In addition, these commitments are
normally limited to an agreed maximum financial exposure, which is usually
capped at 2–3 times the annual guaranteed result under a contract. All of our
liabilities to financial institutions are floating rate loans. In accordance with our
finance policy, most of our future on-balance sheet liabilities will also be on a
floating rate basis.
Currency risk
Transaction Exposure
The Company generates revenue and incurs costs in a number of currencies, and
are therefore exposed to currency exchange rate fluctuations. The most important foreign currencies are the Swedish krona, the Norwegian krone, the Danish
krone, the U.S. dollar and pound sterling. The hotels with a large international customer base generally adjust their room rates charged in the local currency to take
into account volatile fluctuations in the Euro, our reporting currency, or the U.S.
dollar. As a result, the revenue and EBITDA derived from our leased hotels and the
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fees collected from our managed and franchised hotels are compensated through
our policy to adjust prices based on fluctuations, except for food and beverage
where we do not adjust prices.
Translation Exposure
The Company presents its financial statements in euro. Since certain of our
subsidiaries have a functional currency in another currency than euro, the
consolidated financial statements and shareholders’ equity are exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. If hedging is not used, this foreign currency exchange
rate risk could have a negative impact on our consolidated income statement
and balance sheet. Although we have several subsidiaries in a number of
countries with their balance sheets in different currencies, we are not materially exposed to translation risk as we do not own any real estate, with the
exception of certain minority interests in associates. Also, we seek to hedge
our balance sheet exposure by having assets and liabilities denominated in the
same currency. Exposure to foreign currency fluctuations is mainly related to
the conversion of the accounting for foreign entities into Euro. Activities in
foreign entities, which include owned and leased hotels, are typically carried
out in local currency.
Credit risks
Credit risks related to financial assets equal the values included in the balance
sheet. In some cases Rezidor has granted loans to hotel owners in early stages of
new projects. Based on market conditions, interest rates, repayment schedules
and security arrangements have been agreed upon. The Group does not have
any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represent the Group’s maximum credit
exposure.
Liquidity risks
It is the policy of Rezidor that the raising of capital and placement of excess
liquidity is managed centrally. Furthermore the Group has objectives for liquidity
reserves, such as excess cash and irrevocable credit facilities, that the Group at
any time should have available.
Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted markets prices;
the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions.

In reporting, goodwill, other intangible assets and tangible fixed assets, an assessment is made of the useful economic life and an assessment is made at least once
a year to determine whether impairment exists.
Deferred tax is recognised for all temporary differences between stated and
taxable income and for deferred tax receivables attributable to unutilised loss
carry-forwards. The valuation of loss carry-forwards and ability to utilise tax loss
carry-forwards is based on estimates of future taxable income.
Reporting of costs for defined benefit pensions are based on actuarial estimates derived from assumptions about discount rate, except return on managed
assets, future pay increases and inflation.
Provision are made when any probable and quantifiable risk of loss attributable to disputes is judged to exist. Provisions for claims due to known disputes
are recorded whenever there is a situation where it is more likely than not that
the company will have an obligation to settle the dispute and where a reliable
estimate can be made regarding the outcome of such dispute.
Moreover, in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, which
are described here above in Note 3, management has made following judgments that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
For amortising the intangible assets:
Following the Master Franchise Agreement with Carlson, the brands of the Group
have been valued and thus classified as intangible asset. This intangible asset has
been amortised on a linear basis throughout its useful life which is the lifetime of
the Master Franchise Agreement with Carlson.
.
NOTE 6 	Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that could have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed here below.
For general impairment testing:
At each balance sheet date (closing date), a review is conducted to look for
any indication that the company’s tangible, intangible assets and contracts are
impaired and if this is the case, the recoverable amount of the individual assets
and contracts (or the cash-generating unit to which they belong) is calculated in
order to determine whether impairment exists.
The method used for testing assets in use is to apply the net present value
(NPV) technique using the internal discount rate (Weighted Average Cost of
Capital) which is recalculated regularly and per region. The cash flows discounted
are based on long range plans. If the net present value of these long range plans
shows an NPV that is below the carrying value, then impairment is considered on
the related tangible and intangible group of assets.

Other shares and participations (note 20) are measured at cost in accordance
with IAS 39 as at December 31, 2006 because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured. For other financial assets and financial liabilities, the carrying amounts
in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

For assessment of onerous contracts in management and lease
agreements:
The same method as for impairment is applied to test if management contracts
or lease agreements are onerous and if applicable a provision is recorded.

Financial risk management – Parent Company
The Parent Company applies the Group Finance policy.

For assessment of the off-balance sheet commitments:
For the leasing commitments, the Company estimates that the future leasing
expense would entail payment of at least the annual fixed rent under the lease
agreements (see Note 30).
For management contract commitments, the Company discloses its maximum capped financial exposure related to all management agreements that
carry a financial commitment. However of the maximum exposure presently
disclosed (see note 31), the annual costs are just a small part of the maximum
commitment.

NOTE 5

Critical judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements and application of accounting policies are
often based on the management’s assessments or on estimates and assumptions
deemed reasonable and prudent at the time they are made. Below is an overall
description of the accounting policies affected by such estimates or assumptions that are expected to have the most significant impact on Rezidor Groups’
reported earnings and financial position.
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NOTE 7	Revenue
Operating revenue
per area of operation
TEUR

For the Year Ended December 31
2006

2005

Rooms revenue

393,328

321,424

Food & Beverage revenue

213,931

183,707

23,402

20,755

630,661

525,886

Fees from managed hotels

52,156

36,428

Fees from franchised hotels

10,512

9,476

Other non-hotel revenue2)

13,990

15,256

707,319

587,046

Other hotel revenue1)
Hotel revenue

Total revenue

	The line item ‘Other hotel revenue’ consists of complementary hotel revenue such as
revenue from parking, pool, laundry, gym.
2)
	The line item ‘Other non-hotel Revenue’ consists of complementary Group revenue such
as administration revenue.
1)

NOTE 8

Segmental disclosures

Information is provided for geographical markets and operating structures.
Indeed, for management and reporting purposes, the Group is mainly organized
into a mix:
of geographical markets (or regions);
and of different types of contractual agreements (or operating structures)
(see below).
These regions and these types of contractual agreements are the basis on which
the Group reports respectively its primary segment and its secondary segment.
The Rezidor Group’s principal geographical markets or regions, in which the
Group operates its business, representing the primary segment consists of:
The ‘Nordic Region’ including Denmark, Finland, Iceland, Norway and Sweden;
The ‘Rest of Western Europe’ including Austria, Belgium, France, Germany, Ireland,
Italy, Malta, The Netherlands, Portugal, Switzerland and the United Kingdom;
‘Eastern Europe’ including Azerbaijan, Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland, Russia, Slovakia, Turkey, Ukraine, and
Uzbekistan; and
‘Middle East, Africa and Other’ including Bahrain, China, Egypt, Jordan, Kuwait,
Lebanon, Oman, Saudi Arabia, South Africa, Tunisia and the United Arab Emirates.
The Rezidor Group’s types of contractual arrangements, in which the Rezidor
hotels are operated, representing the secondary segment consists of:
‘Leased’ contractual arrangements:
	Under our lease agreements, we lease hotel buildings from property owners or
other partners and are entitled to the benefits and carry the risks associated
with operating the hotel. We derive revenue primarily from room sales and food
and beverage sales in restaurants, bars and banqueting. Our main costs arising
under a lease agreement are costs related to rent paid to the lessor, personnel
costs and other operating expenses. Rent payments to lessor typically include a
variable rent (as % of hotel revenue) with an underlying minimum fixed rent (for
more details see note 30). Under some lease agreements, we also reimburse the
owner of the hotel property for property taxes and property insurance.
Under our lease agreements, we are responsible for maintaining the hotel
building in good repair and condition over the term of the lease agreement.
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‘Managed’ contractual arrangements:
Under our management agreements, we provide management services for
third-party hotel proprietors. We derive revenue primarily from base fees determined as a percentage of total hotel revenue and incentive management fees
defined as a percentage of the gross operating profit or adjusted gross operating
profit of the hotel operations. In addition, we collect marketing fees based on
total room revenue, while for Regent and Missoni branded hotels marketing fees
are based on total revenue, and reservation fees based on the number of reservations made. Under some management agreements, we may offer the hotel
proprietor a minimum guaranteed result, as further described in note 31.
Under a management agreement, the hotel proprietor is responsible for all
investments in and costs of the hotel, including the funding of periodic maintenance and repair, as well as for insurance of the hotel property. The employees
that operate the hotels are in general employees of the hotel proprietor.
‘Franchised’ contractual arrangements:
Under our franchise agreements, we authorise a third-party hotel operator or
property owner to operate its hotel under one of the brands in our portfolio.
Accordingly, under such agreements, we neither own, lease nor manage the
hotel. We derive revenue from a brand royalty or licensing fee which, under
most of our franchise agreements, is based on a percentage of total room
revenue generated by a hotel. In addition, we collect marketing fees based on
total room revenue and reservation fees based on the number of reservations
made. In order to gain access to different concepts and programmes associated with the brand, the hotel owners normally have to pay additional fees.
Currently, we are not allowed to enter into franchise agreement for the Regent
or Missoni brands.
‘Other’ relationships including the share of income from associates.
For Revenue, EBITDA, EBIT are disclosed within a primary geographical segment and also within a second operating structure segment.
For Revenue, EBITDA and EBIT:
The split made between the detailed segments is based on the location of the business activities and on the net contribution of each related entities in their respective regional place of business, meaning that the segmental disclosure is made after
elimination of intra-group and intra-segment transactions (i.e. internal fees).
The line item ‘Leased’ represents, per region, the net operational contribution
of leased hotels per region.
The line item ‘Managed’ represents, per region, the fees from managed hotels
less related marketing costs, Royalty fees and reservation fees.
The line item ‘Franchised’ represents, per region, the fees from franchised
hotels less related marketing costs, Royalty fees and reservation fees.
The line item ‘Other’ represents the contribution of the rest of the administrative activities and includes also the share of income in associates (for EBITDA) and
gain (loss) on sale of shares and tangible assets (for EBIT).
For EBITDA and EBIT:
The line item ‘Central costs’ represents corporate costs (excluding the marketing costs which are allocated to the operational units—i.e., Leased, Managed,
Franchised).
Total assets and capital expenditure (investments) are disclosed within the primary geographical segment and secondary segment (operating structure). Assets
and capital expenditure include those used directly in the operation of each segment, including intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investments
in associates. These assets are allocated according to their physical location.
Key Performance Indicators like RevPAR (i.e. Rooms revenue in relation to the
number of rooms available) expressed in Euro and Occupancy (i.e. Number of
rooms sold in relation to the numbers of rooms available) expressed in rate are
disclosed between major brands which are Radisson SAS and Park Inn.
The number of hotels and rooms in operation is segmented by geographic market and by operating structure.
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Segmentation – Revenue
Nordic Region

TEUR

Rest of
Western Europe

For the year ended

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Leased

Middle East,
Africa and Other

Eastern Europe
Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Total

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

%

Dec. 31,
2005

%

290,845

267,831

339,809

258,055

–

–

–

–

630,654

89.2

525,886

89.6

Managed

4,508

4,379

22,259

14,921

16,282

11,834

9,117

5,294

52,166

7.4

36,428

6.2

Franchised

6,134

5,715

2,995

2,584

1,054

678

330

499

10,513

1.5

9,476

1.6

Other

12,315

14,385

1,671

871

–

–

–

–

13,986

1.9

15,256

2.6

Total

313,802

292,310

366,734

276,431

17,336

12,512

9,447

5,793

707,319

100.0

587,046

100.0

Segmentation – EBITDA
Operating profit before depreciation
(EBITDA)
TEUR
For the year ended

Nordic Region

Rest of Western
Europe

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

Eastern Europe

Middle East,
Africa and
Other

Central costs

Total

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

40,343

11,323

–

–

–

51,666

Managed

2,530

9,749

10,262

6,677

–

29,218

Franchised

2,932

1,205

506

300

–

4,943

Other1)

4,131

(800)

59

4,808

–

8,198

–

–

–

–

(33,044)

(33,044)

Leased

Central costs

–

–

–

–

(4,392)

(4,392)

49,936

21,477

10,827

11,785

(37,436)

56,589

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

34,856

4,893

–

–

–

39,749

Managed

2,440

6,232

8,205

3,977

–

20,854

Franchised

1,967

650

30

161

–

2,808

Other1)

2,755

(1,317)

3,206

911

–

5,555

–

–

–

–

(25,255)

(25,255)

42,018

10,458

11,441

5,049

(25,255)

43,711

Nordic Region

Rest of Western
Europe

Eastern Europe

Middle East,
Africa and
Other

Central costs

Total

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2006

28,190

3,983

–

–

–

32,173

Managed

2,452

9,529

10,088

6,630

–

28,699

Franchised

2,814

1,132

500

291

–

4,737

Other1)

3,556

(1,893)

60

4,809

–

6,532

–

–

–

–

(33,044)

(33,044)

IPO
Total
For the year ended
Leased

Central costs
Total

Segmentation – EBIT
Operating profit (EBIT)
For the year ended
TEUR
Leased

Central costs

–

–

–

–

(4,392)

(4,392)

37,012

12,751

10,648

11,730

(37,436)

34,705

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2005

23,140

(1,583)

–

–

–

21,557

Managed

2,398

6,141

8,139

3,935

–

20,613

Franchised

1,897

612

19

154

–

2,682

Other2)

2,440

4,349

3,206

911

–

10,906

IPO
Total
For the year ended
Leased

Central costs
Total

–

–

–

–

(25,255)

(25,255)

29,875

9,519

11,364

5,000

(25,255)

30,503

	Other also includes share of income in associates.
	Other also includes share of income in associates and gain (loss) on sale of shares and tangible assets.

1)
2)
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Segmentation – (Continued)
Share of income and gain (loss) on sale
of shares and tangible assets

Rest of
Western Europe

Nordic Region

Middle East,
Africa and Other

Eastern Europe

Total

For the year ended
TEUR

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

2,641

2,096

–

520

Share of income in associates
Gain (loss) on sale of shares and tangible assets

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

–

–

59

3,207

2,596

910

5,296

6,213

–

6,156

–

–

–

–

–

6,676

Segmentation – Balance sheet
Rest of
Western Europe

Nordic Region

Middle East,
Africa and Other

Eastern Europe

Total

TEUR

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Total assets

195,048

168,489

159,587

136,297

19,239

16,466

28,749

32,994

402,623

354,246

Investments1)

11,493

14,984

21,124

17,195

–

–

–

2,426

32,617

34,605

Depreciation

13,697

12,330

8,187

7,554

–

–

–

–

21,884

19,884

Liabilities

222,966

199,640

(8,073)

(5,236)

3,831

2,806

7,518

7,454

226,243

204,664

Total assets

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Leased

177,526

153,975

145,731

121,306

–

–

–

–

323,257

275,281

Managed

10,050

4,138

10,391

10,700

18,814

12,686

26,765

21,537

66,020

49,061
13,030

Franchised

5,441

7,115

3,465

3,684

249

1,584

386

647

9,541

Other

2,031

3,261

–

607

176

2,196

1,598

10,810

3,805

16,874

Total

195,048

168,489

159,587

136,297

19,239

16,466

28,749

32,994

402,623

354,246

	Excluding cash flow attributable to financial assets.

1)

Segmentation – Investments
Rest of
Western Europe

Nordic Region
TEUR

Middle East,
Africa and Other

Eastern Europe

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Total

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

11,493

14,951

21,124

17,195

–

–

–

–

32,617

32,146

Managed

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

2,426

–

2,426

Leased
Franchised

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Other

–

33

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

33

Total

11,493

14,984

21,124

17,195

–

–

–

2,426

32,617

34,605

Segmentation – Revpar and occupancy 1)
Radisson SAS
Dec. 31, 2006

1)

Park Inn

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2006

Rezidor

Dec. 31, 2005

Dec. 31, 2006

Dec. 31, 2005

RevPAR, EUR

78

71

47

44

72

67

Occupancy, %

71

69

64

61

69

67

REVPAR (REVenue Per Available Room) – is calculated as Rooms revenue in relation to the number of rooms available. Occupancy
– is calculated as the number of rooms sold in relation to the number of rooms available.
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Segmentation – Hotel inventory (in operation)
Summary by geographic area and by operating structure
Nordic Region
As of December 31, 2006 – In operation

Rest of Western
Europe

Eastern Europe

Middle East, Africa
and Other

Total

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

22

5,812

41

8,415

0

0

0

0

63

14,227

Managed

7

2,042

41

7,099

24

5,722

19

4,551

91

19,414

Franchised

41

6,032

25

4,797

4

711

1

282

71

11,822

Total Rezidor

70

13,886

107

20,311

28

6,433

20

4,833

225

45,463

Leased

Nordic Region
As of December 31, 2005 – In operation

Rest of Western
Europe

Eastern Europe

Middle East, Africa
and Other

Total

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

Hotels

Rooms

22

5,812

39

8,134

0

0

0

0

61

13,946

Managed

8

2,108

36

6,414

20

4,248

17

3,885

81

16,655

Franchised

43

6,177

24

4,326

7

1,787

3

974

77

13,264

Total Rezidor

73

14,097

99

18,874

27

6,035

20

4,859

219

43,865

Leased

NOTE 9	Related parties
Related party transactions: trading transactions
The business relationship with Carlson mainly consists of operating costs related
to the use of the brands and for the use of the reservation system of Carlson.
Rezidor is also paying commissions towards the travel agencies network of Carlson. The related transactions are split as follows:

Related parties with significant influence are: Carlson owning 35% of the shares.
Other related parties are the management of Rezidor (see note 10). Rezidor also
has some related party transactions with joint ventures and associated companies
(see below) which mainly consist of loans granted to them and/or management
fees (see also Note 22).

Sale

Operating costs

Amounts owed by
the related parties

Amounts owed to
the related parties

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec.
31,2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Carlson Inc

–

–

7,223

11,082

1,049

955

2,226

2,199

Carlson travel agencies

–

–

425

413

–

–

88

75

of November 2006). The business relationship with SAS mainly involved services
for the crew and staff of SAS and administration of parts of SAS’ frequent flyer
program, Eurobonus. Rezidor SAS also bought services from SAS Finance. As at
end of November 2006, Rezidor had related parties towards SAS as follows:

Prior to the IPO (28/11/2006), SAS was also a related party with a major influence. Since then and because SAS has not significant influence anymore, no related party transactions are reported towards SAS from November 28th, 2006 (see
hereunder and for information these transactions until the IPO of Rezidor – end

Sale

SAS

Operating costs

Interest income

Interest expense

Amounts owed by the
related parties

Amounts owed to the
related parties

Nov. 30,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Nov. 30,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Nov.30,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Nov. 30,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

Dec. 31,
2006

Dec. 31,
2005

9,443

9,674

1,009

1,014

230

173

781

3,320

–

18,422

–

21,865

Compensation to Senior Executives like remuneration to the Board of Directors,
CEO and Executive Committee are disclosed in Note 10 (page 44).
Related party transactions: Joint ventures and associated
companies
As of December 31,
TEUR
Loans due from joint ventures and associated companies
Loans due to joint ventures and associated companies
Interest income from joint ventures and associated
companies
Revenue (Management fees) from joint ventures
and associates

2006

2005

10,315

9,939

2,448

2,658

151

–

4,434

3,586

.
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NOTE 10	Payroll cost, number of employees, etc
For the Year Ended
December 31

Payroll cost

2006

2005

181,479

153,327

Social security

30,628

26,701

Pension costs

2,921

4,846

215,028

184,874

TEUR
Salaries

Sub-total
Other personnel costs (other benefits in kind)
Total

31,686

21,530

246,714

206,404

These costs are included in the line personnel cost in the income statement.
The split of these costs per country is as follows:
Salaries

Social Security

Pension Costs

Other
Personnel Costs

Sub Total

2005

2006

2005

2006

2005

2006

2005

2006

2005

2006

2005

Denmark

11,657

11,004

524

675

249

227

12,430

11,906

2,325

1,122

14,755

13,028

Norway

55,571

52,393

7,780

7,421

986

912

64,337

60,726

3,923

2,623

68,260

63,349

Sweden

15,631

13,238

5,856

6,193

533

1,316

22,020

21,638

2,381

1,047

24,401

22,685

United
Kingdom

34,011

24,071

1,619

94

209

202

35,839

24,367

1,323

296

37,162

24,663

Germany

25,360

20,298

5,361

4,178

–

70

30,721

24,546

7,720

6,908

38,441

31,454

France

10,733

10,201

3,388

3,249

–

557

14,121

14,007

1,378

714

15,499

14,721

Belgium

20,638

14,163

5,034

3,858

944

1,188

26,616

19,209

11,097

7,807

37,713

27,016

Other

7,878

7,959

1,066

1,033

–

374

8,944

9,366

1,539

1,013

10,483

10,379

Total

181,479

153,327

30,628

26,701

2,921

4,846

215,028

185,765

31,686

21,530

246,714

207,295

The average number of employees in Rezidor’s companies’ during 2006 was
5,447 (4,922) and is split as follows:

Remuneration1) – Executive Committee (including
CEO) and Board of Directors
TEUR

For the Year Ended December 31
2006

Remuneration to the external members
of the Board of Directors

2005

Men

Women

Men

Women

Denmark

145

105

132

115

Norway

572

756

513

765

Sweden

189

317

202

323

UK

686

710

634

544

Germany

493

506

475

519

France

224

209

163

160

Belgium

171

125

180

92

Other

119

120

57

48

Totals

2,599

2,848

2,356

2,566

Total men and women

5,447

4,922
For the Year Ended December 31
2006

1)

Total

2006

2005

Men

Women

Men

Women

Members of the Board
of Directors1)

5

4

5

1

Executive Committee
(including CEO)

8

2

6

–

These numbers of members relate only to the members of the Board of Directors
of the Parent Company.
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Salaries and bonuses to Executive Committee
Pension costs to Executive Committee:
Defined contribution plan
Defined benefit plan
Housing and company cars for the Executive Committee
Phantom share plan for the CEO and CFO
1)

For the Year Ended
December 31
2006

2005

22

30

4,099

2,757

488
41

535
–

425

327

2,766

–

The remuneration numbers exclude social security costs, except for the figure that
relates to phantom share plan for the CEO and CFO, which includes social security cost
of TEUR 394.

The bonus of the Executive Committee was subject to accruals for each year. The
basis for the annual bonus scheme for the Executive Committee is the consolidated profitability of Rezidor.
These bonuses are based on percentages that are not fixed as they vary in
relation to the level of achievement, and are capped at approximately 35 to 50%
of annual salary.
The related bonus costs represent the best estimate made at the balance sheet
dates. The final bonus payment is dependent on certain factors that will finally be
known at a date subsequent of the release of the financial statements.
Therefore, bonuses accrued in a specific year may be adjusted in subsequent
periods as a result of the final parameters (like the final profitability of the company) deviating from the assumptions made at the balance sheet dates.

Notes to the group accounts

The CEO and the CFO had individual bonus arrangements through an incentive
plan which was established in 2002 under the form of a phantom share plan for
the period 2003–2007. Prior to the termination of this plan in September 2006,
no payments were made under the plan. In connection with the termination, the
CEO received a one-time compensation of CHF 1.1 million (net of social security
and other employer payments) and the CFO EUR 0.6 million (net of social security
and other employer payments) in October 2006. For both of them, the total
related amount including taxes and social security costs is TEUR 2,766.
For members of the Executive Committee (excl. the CEO) the notice period for
termination of their agreement is between 3 and 6 months. If their agreements
are terminated by us, the severance pay would amount to between one and three
years annual remuneration.

NOTE 11

For the Year Ended December 31

The remuneration for the CEO is as follows:

Remuneration – CEO

593

688

Bonuses (including phantom share plan – see below)

982

(100)

Pension

183

183

Housing and company cars

114

164

2006

2005

Royalty fees to Carlson

7,223

11,080

Energy costs

22,407

16,319

Supplies

17,789

11,254

Marketing expenses

30,278

26,847

Insurance of properties and property tax

12,376

12,172

External fees

12,268

7,394

Laundry and dry cleaning

10,930

10,514

Contract services

4,166

4,031

Administration costs

6,454

5,033

Communication, travel and transport

7,852

7,019

599

539

Operating equipment

2,606

2,123

Rentals and licences

3,538

2,316

Property operating expenses

5,841

6,471

Maintenance contracts

5,137

3,198

17,558

22,941

167,022

149,251

Other expenses
Total other operating expenses

The figure for 2006 is lower due to a one-off retroactive adjustment amounting to
TEUR (205).

This remuneration of the CEO is mainly paid by ‘The Rezidor Hotel Group
S.A.’ (Belgium), but due to a dual agreement, the CEO also receives another
remuneration from Rezidor Hotel Group AB (Sweden) amounting to TEUR 37
(see also note 2 hereafter in the Parent Company Accounts). These figures are
excluding social costs. The minimum annual increase in the contracted base
salary of the CEO is 5%.
The remuneration of our Chief Executive Officer Mr Ritter, under the service contract, consists of an annual net salary of CHF 842,344 and a bonus of
maximum of 50% of his annual base salary based of pre-set targets for the
performance of our group. In case of a temporary incapacity, Mr. Ritter is entitled to receive his full salary and other benefits for 26 weeks of any period
of 52 weeks when he is unable to perform his duties. In case a temporary incapacity develops into a non-temporary incapacity making Mr. Ritter eligible
for the fixed payment above, Mr. Ritter’s compensation is maximized to what
he would be entitled to receive as a fixed payment. In addition, he is entitled
to certain benefits such as housing, car and travel allowances. Either we or
Mr. Ritter may terminate the agreement upon six months’ written notice. In
the case of termination of the agreement by us (other than due to gross negligence by Mr. Ritter) or termination by Mr. Ritter as a result of gross breach
by us of the agreement, Mr. Ritter is entitled to 30 months’ salary and value
of three years’ housing upon termination. He also has the right to this fixed
payment if there is a major change in his duties and responsibilities or in the
ownership structure of our company. Mr. Ritter participates in a contribution
pension scheme to which we make annual contributions in an amount equal
to 41% of his annual net salary until the termination of his employment. Mr.
Ritter’s pension age is 62. His employment agreement also includes a fixed
payment equal to three years’ net salary and TEUR 375 as a compensation
for three years’ value of housing if he retires on February 28, 2009 or, before
such date, is non-temporarily incapacitated to fulfill his duties as a result of
death or, sickness or injury.

TEUR

Insurance costs

2005

Salaries

1)

1)

For the Year Ended
December 31
2006

TEUR

Other operating expenses

NOTE 12	Rental expense
For the Year Ended December 31
2006

2005

144,139

121,729

Variable rent2)

28,743

18,450

Guarantee payments3)

10,210

6,503

Other rent payments4)

–

(810)

183,092

145,872

TEUR
Fixed rent1)

Total rent

Fixed rent represent all fixed lease payments (or minimum lease payments) made to the
owners of the leased hotels. This line item also includes rental costs of premises which
are leased for administration purposes.
2)
Variable rent represent all variable lease payments (or contingent lease payments) made
to the owners of the leased hotels (based on the underlying contract type) which are
primarily based on the revenue of the leased hotels.
3)
Guarantee payments are payments (or shortfalls payments) made to the owners of the
managed hotels (based on the underlying contract type) which are primarly based on
the profitability of the managed hotels.
4)
	Other rent payments consist of reimbursements of rents.
1)
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NOTE 13 	Gain on sale of shares and tangible assets

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Gain on sale of shares and tangible assets are split as follows:
For the Year Ended
December 31
2006

TEUR
Sales price of shares

–

1)

2005
6,787

Profit from operations

Carrying value of shares

–

(631)

–

6,156

Sales price of assets

–

799
(279)

Carrying value of assets

–

Transaction cost related to sale of assets

–

–

Net gain on sale of assets

–

520

Total net gain on sale of shares and tangible assets

–

6,676

	The gain on sale of shares in 2005 is related to the disposal of SAS Hotel London Stansted
Ltd. The proceeds received from the sale amounted to TEUR 74,439. The difference
between the proceeds received and the sales price is related to the repayment of the debt.

1)

NOTE 14	Financial items
For the Year Ended
December 31
2006

2005

230

173

Interest income received from SAS

1,314

884

–

6,000

Other Financial Income

153

675

Foreign currency exchange gains

414

–

2,111

7,732

Interest income from external financial institutions
Fair value adjustments on shares

Financial income
Interest expense paid to SAS

(781)

(3,320)

Interest expense to external financial institutions

(2,533)

(2,184)

Other Financial expense

(1,045)

(663)

–

(1,078)

Financial expense

(4,359)

(7,245)

Financial income and expenses, net

(2,248)

487

Foreign currency exchange losses

Profit from continuing operations
Profit from discontinued operations

Net gain on sale of shares

TEUR

TEUR

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2006

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2005

Tax expense/(income) comprises:

Adjustments recognised in the current year
in relation to the current tax of prior years
Deferred tax expense/(income) relating
to the origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Total tax expense/(income)

14,581

6,603

1,341

(2,442)

(12,434)

3,611

3,488

7,771

3,488

7,771

Attributable to:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

46

32,457

30,990

–

–

32,457

30,990

Income tax expense calculated at 28%

9,088

8,677

Effect of revenue that is exempt from
taxation

(3,377)

(8,158)

3,852

1,498

914

7,056

(9,197)

–

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

583

942

Effect of withholding taxes

284

199

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in
determining taxable profit
Effect of unused tax losses and tax offsets
not recognized as deferred tax assets
Effect of previously unrecognized and
unused tax losses and tax offsets now
recognized as deferred tax assets

2,147

10,214

Adjustments recognized in the current year
related to the current tax of prior years

1,341

(2,442)

Income tax expense recognized in profit
or loss

3,488

7,771

The tax rate used for the 2006 and 2005 reconciliations above is the corporate
tax rate of 28% payable by corporate entities in Sweden on taxable profits under
tax law in that jurisdiction.

Current tax assets and liabilities
TEUR

For the Year
Ended Dec. 31,
2006

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2005

995

1 346

995

1 346

(10,054)

(5,968)

(10,054)

(5,968)

Current tax assets
Income taxes, receivable

Income taxes, payable

Current tax expense/(income)

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2005

Current tax liabilities

NOTE 15 	Income tax
Income tax expense recognised in
profit or loss
TEUR

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2006

–

–

3,488

7,771
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Deferred tax balances
2006
TEUR

Deferred tax balances are presented in the balance sheet as follows:
Opening
balance

Charged to
income

Closing
balance
TEUR

Temporary differences
Intangible assets
Untaxed reserves

(3,638)

(3,429)
0

(495)

Pensions

(1,783)

(1,561)

(3,344)

Other liabilities

(3,579)

1,400

(2,179)

Shares in subsidiaries

(4,147)

1,485

(2,661)

(661)

658

(3)

(14,303)

(1,447)

(15,749)

332

(92)

240

Property, plant & equipment
Doubtful debts

1,378

(724)

654

Other short-term non-interestbearing liabilities

(1,627)

5,499

3,872

Tax losses

13,001

9,197

22,198

13,084

13,880

26,964

(1,219)

12,433

11,214

Opening
balance

Charged to
income

Closing
balance

2005
TEUR

Deferred tax assets

(7,067)

(495)

Long-term non-interest bearing
receivables

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrecognized deferred tax assets
TEUR

Tax losses - revenue

NOTE 16

(3,638)

Untaxed reserves

–

(495)

(495)

Pensions

–

(1,783)

(1,783)

Other liabilities

(1,150)

(2,429)

(3,579)

Shares in subsidiaries

(5,599)

1,453

(4,147)

2,519

(3,180)

(661)

Long-term non-interest bearing
receivables

Property, plant & equipment
Doubtful debts
Other short-term non-interestbearing liabilities
Tax losses

(5,160)

(14,303)

448

(116)

332

–

1,378

1,378

(3,411)

1,784

(1,627)

14,498

(1,497)

13,001

11,535

1,549

13,084

2,392

(3,611)

(1,219)

11,215

(1,219)

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2006

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2005

19,982

27,426

19,982

27,426

Dec. 31
EUR

2006

2005

0.19

0.15

Basic earnings per share before
allocation to minority interest1)

Total basic earnings per share
1)

-

-

0.19

0.15

There is no dilution of the earnings.

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:
Dec. 31
2006

2005

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the parent

20,719

17,719

Profit for the year attributable to minority interest
(see Note 26)

8,250

5,500

-

-

28,969

23,219

TEUR
(9,143)

13,084
(14,303)

Earnings per share

From discontinued opeations
1,274

26,964
(15,749)

The unrecognized tax losses have no time limit.

From continuing operations
(4,912)

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2005

The following deferred tax assets have not
been recognized at the balance sheet date:

Temporary differences
Intangible assets

For the Year
Ended Dec.
31, 2006

Profit for the year from discontinued opeations
Earnings used in the calculation of
basic earning per share from continuing
operations1)

Dec. 31
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purposes of basic earnings per share

2006

2005

149,979,887

149,942,456

	In relation to the exchange of the preference shares, the minority interest earned as of
September 30, 2006 (TEUR 8,250) have been subsequently acquired by the parent
company and therefore eliminated in equity. In order to present a representative view
of the earnings per share, we present earnings per share before allocation to minority
interest.

1)
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NOTE 17	Intangible assets

Intangible assets
TEUR
Net carrying value
December 31, 2004
Acquisition value January 1, 2005

Goodwill
12,729

Other
intangible
assets
697

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the
cash generating units that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The net carrying amount of goodwill was as follows:
Total
13,426

Country Inns & Suites FRG Hotelmgt Gmbh

3,814

3,813

Radisson SAS Hotel, Nice

6,323

6,320

621

597

12,625

12,597

63,365

8

229

Translation adjustment

130

103

233

Cost at December 31, 2005

15,918

64,461

80,379

Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2005

(2,838)

(288)

(3,126)

(1,236)

(1,236)

Depreciation according to plan
–

10

10

(495)

(131)

(626)

12

(7)

5

(3,321)

(1,652)

(4,973)

Goodwill

Other
intangible
assets

Total

12,597

62,809

75,406

15,918

64,461

80,379

Investments

–

3,246

3,246

Other adjustments

–

561

561

Translation adjustment

32

72

104

Cost at
December 31, 2006

15,950

68,340

84,290

Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2006

Accumulated depreciation
December 31, 2005

Intangible assets
TEUR
Net carrying value
December 31, 2005
Acquisition value January 1, 2006

(3,321)

(1,652)

(4,973)

Depreciation according to plan

–

(1,677)

(1,677)

Other Adjustments

–

(445)

(445)

(4)

(9)

(13)

Accumulated depreciation
December 31, 2006

(3,325)

(3,783)

(7,108)

Net carrying value
December 31, 2006

12,625

64,557

77,182

Translation adjustment

	The increase of the investments in ‘Other intangible assets’ during 2005 is mainly due
to the issuance of the preference shares to Carlson Sub with an aggregate premium of
TEUR 55,000. The related net carrying value as at December 31, 2006 amounts to
TEUR 53,245.

1)
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1,867

16,552

63,365

Translation adjustment

2005

1,867

985

–

Sales/Disposals

2006

15,567
221

Other Adjustments

As of December 31

TEUR
Radisson SAS Hotel, Amsterdam

Other adjustments

Investments

1)

Cash Generating Units (CGU)

Others
Total net carrying amount

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are
indications that goodwill may be impaired. The recoverable amounts for all cash
generating units have been estimated based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes in occupancy and room rates (which have a
direct or indirect impact depending on type of contract) and direct costs during
the period.
Present value of expected cash flows have been estimated using a discount
rate based on the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) that reflects current
market assessments for the time value of money and the risks specific to the
contract.
Changes in selling prices and occupancy and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market. The Group prepares
cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management over the related length of each respective contracts normally ranging from 15 to 20 years. The assumed rate of growth in each contract or group of
contracts ranges from 2% to 17%, as justified.
A discount rate of approximately 9.0% has been used when discounting future
cash flows. Each individual hotel contract to which goodwill has been allocated
has been valued separately, taking into account the remaining contract term and
the applicable commercial terms.
The expected cash flows for each unit take into account the budgeted figures
for 2007–2009, as prepared by Rezidor as part of its overall year-end budget
process, which are also the base for the long-range projections until the expiry
of the respective contracts. The long term growth in revenues, costs and profit
margins follow similar development pattern as the change in local consumer
price index in line with the historical growth rates experienced in those regions
except justified otherwise by other factors. Such factors include ongoing higher
than inflation improvement in market RevPAR (such as in Germany), building up
of revenues due to renovation works already carried out (such as at Radisson
SAS Hotel, Nice), revenue turnaround and cost restructuring programmes at
some of the mid-market hotels, and impact of future re-branding of one or
more properties.
In light of the foregoing assumptions and expectations and the respective
contract valuations, the carrying values of the stated goodwill are not impaired.
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NOTE 18	Tangible assets
Fixed installations in
leased properties

Machinery and
equipment

Investments in
progress

Total

Net carrying value December 31, 2004

77,878

52,216

4,439

134,533

Acquisition value January 1, 2005

134,391

140,393

4,439

279,223

3,604

18,001

4,635

26,240

(56,999)

(12,323)

–

(69,322)

TEUR

Investments
Sales/Disposals
Other adjustments
Translation adjustment

129

180

(779)

(470)

3,087

603

19

3,709

84,212

146,854

8,314

239,380

(56,513)

(88,177)

–

(144,690)

(6,054)

(12,559)

–

(18,613)

651

1,743

–

2,394

Other Adjustments

(237)

1,245

–

1,008

Translation adjustment

(363)

(212)

–

(575)

(62,516)

(97,960)

–

(160,476)

21,696

48,894

8,314

78,904

84,152

146,854

8,314

239,320

Cost at December 31, 2005
Accumulated depreciation January 1, 2005
Depreciation according to plan
Sales/Disposals

Accumulated depreciation December 31, 2005
Net carrying value December 31, 2005
Acquisition value January 1, 2006

2,707

17,721

8,942

29,370

Sales/Disposals

(15)

(2,114)

–

(2,129)

Reclassifications

6,090

3,400

(9,490)

–

Other adjustments

3,076

(2,201)

71

946

Investments

(775)

(487)

(153)

(1,415)

95,235

163,173

7,684

266,092

(62,516)

(97,960)

–

(160,476)

(5,508)

(14,699)

–

(20,207)

15

1,802

–

1,817

Other Adjustments

(58)

(922)

–

(980)

Translation adjustment

470

867

–

1,337

(67,597)

(110,912)

–

(178,509)

27,638

52,261

7,684

87,583

Translation adjustment
Cost at December 31, 2006
Accumulated depreciation January 1, 2006
Depreciation according to plan
Sales/Disposals

Accumulated depreciation December 31, 2006
Net carrying value December 31, 2006

NOTE 19 	Investments in associated companies and joint ventures
Ownership
(%) as
of Dec.
31,2005

Ownership
(%) as of
Dec. 31,
2006

Carrying
value as of
Dec. 31,
2005

Share of
Income

Dividend

Other

Investment

Casino Denmark A/S

50%

50%

–

–

–

1

–

–

Casino Denmark K/S

50%

50%

3,167

2,641

(2,882)

1

–

2,927

TEUR

Carrying
value as of
Dec. 31,
2006

50%

50%

388

241

–

–

–

629

26.08%

26.08%

161

59

–

–

1.501

1,721

Rezidor SAS Hotels & Resorts Middle East WLL

50%

50%

890

979

–

1

–

1,870

Al Quesir Hotel Company S.A.E.

20%

20%

1,686

–

–

–

640

2,326

Timmerdorfer Strand

20%

20%

307

–

–

–

–

307

SAS Royal Hotel Beijing Co Ltd

50%

50%

1,160

1,376

–

1

–

2,537

7,759

5,296

(2,882)

3

2,141

12,317

RHW JV Southern Africa (P) Ltd
Nordrus Hotel Holding A/S

Total
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Summarised financial information
of associated companies
TEUR
Total assets

As of and for the Years
Ended December 31,
2006

2005

84,720

72,480

53,506

52,420

Net assets

31,214

20,060

Group’s share in net assets

12,317

7,759

40,289

54,291

9,193

18,147

5,296

6,213

Total liabilities

Revenue
Profit after tax
Group’s share in net profit

NOTE 20

Other shares and participations (held as available for sale)

TEUR

Ownership as of
Dec. 31, 2005

Ownership as of
Dec. 31, 2006

Carrying value as
of Dec. 31, 2005

Exchange
difference

Carrying value as
of Dec. 31, 2006

Feri Otelcilik ve Turizm A.S

10.0%

10.0%

2,283

(6)

2,277

RDS Hotelli AS

14.1%

14.1%

4,895

1

4,896

Doriscus Enterprise Ltd

16.0%

16.0%

5,703

2

5,705

First Hotels Co K.S.C.C

1.8%

1.8%

2,108

1

2,109

–

–

94

7

101

15,083

5

15,088

Others
Total

NOTE 21 	Pension funds, net
Pension obligations recognised in the Group
balance sheet
TEUR
Pension funds over funded

Net expenses recognised in the income statement regarding defined benefit pension
plans are as follows:
As of December 31

TEUR

2006

2005

Current service cost

12,553

14,472

Interest on obligation

Pension funds under funded

(1,325)

(1,034)

Expected return on plan assets

Total

11,228

13,438

Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in
the year

Defined benefit pension plans
Most pension plans within the Rezidor Group are defined benefit arrangements.
These mainly cover retirement pensions and widow pensions where the employer
has an obligation to pay a lifelong pension corresponding to a certain guaranteed
percentage of wages or a certain annual sum. Retirement pensions are based on
the number of years a person is employed. The employee must be registered in
the plan for a certain number of years in order to receive full retirement pension.
For each year at work the employee earns an increasing right to pension, which
is recorded as pension earned during the period as well as an increase in pension
obligations. Rezidor pension plans for salaried employees in Sweden, Norway and
Belgium are secured through defined benefit pensions plans with insurance companies. The actuarial measurement of pension obligations and costs for defined
benefit plans are based on the following actuarial assumptions:
2006

2005

Discount rate

4.8%

5.3%

Expected return on Plan assets

5.6%

5.6%

Expected rate of salary increase

2.9%

3.2%

Other (local government rate in Norway)

2.0%

2.5%
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Losses/(gains) arising from curtailments
or settlements

As of Dec. 31,
2006

As of Dec.31,
2005

456

619

1,846

2,031

(2,508)

(2,798)

1,401

1,123

386

21

Adjustments for restrictions on the defined
benefit asset

(46)

(43)

Pension costs for defined benefit plans

1,533

952

Notes to the group accounts

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Movements in the present value of the plan assets in the current period were as follows:
2006

2005

34,055

30,436

Expected return on plan assets

2,508

2,297

Actuarial gains/losses

1,721

2,765

(1,057)

936
162

TEUR
As of Dec. 31,
2006

2005

43,450

39,948

(35,957)

(41,906)

Exchange differences on foreign plans

7,493

(1,958)

Contributions from the employer

169

–

–

Contributions from plan participants

130

62

7,493

(1,958)

Benefits paid -premium payments

(1,497)

(2,553)

(19,215)

(12,157)

Assets distributed on settlements

494

677

(11,228)

(13,438)

TEUR
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation
Deficit/(Surplus)
Net actuarial gains and losses not recognised
Past service cost not yet recognised
Net asset arising from defined benefit
obligation

Opening fair value of plan assets

Closing fair value of plan assets

(72)

(50)

35,957

34,055

The major categories of plan assets are debt instruments (52% of total assets),
equity instruments (28%), property (12%) and other instruments (8%).

Effects of reclassification of Alecta pension funds to defined contribution plan:
TEUR
Closing of present value of funded defined benefit obligation
2005-12-31

39,948

Reclassification of Alecta funds

(5,822)

Restated opening of defined benefit obligation 2006-01-01

34,126

Closing of fair value of plan asset 2005-12-31

(41,906)

Reclassification of Alecta funds

7,851
34,055

Restated opening fair value of plan assets 2006-01-01

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in the current
period were as follows:
As of Dec. 31,
TEUR
Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions from plan participants
Actuarial losses/(gains)
Losses/(gains) on curtailments
Exchange differences on foreign plans
Benefits paid
Closing defined benefit obligation

As of December 31, 2006:

2006

2005

34,126

27,107

286

269

1,846

1,742

19

18

1,528

1,248

7,852

4,014

(1,245)

802

(964)

(1,074)

43,450

34,126

Nominal loan
amount in
thousands

Defined contribution pension plans
These plans mainly cover retirement, sick and family pensions. The premiums are
paid regularly during the year by group companies to different insurance companies. The size of the premium is based on wages. Pension costs for the period are
included in the income statement and amount to TEUR 355 (4,855).
The obligations for retirement and sick pensions for employees in Swedish
companies have been safeguarded through insurance in Alecta. According to
a statement from the Swedish Accounting Standards Council, URA 42, this is a
defined benefit multi-employer plan. The Group has no longer (post IPO) access
to the information necessary to report these plans as defined benefit plans for
the financial year 2006. Pension plans that are safeguarded through insurance in Alecta according to ITP are therefore reported as a defined contribution
plan under the alternative rules in IAS 19 par 30. As mentioned here above in
the statement of changes in equity, the negative equity effect of the present
statement amounted to TEUR 1,745. Alecta’s surplus can be passed on to the
insurance-takers and/or the insured. At the end of 2006 Alecta’s surplus in the
form of the collective consolidation level was 143% (128,5). The collective consolidation level is the market value of Alecta’s assets as a percentage of insurance
obligations measured according to Alecta’s actuarial assumptions, which are not in
agreement with IAS 19.
NOTE 22

Other long-term receivables (interest-bearing
and non-interest-bearing)

In some cases Rezidor grants loans to owners of our hotels, or to our joint venture
partners (associated companies) in early stages of new projects. The terms for
such loans vary, but in principle there is an agreement on interest on the loans and
the repayment schedule is based on the project opening and project progress.
These related parties and terms concerning these loans are described as follows:

Currency

Nominal
value
in TEUR

Impairment
losses
in TEUR

Amortised
cost in TEUR

Duration and
interest rates

Loan from

Counterpart

SAS Hotels A/S Denmark

UAB Ramusis Pamarys,
Lithuania

150

USD

127

(127)

–

Undefined duration
–6 months Libor +1%

SAS Riga Hotel A/S

Polar Bek Daugave Ltd..
Riga Hotel

1,225

USD

1,483

–

1,483

Undefined duration
–10.08%

SIHSKA A/S

SAS Royal Hotel Beijing
Co. Ltd

22,588

USD

21,887

(13,527)

8,360

Undefined duration

Royal Scandinavia Hotel
Bordeaux s.a.s.

SNC Paris Le Havre

1,725

EUR

1,725

–

1,725

Conditional duration
–5 years Euribor +1.5%

Rezidor Group

Other

26

EUR

26

–

26

Various interest
– bearing deposits

25,248

(13,654)

11,594

Other

2,488

EUR

2,488

–

2,488

2,488

–

2,488

27,736

(13,654)

14,082

Total of interest-bearing
Rezidor Group
Total of non-interestbearing
Grand total

Non-interest-bearing
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As of December 31, 2005:

Nominal loan
amount in
thousands

Currency

Nominal
value
in TEUR

Impairment
losses
in TEUR

Amortised
cost in TEUR

Duration and
interest rates

Loan from

Counterpart

SAS Hotels A/S Denmark

UAB Ramusis
Pamarys,
Lithuania

150

USD

127

–

127

Undefined duration
–6 months Libor +1%

SAS Riga Hotel A/S

Polar Bek
Daugave Ltd..
Riga Hotel

1,225

USD

1,482

–

1,482

Undefined duration
–10.08%

SIHSKA A/S

SAS Royal
Hotel Beijing
Co. Ltd

22,588

USD

21,887

(12,237)

9,650

Undefined duration

Rezidor Group

Other

1,601

EUR

1,601

–

1,601

Various interest
– bearing deposits

25,097

(12,237)

12,860

Other

2,752

EUR

2,752

–

2,752

2,752

–

2,752

27,849

(12,237)

15,612

Total of interest-bearing
Rezidor Group
Total of non-interest-bearing
Total

As of December 31, 2006

NOTE 23 	Accounts receivable
As of December 31
2006

TEUR

2005

Accounts receivable before allowance
for doubtful accounts

55,726

54,318

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(4,417)

(6,001)

Accounts receivable net of allowance for
doubtful accounts

51,309

48,317

Movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts

As of December 31

TEUR

2006

2005

Balance at the beginning of the year

6,001

5,722

Amounts written off during the year

(307)

(15)

(2,551)

(38)

1,274

332

4,417

6,001

Amounts recovered during the year
Increase/Decrease in allowance recognised
in profit or loss
Balance at the end of the year

NOTE 24

Other receivables
As of December 31

Counterpart

Nordrus Joint
Venture ApS

Nordrus Hotels
Limited Liability
Company

Rezidor Riga Hotel A/S
Rezidor Hotels
Deutschland Gmbh

Polar Bek Daugave
Ltd. – Riga Hotel

596

Interest rate:
10.08%

Plaza Hotel
Hamburg Betriebs
GMBH

300

Interest rate: 3
months Euribor
+ 1.5%

2,876

Amortised
cost in TEUR

Counterpart

Rezidor Riga Hotel A/S

Polar Bek Daugave
Ltd. – Riga Hotel

714

Interest rate:
10.08%

Rezidor Hotels
Deutschland Gmbh

Plaza Hotel
Hamburg Betriebs
GMBH

300

Interest rate: 3
months Euribor
+ 1.5%

Rezidor Hotel
Holdings AB

SAS

5,215

Overnight Group
Account

Rezidor Hospitality
Norway A/S

SAS

12,057

Overnight Group
Account

Rezidor SAS Hospitality
France

Other

499

Short term
deposit

Other

199

Various

2,876

18,984

33,161

20,451

9,718

15,169

42,879

35,620

Other

45,755

54,604

Total of short term
interest-bearing
receivables

52

Interest rate: 6
months Libor
+ 3%

Loan from

Short-term interest-bearing receivables1)

The short-term interest-bearing receivables are described as follows:

Interest rates

As of December 31, 2005

2005

Total

Amortised
cost in TEUR
1,980

Total of short term
interest-bearing
receivables

2006

Other short-term non-interest-bearing receivables

1)

Loan from

TEUR
Prepaid expenses and accrued income

Non-interest-bearing

18,984

Terms

Notes to the group accounts

NOTE 25

Other short-term investments

NOTE 27

Other short-term investments relates to cash in restricted accounts. These
restricted accounts are cash at bank restricted to meet the liability arising from
payroll taxes withheld (Norway), energy purchases (Sweden) and cash pool arrangement & lease agreement Marseille property (France).

NOTE 26

Share
capital as
of Dec.
31, 2006

Other paid
in capital
as of Dec.
31, 2006

Share
capital as
of Dec.
31, 2005

Other paid
in capital
as of Dec.
31, 2005

Opening balance at
beginning of the year

100

87,978

–

4,978

Formation of Rezidor
Hotel Group AB
– 1,000 ordinary
shares

–

–

11

83,000

Share split for 10,000
ordinary shares

–

Share issue of 89,000
ordinary shares

–

–

89

–

Share issue of 26,584
ordinary shares

27

66,0001)

–

–

Share split for
149,875,456 ordinary
shares

–

–

–

–

TEUR

–

–

153,978

100

TEUR

Other

–

1,297

47,603

37,687

As of Dec. 31, 2006
Expressed in TEUR

DKK

Bank overdraft
Total
As of Dec. 31, 2005
Expressed in TEUR

Date of
resolution

Number
of shares
as of Dec.
31, 2005

1,000

1,000

Acqusition of Rezidor Hotel
Group AB by SAS AB1)

Mar. 8, 2005

Share split

Mar. 22, 2005

10,000

10,000

Share issue of ordinary shares

Mar. 22, 2005

89,000

89,000

Share issue of ordinary shares

Oct. 10, 2005

26,584

–

Share split of ordinary shares

Oct. 10, 2005

149,875,456

–

150,002,040

100,000

Total

47,603

47,603

47,603

47,603

EUR

DKK

–

36,390

Total

Other

1,297

–

1,297

Total

1,297

36,390

37,687

36,390

The average interest rates paid were as follows:

Bank overdraft

2006

2005

4.13%

5.34%

–

Non-interest-bearing

All liabilities to financial institutions are repayable within one year.
For the Year Ended
December 31

As part of the CARLSON Investment completed in June 30th, 2005, CARLSON had 25%
of the Company’s shares from SAS. In addition, our subsidiary Rezidor Hotel Holdings
AB issued 5,000 preference shares to SAS and 1,667 preference shares to CARLSON
Summit as part of the investment. In preparation for the Offering, the Company issued
19,938 and 6,646 new Shares to SAS and CARLSON Summit, respectively, in exchange
for all outstanding preference shares. The preference shares were acquired by the
Company as consideration in kind. After the exchange, Rezidor Hotel Holdings AB has
become a fully-owned subsidiary of Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ), therefore no minority interest are anymore represented in the total equity as at December 31st, 2006.

Number
of shares
as of Dec.
31, 2006

2005
36,390

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

–

87,978

2006
47,603

Total

Other

Fully paid ordinary shares

1)

Bank overdraft

Bank overdraft

127
1)

As of December 31
TEUR

Share capital

Issued capital

Liabilities to financial institutions

2006

TEUR

2005

Split of bank overdraft
Bank overdraft facilities granted

100,846

88,152

Utilisation of bank overdraft: in guarantees

(38,874)

(32,407)

Utilisation of bank overdraft: in cash

(47,603)

(36,390)

14,369

19,355

Bank overdraft facilities unutilised

NOTE 28

Other current liabilities
As of December 31

TEUR
Financing from SAS group
companies
Financing from Financial institutions
Other current interest-bearing
liabilities
Sub-total for interest-bearing
liabilities

Rezidor Hotel Group AB was incorporated with registration date January 5th 2005.

2005

–

21,865

16,800

–

14

–

16,814

21,865

Prepayments from customers

7,382

7,638

Accrued expenses & prepaid
income1)

69,066

58,936

Other short term non-interestbearing liabilities

22,005

22,070

Sub-total for non-interestbearing liabilities

98,453

88,644

115,267

110,509

Grand total
1)

2006

Terms

Euribor: +0.5%
– Duration: ends
26/12/2007

Accrued expenses & prepaid income are split as follows, see page 54:
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Type of accruals
TEUR

Closing
balance as of
Dec. 31, 2005

Utilisation

Additions

Release

Closing balance as
of Dec. 31, 2006

12,250

(11,774)

11,304

(3)

11,777

Vacation pay including social costs
Accrual for overtime including social costs

426

(395)

451

(7)

475

Accrual for bonus including social costs

2,999

(2,964)

4,452

–

4,487

Accrual for energy costs

2,435

(2,348)

3,525

(4)

3,608

Other accrued expenses

35,953

(33,386)

42,065

(521)

44,111

4,873

(1,096)

834

(3)

4,608

58,936

(51,963)

62,631

(538)

69,066

Prepaid income
Total

NOTE 29 	Assets pledged and contingent liabilities
As of December 31
2006

2005

3,521

2,469

–

–

Guarantees provided for management contracts1)

26,441

28,361

Guarantees provided for renovation works

11,911

3,437

TEUR
Assets pledged
Securities on deposit
Carrying value of secured loans
Contingent liabilities

Miscellaneous guarantees provided
Total guarantees provided
1)

1,533

996

39,885

32,794

Refer to note 31 where these amounts are included in the total maximum future capped
guarantee payment.

Certain lease and management agreements entered into by members of the
group contain change of control clauses in relation to such members or their
parents leading to possible changes in commercial terms and/or early termination.
The change of control clauses or not linked to a situation where the company’s
shares are being sold through an initial public offering.
On the other hand, the committed expansion investments of the Company
amount to MEUR 16.2 (the amount includes committed expansion investments
related to certain lease agreements in which the Company has agreed to pay a
portion of a specific expansion or renovation project), which is scheduled to be incurred within the two coming years. The investment plans for the future depend
on numerous factors, including changes in economic, political or other conditions
in the locations where the Company may propose to make investments, or events
which have a material adverse effect on the tourism and the hospitality management and leisure industry in these locations, among other factors.
In addition, the Company has entered into agreements with regard to two
associates where the Company has committed to make contributions in these
associates either in the form of loans or capital contributions to finance hotel
development/acquisition projects under the brands of the Company. In relation to
identifying a project, the Company enters into a management agreement for the
hotel with the owner or other partner. In Russia, the Company operates through
a 26.1% owned associate Nordrus Hotels Holdings A/S (“Nordrus”) to develop/
acquire Park Inn hotels. With regard to Nordrus, the total commitment as of December 31, 2006 was TEUR 6,455 (TUSD 8,500) and the Company had made so
far a capital contribution of TEUR 1,779 and a loan of TEUR 2,125 (TUSD 2,798).
A decision to invest in a project in Russia requires unanimity of all four shareholders
of Nordrus. In Africa, the Company operates through a 20.0% associate Africa Joint
Venture Holding A/S (“Africa Holding”) to develop/acquire projects in Africa. With regard to Africa Holding, the total commitment as of December 31, 2006 was MEUR 7.0
and the Company had made a capital contribution of TEUR 50 during 2006. A decision
to invest in a project in Africa requires an approval by four out of five shareholders.
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Litigation
Rezidor Hotel Group operates in a number of countries around the world and is
always involved in several complex projects and business relationships where there
can be professional disputes on various issues. Most often these situations find
its solution through negotiations and discussions. In some rare situations these
disputes can lead to major disagreements or claims of violation of law. Provisions for
claims due to known disputes are recorded whenever there is a situation where it is
more likely than not that the company will have an obligation to settle the dispute
and where a reliable estimate can be made regarding the outcome of such dispute.
Rezidor is not engaged in any legal or arbitration proceedings, including those
which are pending and described in the present Board of Director’s report or
known to be contemplated, which, in Rezidor’s judgement, may have or have a
material effect on the company’s financial position or profitability during 2006.
The members of the Board of Directors have no knowledge of any proceedings
pending or threatened against Rezidor or any of the subsidiaries or any facts likely
to give rise to any litigation, claims or proceedings which might materially affect
the financial position or business of the Company as at December 31st, 2006.

NOTE 30

Leasing commitments

Under our lease agreements, we lease hotel buildings from property owners or
other partners and are entitled to the benefits and carry the risks associated with
operating the hotel. Typically, our lease agreements include a variable rent clause
under which we are obligated to pay a variable rent based on a percentage of the
total revenue generated by a hotel (“variable rent”). The majority of our lease agreements also include a minimum rent payment obligation which is independent of the
revenue generated by the hotel (“fixed rent”). The fixed rent is typically adjusted
annually to take into account changes in a defined consumer price index. Generally,
under contracts containing variable and fixed rent clauses, we pay the higher of the
two to the lessor. To limit our financial exposure, in our lease contracts, we typically
limit the “shortfall” amount by which the fixed rent exceeds the variable rent to an
amount corresponding to two to three years’ aggregate fixed rent payment obligations (“cap”). If cumulative shortfall payments reach this cap, the fixed rent payment
obligation ceases and the lessor receives only the variable rent.
At year end 2006, Rezidor had 68 leasing contracts for hotels in operation and
under development, that had some financial commitments, compared to 63 such
contracts in 2005. The following provides an overview of the expiry of those
contracts – both in operation and under development.
The leasing agreements expire in the following years:

Year

2006

2005

Number of
leasing agreements
expiring

Number of
leasing agreements
expiring

Year

2006–2009

2

2005–2009

2010–2014

4

2010–2014

2
4

2015–2019

13

2015–2019

13

2020–2024

20

2020–2024

20

2025–2029

15

2025–2029

12

2030–2034

14

2030–2034

12
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The future leasing expense would entail payment of at least the annual fixed rent under our lease agreements. The future minimum leasing expenses for all lease agreements with a fixed rent effective on December 31, 2006 are shown in the following
table. For further information regarding rent payments, please refer to Note 12.

The following table presents the company’s capped contractual obligations under
all management contracts with financial guarantees and shows the maximum
capped financial exposure:
Total maximum future capped
guarantee payments

Future minimum leasing expenses
2006

TEUR
Within 1 year
1–5 years
After 5 years
Total

143,319

Within 1 year
1–5 years

855,507

795,757

2,134,435

2,027,867

3,150,524

2,966,943

NOTE 31	Management contract commitments
Under our management agreements, we provide management services to third-party
hotel proprietors. We derive revenue primarily from base fees determined as a percentage of total hotel revenue and incentive management fees defined as a percentage of
the gross operating profit or adjusted gross operating profit of the hotel operations.
In certain circumstances, we guarantee the hotel proprietor a minimum result
measured by adjusted gross operating profit or some other financial measure (a
“guarantee”). Under such contracts, in the event that the actual result of a hotel
is less than the guaranteed amount, we compensate the hotel proprietor for
the shortfall. However, in most agreements with such clauses, our obligation to
compensate for such shortfall amount is typically limited to two to three times
the annual guarantee (the “guarantee cap”).
As at the end of the year, Rezidor had granted a certain level of financial commitment in 41 Management contracts in 2006, as compared to 37 in 2005. The
management contracts containing such financial risk for the group will expire as
presented in the table below:

Year

TEUR

2005

160,582

After 5 years
Total

2006

2005

69,612

68,794

147,949

138,520

42,692

51,072

260,253

258,386

The capped guarantee payment includes the contingent liabilities as disclosed in
note 29 (i.e. guarantees provided for management contracts). For the full fiscal
year 2006, Rezidor paid TEUR 10,210 (6,503 in 2005) as shortfalls under its
management agreements with guarantees (see Note 12).
NOTE 32 	Auditors’ fees
Group
For the Year Ended Dec. 31
2006

2005

Audit assignments

1,482

664

Other assignments

831

131

2,313

795

TEUR
Deloitte1)

Total Deloitte
Other audit firms

2006

2005

Audit assignments

109

5

Number of
management
contracts expiring

Number of leasing
agreements
expiring

Other assignments

644

344

Year

2006–2009

0

2005–2009

0

2010–2014

5

2010–2014

5

2015–2019

7

2015–2019

7

2020–2024

11

2020–2024

11

2025–2029

14

2025–2029

12

2030–2034

3

2030–2034

1

2035–2039

0

2035–2039

0

2040–2045

1

2040–2045

1

Total other audit firms
Total
1)

753

349

3,058

1,144

Audit fee for 2006 includes fees related to the audit of the financial statements 2005
amounting to TEUR 234 and fees related to the IPO amounting to TEUR 454.

NOTE 33 	Post balance sheet events
The Board of Directors is proposing a share buy-back programme, to be decided
by the Annual General Meeting on May 4th, 2007. The Board of Directors will to
the Annual General Meeting 2007 propose a share-related incentive programme.
The Board of Directors proposes to the General Meeting which will be held on
May 4th, 2007 to increase the share capital of the company, through a bonus issue, with EUR 9,873,416 resulting in a share capital of EUR 10,000,000.

NOTE 34	Group companies and legal structure
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Rezidor Hotel Group AB has the following subsidiaries, joint-ventures, associated companies and other investments:
As of December 31
2006

2005

Registered in

Ownership %

Share capital

Ownership %

Share capital

Manama Town

51

MUSD 1.0

51

MUSD 1.0

Bahrain
Rezidor SAS Hotels & Resorts, Middle East W.L.L
Belgium
Rezidor Finance S.A.

Brussels

100

MEUR 0.1

100

MEUR 0.1

Rezidor Hotel Group S.A.

Brussels

100

MEUR 0.1

100

MEUR 0.1

Rezidor Hotel Brussels EU SPRL

Brussels

100

MEUR 4.5

100

MEUR 0.1

GH Holding SA

Brussels

100

MEUR 0.1

100

MEUR 0.1

Rezidor Hotel Brussels S.A.

Brussels

100

MEUR 15.5

100

MEUR 10.3

Rezidor Park Belgium SA

Brussels

100

MEUR 0.1

100

MEUR 0.1

Limassol

15

MEUR 23.7

16

–

Beijing

50

MUSD 9.0

50

MUSD 9.0

Cyprus
Doriscus Enterprises Limited
China
SAS Royal Hotel, Beijing, Co., Ltd
Denmark
Rezidor Hotels ApS Danmark

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 210.0

100

MDKK 210.0

Rezidor Falconer Center A/S

Frederiksberg

100

MDKK 1.2

100

MDKK 1.2

Rezidor International Hotels Management A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 2.0

100

MDKK 2.0

SIHSKA A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 3.0

100

MDKK 3.0

Rezidor Scandinavia Hotel Aarhus A/S

Aarhus

100

MDKK 0.5

100

MDKK 0.5

Rezidor International Hotels Selection ApS

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 5.0

100

MDKK 5.0

Rezidor Riga Hotel A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.0

100

MDKK 0.5

Hotel Development S. Africa A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.0

100

MDKK 1.0

Rezidor Hotel Kiev A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.0

100

MDKK 1.0

Rezidor Hotel Investment Egypt A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.0

100

MDKK 1.0

Rezidor Hotel Investment France ApS

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.5

100

MDKK 1.0

Hotel Investment Turkey A/S

Copenhagen

51

MDKK 1.0

51

MDKK 1.0

Nordrus Joint Venture ApS

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 0.5

100

MDKK 0.5

Rezidor Hotel Investment A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.0

100

MDKK 1.0

Rezidor Russia A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 5.0

100

MDKK 5.0

Rezidor Country A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.5

100

MDKK 1.5

Rezidor Park ApS

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.5

100

MDKK 1.0

Rezidor Regent A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 2.0

100

MDKK 2.0

Rezidor Lifestyle A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.0

100

MDKK 1.0

Rezidor Loyalty Management A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 1.0

100

MDKK 1.0

Rezidor Cornerstone A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 2.4

100

MDKK 2.4

Rezidor Hotel Management & Development A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 0.5

100

MDKK 0.5

Rezidor SAS Hospitality A/S

Copenhagen

100

MEUR 83.0

100

MEUR 83.0

Casino Denmark A/S

Copenhagen

50

MDKK 1.0

50

MDKK 1.0

Casino Copenhagen K/S

Copenhagen

50

MDKK 1.0

50

MDKK 1.0

Nordrus Hotels Holdings A/S

Copenhagen

26.08

MDKK 5.7

26.08

MDKK 1.2

Africa Joint Venture Holding A/S

Copenhagen

100

MDKK 0.5

100

MDKK 0.5

Copenhagen International Hotels K/S

Copenhagen

11.3

MDKK 1.2

–

–

Afrinord Hotel Investments A/S

Copenhagen

20

MEUR 0.3

–

–

Al Quesir City

20

MEGP 30

20

MEGP 30

14.10

MEEK 4.1

14.10

MEEK 4.1

Egypt
Al Quesir Hotel Company S.A.E
Estonia
RDS Hotelli AS
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As of December 31
2006
Registered in

2005

Ownership %

Share capital

Ownership %

Share capital

France
Rezidor Resort France S.A.S

Nice

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hospitality France S.A.S.

Paris

100

MEUR 2.4

100

MEUR 2.4

Rezidor Hotels France S.A.S.

Nice

100

MEUR 2.5

100

MEUR 2.5

Royal Scandinavia Hotel Bordeaux S.A.S.

Bordeaux

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Royal Scandinavia Hotel Nice S.A.S.

Nice

100

MEUR 2.4

100

MEUR 2.4

Royal Scandinavia Hotel Marseille S.A.S.

Marseille

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Park France S.A.S.

Paris

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor SAS Lyon S.A.S.

Lyon

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Aix Les Bains S.A.S.

Aix Les Bains

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Park Nancy S.A.S.

Nancy

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Park Mâcon S.A.S.

Mâcon

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Park Lyon-Ouest S.A.S.

La Tour de Salvagny

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Park Arcachon S.A.S.

Arcachon

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Park Orange S.A.S.

Orange

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Les Loges S.A.S.

Aix Les Bains

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

SARL Regence Plage

Nice

25

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Germany
Zweite Rezidor Regent Berlin GmbH

Munich

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotels Deutschland GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.2

100

MEUR 0.2

Rezidor Hotels Management GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.2

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Marliane Betriebs GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Dresden GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Rügen GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Investitions GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Hannover GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Köln GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Wiesbaden GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Berlin GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Regent Berlin GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Karlsruhe GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Frankfurt am Main GmbH

Frankfurt

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Shared Services Centre Deutschland GmbH

Munich

100

MEUR 0.8

100

MEUR 0.8

Park Inn München Frankfurter Ring GmbH

Munich

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Park Inn München Ost GmbH

Munich

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Düsseldorf Media Harbour Hotel GmbH

Hamburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Rezidor Park Deutschland GmbH

Duisburg

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Safat

1,82

MKWD 40.0

1.82

MKWD 40.0

Amsterdam

100

MEUR 0.0

100

MEUR 0.0

Kuwait
First Hotels Company KSCC
Netherlands
Rezidor Hotel Amsterdam B.V.
Norway
Rezidor Hospitality Norway AS

Oslo

100

MNOK 102.0

100

MNOK 102.0

Rezidor Hotels Norway AS

Oslo

100

MNOK 11.0

100

MNOK 11.3

Rezidor Shared Service Center AS

Oslo

100

MNOK 0.1

100

MNOK 0.1

Rezidor Park Norway AS

Oslo

100

MNOK 0.1

100

MNOK 0.1

26.08

MRUB 0.0

–

–

Russian Federation
Nordrus Hotels Limited Liability Company

Moscow
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As of December 31
2006
Registered in

2005

Ownership %

Share capital

Ownership %

Share capital

South Africa
RHW Joint Venture Southern Africa (Ppy) Ltd.

Cape Town

50

MRAND 12.0

50

MRAND 6.5

RHW Management Southern Africa (Ppy) Ltd.

Cape Town

50

MRAND 0.0

50

MRAND 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Holdings AB

Stockholm

100

MEUR 0.1

93.8

MEUR 0.1

Rezidor Hotel AB

Solna

100

MSEK 5.2

100

MSEK 5.2

Rezidor Sweden AB

Stockholm

100

MSEK 0.1

100

MSEK 0.1

Rezidor Hospitality Sweden AB

Solna

100

MSEK 18.0

100

MSEK 18.0

Rezidor Services Sweden AB

Solna

100

MSEK 0.5

100

MSEK 0.5

AB Strand Hotel

Stockholm

100

MSEK 0.3

100

MSEK 0.3

Royal Viking Hotel AB

Stockholm

100

MSEK 8.0

100

MSEK 8.0

Hotel AB Bastionen

Gothenburg

100

MSEK 1.0

100

MSEK 1.0

Rezidor Arlandia Hotel AB

Stockholm

100

MSEK 1.0

100

MSEK 1.0

Rezidor SkyCity Hotel AB

Stockholm

100

MSEK 1.0

100

MSEK 1.0

Rezidor Royal Hotel AB

Malmö

100

MSEK 1.0

100

MSEK 1.0

Rezidor Park AB

Solna

100

MSEK 0.1

100

MSEK 0.1

Sweden

Switzerland
Rezidor Park Switzerland AG

Zug

99

MCHF 0.1

99

MCHF 0.1

Rezidor Hotels Switzerland AG

Basel

97

MCHF 0.1

97

MCHF 0.1

The Rezidor Bar & Restaurant Company AG

Basel

97

MCHF 0.1

–

–

Feri Otelcilik ve Turizm A.S

Istanbul

10

BTL 135

10

BTL 135

Macka Otelcilik Anonim Sirketi

Istanbul

52

BTL 50

99.30

BTL 50

Turkey

United Kingdom
Rezidor Hotels UK Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 32.2

100

MGBP 32.2

Rezidor Portman (Holdings) Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Manchester Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Leeds Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Edinburgh Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Rezidor Hotel London Stansted Airport Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Rezidor Lifestyle Glasgow Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Rezidor Hotel Management Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Rezidor Park UK Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Park Hotel Heathrow Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0

Park Hotels Management Ltd.

Manchester

100

MDBP 0.0

100

MDBP 0.0

Rezidor Lifestyle Edinburgh Ltd.

Manchester

100

MGBP 0.0

100

MGBP 0.0
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NOTE 1 	Revenue distribution
Operating revenue per area of operation

As of Dec.31

TEUR

2006

2005

External revenue

235

–

Revenue from group companies

952

–

1,187

–

Total revenue

NOTE 2 	Personnel
Payroll cost

As of Dec. 31

TEUR

2006

2005

Salaries

441

–

Social security

267

–

Pension costs

33

–

Other personnel costs (other benefits in kind)

29

–

770

–

Total

These costs are included in the line personnel cost in the income statement and are
related to compensation to persons with employment in the company, including
remuneration to the CEO of Rezidor Group, Mr. Ritter, of TEUR 37 (excluding social
costs). The remainder of its remuneration is paid by ‘The Rezidor Hotel Group S.A.’
in Belgium. Also refer to note 10 of the Group Accounts for complete information
regarding his employment agreement.
In addition, total remuneration to the Board of Directors amounted to TEUR
189. See also note 10 of the Group accounts for further information regarding
remuneration to the Board of directors and senior management. The average
number of employees in Rezidor Hotel Group AB 2006 was 7 (0).
As of Dec. 31
2006
Average no of employees
Sweden

2005

Men

Women

Men

Women

1

6

–

–

The number of Board members are also disclosed in note 10 of the Group Accounts.
During 2006 the company only employed persons for the period October to
December, and during this period there were no absence due to illness.

NOTE 3

Other operating expenses
As of Dec. 31
2006

2005

External service fees

460

–

Other external expenses

212

–

Expenses from Group companies

804

–

TEUR

Rent1)

52

–

Total

1,528

–

	The cost of rent applies to the company’s premises. Future obligations in respect of
rental obligations amounts to TEUR 765 for the period 2007–2011.

1)
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NOTE 4 	Auditor’s fees

Deferred tax in the balance sheet
As of Dec. 31
2006

2005

Audit assignments

6101)

–2)

Other assignments

224

–

Total Deloitte

834

–

TEUR
Deloitte AB

1)
2)

As of Dec. 31

TEUR

2006

2005

Regarding tax loss carried forward

1,278

–

The deferred tax assets related to temporary differences are attributable to
deferred tax on tax loss carry forwards. The above-mentioned tax losses can be
carried forward without time limit.

NOTE 7 	Tangible fixed assets
Machinery and equipment

Whereof TEUR 454 is related to audit services in connection with the IPO.
Audit fees for 2005 was recorded in a subsidary.

TEUR
Acquisition value at the beginning of the year

NOTE 5 	Financial income and expenses

Investments
Sales/Disposals
As of Dec. 31

Closing value at the end of the year

As of Dec. 31
2006

2005

–

–

190

–

(5)

–

185

–

2006

2005

Depreciation according to plan

(13)

–

73

–

Closing accumulated depreciation

(13)

–

Interest income from group companies

216

–

Book value

172

–

Financial income

289

TEUR
Interest income from financial institutions

(20)

–

(160)

–

Financial expense

(180)

–

Financial income and expenses, net

(109)

–

Interest expenses to financial institutions
Interest expenses to group companies

NOTE 8

Share in subsidiaries (see note 34 in the Group
accounts for the list of subsidiaries)
As of Dec. 31

TEUR

NOTE 6 	Tax

Opening book value
Investments in subsidiaries
(Rezidor Hotel Holdings AB)1)

As of Dec. 31
2006

TEUR
Current tax on profit/loss for the year
Recorded tax
Reconciliation of effective tax
Profit (loss) before tax
Tax at the domestic income tax rate
of 28%
Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible in determining taxable
income
Recorded tax
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Closing book value

2005

1,278

–

1,278

–

2006

%

2005

%

(4,577)

–

–

–

1,282

28

–

–

(4)

–

–

–

1,278

28

–

–

1)

2006

2005

100

–

231,000

100

231,100

100

SAS AB (publ) and Carlson Summit Inc. were offered to subscribe for shares in the
Company and to pay for the shares by contribution in kind. The purpose of this contribution in kind is a result of an agreement between the shareholders that the Company shall
acquire the preference shares in Rezidor Hotel Holdings AB and that by this contribution
in kind, the Company will acquire the aforementioned preference shares. This consideration in kind is recognised in the balance sheet at the amount of TEUR 231,000.

Notes – Parent Company

Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ) has the following subsidiaries:
As of December 31, 2006

Registered in

Identity no

No of shares

Owned share in %

Book value of
holding

Stockholm

556674-0972

106,667

100

231,100

Sweden

Rezidor Hotel Holdings AB

NOTE 9	Receivables group companies

TEUR
Receivables group companies, cash pool
Receivables group companies, short term loan
Other
Total

NOTE 13 	Further information concerning cash flow
As of Dec. 31
2006
2005
19,766
–
16,800
–
28
5
36,594
5

During the year the business activities of Rezidor Services Sweden AB have been
acquired by the parent company, Rezidor Hotel Group AB. The value of acquired
assets and liabilities are detailed below:
Acquisition of operations
TEUR
Fixed assets

NOTE 10

TEUR
Liabilities group companies, cash pool
Other
Total

164
1

Inventories

Liabilities group companies
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Prepaid expenses
As of Dec. 31
2006
2005
30,158
–
711
–
30,869
–

Accrued expenses

(321)
(26)

Other liabilities
Consideration received

(121)

Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired company

(0)
(121)

Total

NOTE 11 	Financing
Other information concerning cash flows
Committed credits
TEUR
Overdraft facilities
Short term bank loan
Used credit facilities

As of Dec. 31
2006
2005
5,525
–
16,800
–
(16,800)
–

Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ) had a total of TEUR 22,325 in credit facilities as
of December 31st, 2006 (0 of December 31st, 2005). The credit contracts contain so called covenant clauses that allow creditors to cancel loans as a result of
changes in Rezidor’s financial status. The financing fall due within one year and
is priced according to a fixed interest duration and agreed margins. The credit
facilities are primarily used for financing operations within the group.

For the Year Ended Dec. 31
2006

2005

Change in interest bearing receivables1)

(16,800)

–

Other investments2)

(19,766)

–

46,954

–

TEUR

Change in interest bearing liabilities3)

Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ), the parent company of the Group, is the credit holder of
the short term bank loan that is utilised within the group.
Inter company net balance of cash pool corresponding to the Swedish operations and
bank structure.
3)
	Net balance of Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ) bank financing and cash pool structure as
of December 31, 2006.
1)

2)

NOTE 12 	Accrued expenses
Attributable to

As of Dec. 31
2006

2005

Vacation pay including social costs

321

–

Salaries and remuneration

465

–

2,194

–

TEUR

Expenses related to the IPO
Other accrued expenses
Total

439

1

3,419

1

61

Statement of the Board of
Directors on the Proposed
Dividend

Consolidation requirements, liquidity and
other financial circumstances

Proposed allocation of non-restricted reserves,
available in the parent company, EUR
The following amount is at the disposal of the AGM:
–

Loss brought forward
Share premium reserve
Loss for the year
Total

230,973,416
(3,299,179)
227,674,237

The Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
propose that the amount be allocated as follows:
Dividend of EUR 0.06 per share to the shareholders
Loss brought forward

9,000,122
(3,299,179)

Share premium reserve brought forward

221,973,294

Total

227,674,237

The dividend amount is based on the total number of outstanding
shares as at December 31, 2006, i.e. 150,002,040 shares.
Statement of the Board of Directors on the
proposed dividend
Motivation
The group’s equity has been calculated in accordance with the EUapproved IFRS standards, the interpretation of these (IFRIC) and
Swedish law through the application of Recommendation RR 30 of
the Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Council (Supplementary
Accounting Rules for Corporate Groups). Parent company equity has
been calculated in accordance with Swedish law and Recommendation
RR32 of the Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Council
(Accounting for Legal Entities).
The Board of Directors has also established that the proposed
dividend to the share-holders is justifiable in view of the parameters defined in the second and third paragraphs of Section 3 of
Chapter 17 of the Swedish Companies Act (nature and scope of the
business and associated risks, consolidation requirements, liquidity
and other financial circumstances). The Board would like to make
the following comments.
Nature and scope of the business and risks
The Board estimates that the company and group’s equity after the
proposed dividend will be sufficient in view of the nature and scope
of the business and the associated risks. In this connection the
Board has taken into account the equity/assets ratio, historical performance, budgeted performance, investment plans and overall
economic conditions.
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Consolidation requirements
The Board of Directors has made a general assessment of the company
and group’s financial position and its ability to meet its commitments
over time. The proposed dividend constitutes 4.0% of the company’s
equity and 5.1% of consolidated equity. Considering the current conditions on the property market, the company and group have a good
equity/assets ratio. Against this background the Board considers that
the company and group have good opportunities to take advantage of
future business opportunities and ride out any losses that may be incurred. Planned investments were taken into account in deciding the
proposed dividend. Nor will the dividend adversely affect the company
or group’s ability to make further commercially motivated investments
in accordance with the adopted plans.
Liquidity
The proposed dividend will not affect the company and group’s
ability to meet its payment obligations at the right time. The company and group have good access to liquidity reserves in the form
of short-term credit. The credit can be raised at short notice, which
means that the company and group are well prepared to deal with
variations in liquidity and any unexpected events.
Other financial circumstances
The Board of Directors has assessed all other known circumstances
that may be significant for the company and group’s financial position
and that have not been taken into account in the above. No circumstance has been discovered in the course of the assessment that
would cast doubt on the justifiability of the proposed dividend.

The Board of Directors
Urban Jansson
Chairman of the Board

Marilyn Carlson Nelson

Vice Chairman

Monica Caneman

Harald Einsmann	Ulla Litzén
	Trudy Rautio

Gunnar Reitan

Jay S. Witzel

Benny Zakrisson
Kurt Ritter

President and Chief Executive Officer

Stockholm, March 23d, 2007

Auditor’s Report
To the annual meeting of the shareholders of Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ)
Corporate identity number 556674-0964.

We have audited the annual accounts, the consolidated accounts,
the accounting records and the administration of the Board of
Directors and the Managing Director of Rezidor Hotel Group AB
(publ) for the financial year 2006. The Annual Report and consolidated accounts are included in the printed version of this document on pages 16–23 and 27–63. The Board of Directors and the
Managing Director are responsible for these accounts and the administration of the company as well as for the application of the
Annual Accounts Act when preparing the annual accounts and the
application of international financial reporting standards IFRSs as
adopted by the EU and the Annual Accounts Act when preparing
the consolidated accounts. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual accounts, the consolidated accounts and the
administration based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in Sweden. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the annual accounts and the consolidated accounts are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
their application by the Board of Directors and the Managing
Director and significant estimates made by the Board of Directors
and the Managing Director when preparing the annual accounts
and consolidated accounts as well as evaluating the overall presentation of information in the annual accounts and the consolidated

accounts. As a basis for our opinion concerning discharge from liability, we examined significant decisions, actions taken and circumstances of the company in order to be able to determine the liability,
if any, to the company of any board member or the Managing
Director. We also examined whether any board member or the
Managing Director has, in any other way, acted in contravention of
the Companies Act, the Annual Accounts Act or the Articles of
Association. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion set out below.
The annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with the
Annual Accounts Act and give a true and fair view of the company’s
financial position and results of operations in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Sweden. The consolidated
accounts have been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the
Annual Accounts Act and give a true and fair view of the group’s financial position and results of operations. The statutory Board of
Directors report is consistent with the other parts of the annual
accounts and the consolidated accounts.
We recommend to the annual meeting of shareholders that the
income statements and balance sheets of the parent company and
the group be adopted, that the profit of the parent company be
dealt with in accordance with the proposal in the Board of
Directors report and that the members of the Board of Directors
and the Managing Director be discharged from liability for the
financial year.

Stockholm, March 23d, 2007
Deloitte AB
Peter Gustafsson
Authorised Public Accountant
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Hotels play an important role in the tourism and travel industry,
which contributes to the economic development of local communities around the world. We realise that we cannot thrive
without the help of the community and the surrounding environment. Every year, we host more than 11 million guests in our 225
hotels, located in 41 countries across Europe, the Middle East and
Africa. We take our role seriously; facilitating the preservation of
local traditions as well as supporting the protection of cultural
heritage sites and the natural environment.
Our Responsible Business programme was introduced in 2001
in response to increasing demands from guests, corporate clients, employees and owners. An environmental programme has
however been in place since the mid 1990s. Within the Responsible
Business programme, we are dedicated to three main areas of
responsibility. First, taking responsibility for the health and safety
of employees and customers. Second, respecting social and ethical issues in the company, as well as in the community. Third, reducing our negative impact on the environment.
Our stakeholders have different expectations of us, and when
taking a stakeholder approach, we need to balance these. First of
all, we have an economic responsibility to our customers, associates, partners and shareholders. Our logic is that when we operate in a way that is respectful of human rights, socially equitable
and environmentally sustainable, we can better meet our economic responsibilities.
Moreover, employee well-being is vital, as we are a service industry and depend on our employees’ professional and hospitable
interaction with guests. Guest health and safety is also important, taking into account issues such as safety, non-smoking environments, healthy and ethical eating, and accessibility. Ethical
behaviour and legal compliance with international standards are
essential as we operate in a variety of countries and political systems. Finally, climate change is a compelling issue for us as we are
a contributor to global warming due to our energy consumption,
and can potentially be seriously impacted by the effects of climate change.
Important events during 2006 were:
receiving the HOFTEL Award for “Owner-Friendly Innovation
of the year”;
reintroduction of quarterly reporting as mandatory for managed and leased hotels; and
making the annual General Manager conference a carbon neutral
event.
Our ambition is to be a good company to work for, stay with and
invest in. This means that we take our commitment to being a
responsible business seriously and aim to be among the leaders
in this field.
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Organisation and Governance
The Responsible Business (RB) programme is structured around
the RB Policy and supporting policies, objectives and benchmarking
indicators. The policy, and thus the RB programme, is structured
around stakeholders and their expectations of the company from
an economic, social and environmental point of view. Different
stakeholders means different expectations, which may be contradictory to one another. A responsible business must be able to
balance differing expectations while allowing all stakeholder groups
to feel their demands are being met.
Rezidor’s management is based on empowerment, which means
that the ultimate responsibility for responsible business lies with
the Executive Committee, but the operational responsibility lies
with the General Manager, supported by the RB co-ordinator and
RB team at each hotel. Since 2003, we have had a regional framework in place for Responsible Business, supporting the hotels at a
regional level and providing a liaison between the hotels and the
corporate Responsible Business team. The regional RB co-ordinators meet once a year at the RB Forum, where they are informed
about the most recent developments in the RB programme and
share best practises with each other.
We have equipped our hotels and General Managers with several
tools to better manage their local cultural heritage, community involvement, employee well-being, children’s rights, health and
safety and environmental performance. Each hotel devises its own
RB Action Plan based on the 12 RB objectives. They are guided by

a manual, the RB Quick Guide for all brands and the RB Handbook
for Radisson SAS. RB training as well as communication materials
are also available for all brands.
Moreover, Responsible Business related issues are discussed
in every issue of the internal employee magazine, Hotline. 95%
(85) of the hotels have RB as a standing topic on the agenda
for their departmental meetings. 39% of the hotels have a reward scheme in place, rewarding staff for action in the area of
social and environmental performance. In addition, 93% (87)
of the hotels performed RB related internal awareness campaigns during 2006.
To encourage and reward those hotels that promote Responsible
Business consistently in their properties, we give the “best” hotel
an RB Award at the Annual General Managers’ conference. In 2006,
Park Inn Erfurt-Apfelstädt and Radisson SAS Atlantic Hotel in
Stavanger received the award as they were assessed to be best in
class for their respective brands thanks to consistent progress in
all the areas covered by the RB Action Plan.
Scope and Profile
The 2006 report is the first report to be completely integrated into
the corporate Annual Report. Previously, and since 2002, a separate Responsible Business Progress Report has been produced,
with a summary of the Progress Report included in the Annual
Report. The Sustainability Report has not been independently reviewed by the Group’s auditors or any other third party.

Responsible Business Policy, guiding the RB programme
Employees
We shall educate and facilitate for our
employees to make a conscious decision
in favour of environmental and social issues in their private and business lives.
Customers
We shall inform and make it easy for our
guests to participate in RB related activities at our hotels.
Property Owners
We shall work together with property
owners to find innovative solutions that
satisfy our economic, environmental
and social objectives.

Suppliers
We shall strive to purchase products
that have a reduced environmental impact during their life cycle, from suppliers that demonstrate environmental
and social responsibility.

Environment
We shall do our utmost to ensure that
our business is environmentally sustainable, and that we continuously improve
performance in the areas of energy,
water, chemicals and resource consumption, and waste generation.

Community
We shall take an active role in the international RB community, and contribute to
the local communities where we operate.
Authorities
We require our managers to abide by local
and international legislation, especially regarding labour laws, health and safety,
human rights and the environment.

Policy documents supporting the RB Policy
are the Code of Conduct, Sponsorship Policy,
Policy on Prohibited Construction Materials,
Policy on Freon Usage, Equal Opportunity
Policy, Policy against Sexual Harassment in
the workplace and the Policy against Facilitation of Prostitution at hotels.
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Scope
The scope of the consolidated data presented generally follows the
principles of our financial reporting. This means that the consolidated performance data includes managed and leased hotels for
the following brands:
Scope: Hotels included in the Sustainability Report
Radisson SAS
Park Inn
Country Inn

115
33
2

Regent

2

Total

152

Limitations:
Due to the current limited number of hotels operated under the
Regent and Country Inn brands, their data is only mentioned in
tables and graphs, while the focus in the text is on Radisson SAS
and Park Inn.
As no Hotel Missoni is currently in operation, this brand is not
considered in this report.
Hotels under franchise agreements, which currently number 71
hotels, are not included in the consolidated performance data.
Neither are sales offices and staff functions.
It should, however, be noted that the Responsible Business programme is encouraged at all hotels, including franchised hotels, and
currently 42% of franchised hotels participate in the RB programme
and report on the progress of their performance.
Profile
The Environmental and Status Report data is based on year-end
figures, meaning that all hotels in operation by December 31st
were asked to report. Consequently, some hotels report full-year
data, and others that opened during the year, only report for the
months they were in operation. Moreover, hotels that discontinued operations with the Group during the year are not included
in the year-end data. During 2006, 16 hotels (3,740 rooms)
came into operation under managed and leased agreements,
while operation of one managed hotel (168 rooms) was discontinued. Due to the fact that the reporting base changes from
year to year, absolute figures are not reported here. We instead
use indicators which are based mainly on guest nights, ie. occu-
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pancy, as the level of occupancy in a hotel impacts the energy and
water consumption as well as waste generation.
Data collection
Conversion factors for different energy sources and emission factors for calculating and reporting greenhouse gas emissions are
based on the WBCSD Greenhouse Gas Protocol and guidelines
from the Carbon Trust and the Carbon Neutral Company©.
Human resources data is derived from financial accounting and
covers all employees in leased properties.
The Responsible Business related performance data is checked
internally before data consolidation, with follow-ups via e-mail
and phone calls to hotels that have reported noticeably high or
low figures.
Monitoring
Hotels are asked to report their RB performance data in two different sets of reports and questionnaires. The overall compliance
with, and progress of, the 12 objectives of the RB programme is
assessed through the annual RB Status Report. The Status Report
is an internet-based database managed by an external consultant
(also available through Rezidor’s intranet), and contains 85 questions touching upon all relevant areas of the RB programme. This
questionnaire is inspired by the UN Global Compact and the Global
Reporting Initiative’s Guidelines.
Environmental performance data (e.g. energy, water and waste)
is collected on a quarterly basis through an Excel based database
linked to Rezidor’s overall accounting and financial system. The
data requested has been more or less the same since the launch
in 2002, while the reporting periods have changed over the years.
In 2002 and 2003, hotels reported monthly, while in 2004 and
2005 hotels reported annually. As of January 1st 2006, reporting
is mandatory for managed and leased hotels on a quarterly basis.
Response rate
With regards to the above-mentioned reporting systems, the response rate has been high among the hotels. In 2006, 100% (86)
of hotels responded to the RB Status Report and 99% (95) of hotels reported their environmental performance. Moreover, 85%
(92) of hotels had RB Action Plans in place for 2006. These RB
Action Plans are updated yearly. For 2007, 90% of the hotels have
set RB related targets.
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Stakeholder Relations

Employees
Rezidor Hotel Group AB had 5,447 employees in leased hotels
during 2006, of which 2,848 were women.
Our values govern the organisation
The values of Rezidor guide the organisation and our employees in
their daily business. Our values are openness, trust, confidence,
fighting spirit, flexibility, empowerment, z-factor and Responsible
Business. We must ensure our values are not compromised even
where we have to adapt to local conditions. To guide our hotel and
regional office staff, management and employees alike, about how
we want to operate our business and our way of life, we have developed a new Code of Conduct, the Rezidor Way.
This Code builds on our existing Code of Conduct available in the
internal Economic Manual. It is intended to be a guiding document
about the way we do things at Rezidor. This updated Code has been
reviewed by an external human rights lawyer, taking into consideration the IBLF’s Human Rights Guidelines. After several rounds of
internal feedback from human resources staff, the Code will be
approved by the Executive Committee, and eventually distributed
to the hotels by the end of 2007.
The Code describes our commitment to service and safety for our
guests, employee rights such as working hours, equal opportunity,
fair wages, child labour, conflict of interest, as well as shareholder influence and transparency, corruption, purchasing policies, Responsible
Business, communication and infringements and reporting.
Human rights
Key human rights issues for the hotel industry include fair wages,
women’s rights, skills requirements, the ability to join trade unions
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and collective bargaining. The UN Declaration of Human Rights
underlies our relationship with our employees. All hotels within
Rezidor comply with local laws regarding working hours and payment, and employees are free to join trade unions if they so choose
and bargain collectively in accordance with local laws.
The right of younger workers is also important due to the high
degree to which the hospitality industry relies on this demographic
group compared with other industries. In 2001, on average 49%
of the European hospitality workforce was younger than 34 years
of age (EUROSTAT, 2003). Many hotel jobs are seen as low-income
employment but it is a fact that the hotel industry provides a better
path for upward mobility than many other industries.
Our hotels have routines in place to ensure that discrimination due
to age, race, religion, gender or disability does not take place in line with
our Equal Opportunities Policy. It is critical to ensure that we have no
child labour in our hotels, this is achieved through local hiring policies.
Pursuant to the European Union Directive on works councils
(94/45/EC, the “Works Council Directive”) Rezidor has established
a European Works Council, which has been entered into by and
between representatives of our central management and employee representatives, and is valid until March 2nd, 2008. Annual
meetings are held, where issues such as the company’s finances,
performance, future ventures and other paramount issues, are
discussed with employee representatives.
A strong understanding and respect of cultural differences are
also important, as we employ up to 25 different nationalities in
some hotels, and as we operate hotels in 41 countries.
Employability and Development
Information about our employee satisfaction survey, internal recruitment policy as well as training programmes is found in the Board of
Directors report on page 23. Hotels also train their employees on the
implications of the Responsible Business programme in the form of
a train-the-trainer programme on an on-going basis. The aim is to
empower employees to make a conscious decision in favour of the
natural environment and local communities. Since its launch, 63%
(76) of all employees within Radisson SAS and 27% (38) within Park
Inn hotels have received this training. The reduced percentages
compared to 2005 are due to the fact that most newly opened hotels have only educated a small share of their total employees. 89%
of the Park Inn hotels have started RB training; the corresponding
figure for Radisson SAS is 90%. So far, no Regent employees and few
Country Inn employees have received RB training.
Customers
Hospitality is the number one priority for us and Responsible
Business is for our guests’ benefit and so should not compromise
their comfort. We strive to live up to customers’ changing de-

mands, and they expect us to deliver more than just good value for
money. Customers also expect us to manage health, safety and
security, environmental and social issues. We aim to meet these
expectations through our Responsible Business programme.
One aim is to make it easy for our guests to participate in our RB
programme, and to do something good for the environment or
community while staying with us. During 2006 work took place to
make it possible for our guests to offset the greenhouse gas emissions related to their stay, and trip to and from, our hotels. In
February 2007, we launched a new redemption possibility for our
loyalty members, making it possible for them to redeem gold points
to make their stay and trip carbon neutral.
We also strive to communicate the social and environmental work
we do to our guests. This is done through in-house information campaigns with posters, postcards, information leaflets in the room and
animation film on the TV system about our RB progress. The abovementioned activities are in place in more than 70% of our hotels.
Health
Non-smoking policies have become a significant issue for the hotel
industry due to many European countries implementing smoking
bans in public areas, which include hotel lobbies and restaurants.
Countries that already have banned smoking include Ireland,
Norway, and Sweden while in 2007 bans will come into effect in
Belgium (partial ban), and the UK. In addition, we are increasing the
number of non-smoking guest rooms. In the Radisson SAS and
Park Inn operating standards we aim for at least 80% non-smoking
rooms, when supported by local demands. On average, 65% of our
guest rooms are non-smoking and in Scandinavia, the average is
81%. 35% of our hotels have completely smoke-free public areas.
We also improve the well-being of our guests by offering exercise and sport facilities with gyms, swimming pools and spas.
Moreover, we endeavour to ensure that we provide fresh and
wholesome food. In 2006 we launched at Radisson SAS a healthy
menu campaign, aiming for at least 10% of all menu content to be
healthy taking into consideration components such as saturated
fats and cholesterol. The Park Inn has set the same ambition for
2007. The vast majority (90%) of our hotels endeavour to accommodate guests with food allergies, and 34% of hotels have allergytested guest rooms certified by national allergy associations. Hotels
also increasingly offer organic and fair trade products. 56% (39) of
hotels offer organic options in their restaurants, while 47% offer
fair trade products, including coffee, fruit and cereal.
Safety and Security
The safety and security of guests, employees and property is an
imperative aspect of hotel operations. Since the terrorist attacks
in the US in 2001 and in London in 2005, there has been a great

shift in how hotel security is perceived. At Rezidor this has resulted
in a more structured risk management agenda, with more proactive behaviour about gathering and sharing information throughout
the company. The lines of communication regarding safety and
security issues are kept open and the key focus is on prevention.
Our safety and security programme is designed to protect
guests, employees and owners’ investments while maintaining and
even enhancing guest and employee satisfaction and the operational results. The foundation of our programme are the Four
Cornerstone policies of Guest Safety, Employee Safety, Operational
Security and Fire Safety. Focusing on the Rezidor values and the
frontline empowerment initiative we have also introduced a Yes I
Can! approach to safety and security through our 1-2-3 policy. It
encourages employees to report dangers or aberrations, take immediate action to prevent injury or damage and to follow-up and
ensure that dangers are removed and abnormalities corrected.
The goal of the Rezidor Hotel Group Corporate Safety and
Security is to protect the company’s employees, clients, owners
and assets from potential threats. The corporate policies are implemented via our Four Cornerstones.
We will work to limit the risk of any employee becoming injured,
ill or suffering any loss while working at a Rezidor property.
We will work to limit the risk of any guest becoming injured, ill or
suffering any loss while visiting a Rezidor property.
To protect the assets and investments of our owners, we will
actively work to prevent operational disruptions in the hotel and
to ensure that any disruptions that may occur are as limited as
possible, both in cost, length and degree.
All hotels will actively work to prevent fires and reduce the risk
of igniting fires on hotel property.
All hotels will have equipment, procedures and training programmes designed to limit the risk of damage done if a fire
should occur.
The 1-2-3 programme (Alert, Save Lives, Solve the Problem) will
be used as a tool to help fulfil the four cornerstones of Safety and
Security policy.
Property Owners
Since Rezidor is a hotel management company, we do not own the
buildings we operate. By asking our property owners and contractors to use the best available technologies and building smart from
the beginning, we can reduce our operational impact.
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We strive to achieve an open and constructive dialogue with our
property owners to make their buildings run more efficiently and
to reduce their negative impact. We keep an open dialogue so that
we together can find solutions to any environmental issues that
may arise. We strive to find and use materials that are functional
from both a technical design and environmental point of view.
Consequently hotel management needs to inform their respective
property owner of the RB programme itself, which has taken place
in 88% of our hotels, and 97% of our hotels have discussed potential environmental investment projects with their owners.
Additionally, we provide building contractors and partners with
our Design Standard and List of Prohibited Construction Materials.
As guidance, Rezidor strives to implement the “Guidelines on
Sustainable Construction” from the Prince of Wales Business
Leaders Forum and Conservation International in our business and
hotel development process.
Suppliers
Many of our social and environmental impacts are derived from
activities in our supply chain. Controlling whom we buy products
from and what we buy is an important part of our strategy to reduce our negative environmental and social impact.
As a hotel company we use a large variety of products. For some
products where we buy large quantities and where we perceive the
negative environmental impact to be high, we have set strict environmental performance demands. Moreover, our corporate contracts include a set of environmental and social criteria that our
suppliers are expected to comply with.
We try to positively influence our suppliers by providing incentives
to develop environmentally sound products produced in a responsible
way. Value for money, quality in relation to price, will always be our
prime concern. Once we are satisfied with these parameters, we always choose suppliers and products with the most advanced
Responsible Business profile. In other words, with all things equal, we
select the most ethical/environmental product.
Authorities
Hotel operations are not covered by any environmental permits,
and legislative demands mainly concern waste recycling demands,
energy efficiency in buildings, legionella prevention and the control of water effluents. No hotels were involved in any legal disputes related to energy and water or complaints and have no
known major environmental-related debts. Only one hotel reported excessive water effluents, which has been dealt with according to local regulations.
Hotels are provided with an overview of applicable environmental and Health & Safety legislation through an internet-based legal
database. As part of this database, hotels must complete a legal
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self-audit. By year-end 2006, 91% of the hotels had completed
the legal environmental and Health & Safety self-audit. The selfaudit contains 80 questions based on legal demands related to
local environmental and employee Health & Safety legislation. The
tool also contains an overview of the legal demands and provides
quarterly updates. This audit is currently available for Denmark,
France, Ireland, Germany, Norway, Russia, Sweden and the UK.
Thus it covers 66% of all Rezidor hotels. The self-audit has been
developed by external environmental lawyers and follows the EU
and national legislation.
In addition to legal compliance, an increased demand for open
and transparent dissemination of Responsible Business related information has been noted. Recently, a new law was passed stating
that all companies on the Stockholm Stock Exchange shall inform
about environmental and social issues in their annual reports.
Rezidor had already been complying with these requirements long
before these laws came into force.
Communities and Society
The World Travel & Tourism (WTTC) estimates that the travel industry generates 234 millions jobs and contributes 10.3% of the
global gross domestic product (WTTC, 2006). An industry of this
size has a considerable impact on social, economic and environmental conditions around the world. Moreover, IBLF’s Tourism
Partnership estimates that the tourism industry generates about
1.5 additional jobs in other industries (for example restaurants,
sightseeing, taxis, laundries etc.) In addition, tourism and hotels
often help to create job opportunities and provide incomes in regions where the possibility for industrial activity is small, thus providing an opportunity for people to stay in areas with otherwise
difficult employment circumstances.
Tourism is dependent on a healthy local economy as well as
cultural and natural heritage. To respect this co-dependency
and to strengthen the community, Rezidor strives to hire local
people when possible, as well as to give support through the
restoration of cultural heritage sites, by sponsoring local events
and charities, and by partnering with research and interest
organisations.
Between 1999–2006, Rezidor supported UNESCO in their
“Memories for the Future” programme, designed to enhance and
restore key cultural sites around the world. Projects included the
installation of an exhibition area at the Bahla Fort in Oman, completed in 2006, and restoration work in Petra, Jordan.
Sponsorship and action-oriented charitable schemes are additional ways to support the community and all hotels organise at
least one community project every year. In total, employees and
guests in 63% of our hotels donated over TEUR 235 (694) to
local charity projects during 2006. Locally and regionally, the ho-
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Display money collection box in the lobby

82%

In-kind giving: product or service donations

80%

Provided discount/free meeting rooms to charity organisations

67%

Organised charity event

52%

Engage staff in ’clean up’ days of the hotel surroundings

41%

Above percentages represent the total number of hotels who have implemented
the action.

Partners
Rezidor is a member of, and has chaired since 2003, the Executive
Committee of the Tourism Partnership, a tourism specific section
of the Prince of Wales Business Leaders Forum (IBLF). The aim of
this forum is to develop tools and systems to improve the industry’s social and environmental performance. Industry-wide projects
that have been initiated include the “Sustainable Construction
Guidelines” launched in 2006 and the “Human Rights Guidelines”
to be launched in 2007.
Rezidor is also a member of the World Travel & Tourism Council,
WTTC, and the International Hotel & Restaurant Association,
IH&RA. Affirming Rezidor’s commitment to safety and security, we
were one of the founding members of IH&RA’s Global Council on
Safety Security and Crisis Management.
Rezidor has partnered with Save the Children since 2003.
Among other things, hotels have displayed moneyboxes in their
lobbies and over TEUR 120 has been collected from hotels, goldpoints plus members and corporate offices to date. As a consequence of the disassociation from SAS in November 2006, this
partnership was terminated. Final discussions are currently taking
place with World Childhood Foundation to become Rezidor’s official international charity.
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Environment
Operating hotels involves the use of raw material, energy and
water, as well as waste generation. Rezidor’s environmental impact varies depending on location, type of hotel (e.g. resort,
downtown and airport), and year of construction. Generally,
Rezidor’s main environmental impact is energy use and the consequent contribution to climate change, as well as consumption
of materials.
t

The five most common community involvement
activities in 2006 were:

During 2006, Rezidor supported a number of research projects,
through providing internship opportunities for students from Hotel
Management Schools, supporting student theses on hotel management and Responsible Business.
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OUT

t

tels also support many sporting activities, in Germany for example, the region sponsored the German Sledge Hockey team, and
in Denmark, the Park Inn hotels sponsored the female Olympic
volley-ball team.
The company-wide Hotels Environment Action Month (HEAM)
held in September each year, provides an opportunity for our employees to make a difference in their local community, expressing
their personal commitment to Responsible Business. In 2006, 166
(133) hotels participated. Actions included encouraging employees
to participate in the Car Free Day, joining the Clean Up the World
Campaign by cleaning local forests, parks, beaches and streets,
organising art competitions for children and establishing money
collection campaigns for local causes.

Energy

Emissions to air

Freon and halons

Carbon dioxide emissions

Water

Sewage water

Food & Beverages

Waste

Chemicals

Hazardous waste

Stationary

Organic waste

Disposable items
Newspapers and brochures

The environment is directly or indirectly considered in most of the
seven policy statements that form the Responsible Business Policy.
All stakeholders are thereby included in the task of building and
operating our business in an environmentally sustainable way.
Employees are educated to be able to make conscious decisions in
favour of the environment and we strive to make our guests aware
of how they can help. Suppliers are selected from among those
that demonstrate environmental responsibility.
Investments
Over 40% of hotels responded that they undertook some kind of
environmental investment during 2006. As the types of investment vary substantially between hotels, we do not provide a consolidated figure for investments made. Investments were mainly
carried out in the areas of waste management, e.g. installment of
waste compactors and increased sorting facilities, and energy savings, e.g. sensors, low energy demand equipment, and energy audits, as well as legionella prevention investments. Several hotels
also reported savings made due to these investments, mainly
thanks to energy audits, improved waste sorting and automatic
control of water usage in public areas.
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Energy and Climate Change
During 2006, public awareness on the potential impact of global
warming and climate change on our future economic development
increased substantially, due, in part, to Al Gore’s documentary “An
Inconvenient Truth” and the Stern Review. Both international and
national initiatives to reduce the impacts of carbon dioxide emissions are now emerging. Climate change is one of the travel & tourism industry’s major environmental concerns, both due to the travel
incurred by guests to reach our hotels, and extensive energy use in
properties, but also due to the potential impact of climate change
on our business – for example disrupted travel patterns due to
natural disasters or damage to hotel properties due to storms or
flooding.
Our energy consumption consists of electricity, district heating
and cooling, heating oil, natural gas, and LPG. Energy cost’s share
of Rezidor’s total costs is 5%, and during 2006 we spent TEUR
22,407 on energy related costs.
Rezidor is committed to contributing to mitigating climate
change by continuously improving the energy-efficiency of our
operations and by increasing the share of carbon-neutral energy
sources. During 2006, we also started investigating the possibilities to offset our CO2 emissions. Our strategy is foremost to reduce
energy use and shift to renewables, but also to complement these
activities by carbon offsetting.
Energy consumption per square metre and direct CO2 emissions
went up for Radisson SAS in 2006, due to an increase in heating oil
consumption. Only 23 hotels use heating oil, and one hotel contributes to 23% of the total heating oil consumption. According to the
hotels the increased use of heating oil was due to a favourable price
situation compared to other heating alternatives.
Regional differences with regard to energy consumption are
quite substantial, with the hotels in Scandinavia, Germany, France,
Benelux, Switzerland and the Middle East using less than 300 kWh
per square metre, while hotels in Poland, Central and Eastern
Europe, Ireland and the UK use above 350 kWh per square metre.
This difference is partly explained by the age of the hotel portfolio,

Environmental key indicators
Energy consumption, kWh/m2
Water consumption, litres/guest night
Unsorted waste, kg/guest night
Direct carbon dioxide emissions, ton
Guest nights, 1,000
Note 2005 data within brackets.
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partly by price differences driving savings, and partly by general
awareness in the countries regarding saving energy.
Energy consumption per square meter went down by 14% for
Park Inn. This is due to reduced energy consumption, but also due
to the fact that the mix of hotels reporting in 2006 changed compared to 2005. The number of Park Inn hotels reporting has gone
from 2 hotels in 2003 to 33 hotels in 2006. Park Inn in the UK on
average uses 489 kWh per square metre, the corresponding figures for Park Inn in France and Germany are 270 kWh per square
metre and 236 kWh per square metre respectively.
The three most important actions to improve
energy efficiency in 2006 were:
Low energy bulbs in all guest rooms

74%

Key cards in rooms to control light

66%

Outdoor lighting steered by sensors or timers

58%

Above percentages represent the total number of hotels who have implemented
the action.

Together with the Carbon Neutral Company©, an assessment of
the greenhouse gas emissions of Rezidor’s operations was undertaken in 2006, based on 2005 data. Results from this study
showed that 233,000 tons of CO2 equivalents were emitted by our
operations from direct and indirect energy sources; freon leakage
and waste disposal. 52% of our emissions come from electricity
use, followed by natural gas consumption and district heating.
Carbon neutral projects in 2006 included making the annual
General Manager conference, as well as the corporate office, neutral. In February 2007 we made it possible for our loyalty members
in the goldpoints plus programme to offset the emissions from
their trip and stay by redeeming goldpoints.
Water and Waste Management
Water accounts for up to 15% of total utility bills in most hotels, and
up to 95% of fresh water leaves the hotel as waste. Normally we

Radisson SAS

Park Inn

Country Inn

Regent

285 (264)

297 (345)

209 (218)

457 (420)

468 (449)

389 (450)

346 (215)

591 (542)

1.69 (1.86)

2.24 (1.75)

3.55 (0.72)

1.96 (1.36)

7,337 (5,990)

427 (0)

0

0

8,764

2,396

90
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pay for the water twice, once when we purchase fresh water and
eventually when we dispose of it as wastewater.
The total water consumption increased by 4% for Radisson SAS
due to the addition of eight new hotels, where especially three hotels located in the Middle East had high water consumption in spas
and swimming-pools. For Park Inn on the other hand, water consumption improved by 13%.
The two most common actions to improve water
management are:
Water efficient shower heads in all guest showers

76%

WC with 6 litres per flush

71%

Above percentages represent the total number of hotels who have implemented
the action.

The indicator for unsorted waste went down (by 9%) for the first
time since reporting started for Radisson SAS. This is mainly due to
an increased focus on sorting and recycling of waste, which in many
European countries is driven by recent legislation.
For Park Inn the amount of unsorted waste per guest night went
up by 28%. This is to a large extent explained by the increased
number of Park Inn hotels in the UK reporting in 2006. The Park Inn
hotels in the UK had 2.87 kg unsorted waste per guest night, while
the corresponding figure for France was 1.77, and for Germany
0.76 kg per guest night. This high level of unsorted waste is mainly
attributed to limited waste sorting facilities for hotels in the UK.
The four most important actions to improve waste
management are:
Fat separation device available in kitchen

81%

Use returnable glass bottles

78%

Refillable amenity dispensers in public bathrooms

71%

Waste compactor

58%

Above percentages represent number of hotels of total having implemented the
action.

Environmental Certifications
A straight-forward way to communicate our commitment towards
the environment to our guests is to obtain third-party certification.
9% of Rezidor hotels have received a third party environmental

certificate so far. Most of these hotels are located in the Nordic
countries. The decision to seek third-party certification is made by
the hotel with support from the corporate office, as well as the regional RB co-ordinator. Hotels that have received such certifications were required to make some adjustments in order to comply,
but in general the RB programme prepared them well for the external audit and certification process. The focus of these certifications is on concrete savings, better indoor environment, waste
management, energy efficiency, environmental training of employees and informing guests about the RB programme.
During the year, two third party certifications were awarded, and
for 2007, an additional 10 hotels are expected to obtain third party
certifications, mainly in Norway and Sweden. The main certifications for Rezidor by year-end were the Nordic Swan Eco-label (6
hotels), the Norwegian Miljøfyrtårnet (7 hotels), the Green Tourism
Business Scheme in the UK (2 hotels), the Danish Green Key (1
hotel), the Irish Green Failte Award (1 hotel), Ecodynamique
Enterprises for Brussels (1 hotel) and the Swedish Miljödiplomering
(1 hotel).
The corporate office, as well as individual hotels received
the following Responsible Business related awards during
2006:
Rezidor’s Responsible Business programme was awarded the
“Owner Friendly Innovation 2006” by HOFTEL. Helsinki,
November, 2006.
The Radisson SAS Hotel, Muscat, is the best company to work
for in Oman, according to a survey conducted 2006 by one of
the Sultanate’s magazines, Business Today, in conjunction with
International Market Research Consultancy.
The Radisson SAS St. Helen’s Hotel, Dublin received an award
from the Irish Tourist Board, Failte Ireland, together with the Irish
Hotel Federation and Irish Hospitality Institute, for its cultural
diversity. The hotel by year end were employed staff from 33
different countries. April 2006.
At the 2006 Middle East and North Africa (MENA) Travel Awards,
the Radisson SAS Resort, Taba won Gold for Best Environmental
5-star hotel.
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Annual General Meeting
and Nomination Committee

Welcome to the Annual General Meeting in Rezidor Hotel Group
AB on May 4th 2007, 10 am CET, at Radisson SAS Royal Viking Hotel
in Stockholm.
Right to participate
Shareholders who wish to participate in the Annual General
Meeting must be recorded as shareholders in the register of shareholders maintained by VPC AB (the Nordic Central Securities
Depository) on April 27th 2007.
Shareholders whose shares are registered in the name of a nominee through the trust department of a bank or similar institution
must, in order to be entitled to participate in the Annual General
Meeting, request that their shares are temporarily re-registered in
their own names in the register of shareholders maintained by VPC
AB. Such registration must be effected by VPC AB not later than
April 27th 2007.

Or by facsimile + 46 (0)8 775 80 08 (Marked Rezidor), by telephone +46 (0)8 775 80 25, Mondays to Fridays 9 am – 4 pm CET,
by e-mail to AGM@rezidor.com or at the Company’s website
www.rezidor.com.
Nomination Committee
An informal Nomination Committee in compliance with the nomination procedure set up in the Rezidor Hotel Group AB’s prospectus
for the listing on the Swedish Stock Exchange, in November 2006,
has been established. The informal Nomination Committee has
consisted of Marilyn Carlson Nelson representing Carlson Hotels
Worldwide Inc. and Carlson Summit Inc., together holding 35% of
the shares, Benny Zakrisson representing SAS AB holding 6,74% of
the shares and Brian Meyer representing Fir Tree Partners, USA
holding 5,02% of the shares.

Notification of participation
Shareholders who wish to participate in the Annual General
Meeting must notify Rezidor their intention to attend the meeting
no later than on April 27th 2007, at 4 pm CET. The notification shall
be made in writing to:
Rezidor Hotel Group AB (publ)
PO Box 47021
SE-100 74 Stockholm
Sweden

Financial Calender
May 4th, 2007
Annual General Meeting

July 27th, 2007
Interim report for the period 1 January–30 June 2007

May 4th, 2007
Interim report for the period 1 January–31 March 2007

October 29th, 2007
Interim report for the period 1 January–30 September 2007
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Financial Definitions
and Terminology

Development brand
Brand that still is under development, and that currently does not have many hotels
in operation.
Debt/equity ratio
Net debt divided by total equity.
Earnings per share
Profit for the period, before allocation to minority interest divided by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding.
Equity/assets ratio
Total equity divided by total assets.
FF&E
Furniture, Fittings and Equipment.
Free cash flow
Cash flow from operating activities, investments, financial items and tax and the effect of restructuring measures on cash flow.
Free cash flow per share
Free cash flow divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding.
General Manager
This title refers to the position as hotel manager.
Return on shareholders’ equity
Profit for the period, attributable to equity holders of the parent as a percentage of
average shareholders’ equity, excluding minority interests.
Yield
Dividend as a percentage of the market price.

EBITDAR
Operating profit before rental expense and share of income in associates and before
depreciation and amortisation and gain on sale of shares and of fixed assets and net
financial items and tax.
Like-for-like hotels
Comparable hotels in operation during the same previous period compared.
Occupancy (%)
Number of rooms sold in relation to the numbers of rooms available for sale.
Operating cash flow
EBITDA excluding share of income in associated companies, cash flow effect of restructuring measures and net investments and including changes in working capital
and dividend from associated companies.
Operating cash flow per share
Operating cash flow divided by average number of shares outstanding.
Return on capital employed
(ROA – Return on Assets)
Operating profit, excluding restructuring costs and impairment losses divided by
average capital employed.
Revenue
All related business revenue (including Rooms revenue, Food & Beverage revenue,
Other hotel revenue and Fee revenue).
RevPAR
Revenue Per Available Room – Rooms revenue in relation with the rooms available.

Regions
Nordic Region
Denmark, Finland, Iceland, Norway and Sweden.

OPERATIONAL KEY FIGURES
AHR
Average-House Rate – Rooms revenue in relation with the number of rooms sold.

Rest of Western Europe
Austria, the Benelux countries, France, Germany, Greece, Italy, Ireland, Malta
Portugal, Spain, Switzerland and the United Kingdom.

Capital employed
Total assets less interest-bearing financial assets and cash and cash equivalents and
non-interest-bearing operating liabilities, including pension liabilities, and excluding
tax assets and tax liabilities.

Eastern Europe (incl. CIS countries)
Azerbaijan, the Baltic region, Bulgaria, Croatia, the Czech Republic, Georgia, Hungary,
Kazakhstan, Macedonia, Poland, Romania, Russia, Slovakia, Turkey, Ukraine and
Uzbekistan.

EBIT
Operating profit before net financial items and tax.

Middle East, Africa and Other
Bahrain, Egypt, Iran, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Syria and
the United Arab Emirates.

EBITDA
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation and gain on sale of shares and
fixed assets and net financial items and tax (for 2006 excluding IPO related costs).
EBITDA margin
EBITDA as a percentage of Revenue (for 2006 excluding IPO related costs).

For definitions of types of contractual agreements, see page 40.
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